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Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited 

 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT  
Dear Member,  

 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 

March 31, 2022. 

 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 

Particulars 
2021-22  2020-21  

CAD  CAD  

Total Income 59,118,591 43,952,695 

Total Expenditure 56,370,080 41,775,426 

Operating Profit / (Loss) 2,748,511 2,177,269 

Add: Interest Income 19,784 12,720 

Less: Finance Costs - (14,659) 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 2,768,295 2,175,330 

Less: Tax 739,075 578,278 

Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax 2,029,220 1,597,052 

Add: Balance b/f from previous year 6,220,861 4,623,809 

Balance available for disposal which directors 

appropriate as follows: 
  

Dividend - - 

Transfer to Reserves - - 

Balance to be carried forward 8,250,081 6,220,861 

 

2. Capital Expenditure:  
   

As at March 31, 2022, the gross fixed and intangible assets including leased Assets, 
stood at CAD 335,877 and the net fixed and intangible assets, including leased assets, 
at CAD 229,854. Capital Expenditure during the year amounted to CAD 220,450. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

3. State of Company Affairs:  

 

The gross sales and other income for the financial year under review were CAD 59.14 

Mn. as against CAD 43.97 Mn for the previous financial year registering an increase of 

34.50%. The profit before tax from continuing operations including extraordinary and 

exceptional items was CAD 2.77 Mn. and the profit after tax from continuing 

operations including extraordinary and exceptional items of CAD 2.03 Mn. for the 

financial year under review as against CAD 2.18 Mn. and CAD 1.60 Mn. respectively 

for the previous financial year, registering an increase of 27.06% and 26.88% 

respectively. 
 

4. Dividend:  

 

In order to conserve the resources for future business growth, the Directors do not 

recommend any final dividend for the ended March 31, 2022.  
 

5. Reporting of Frauds:  

 

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against the 

Company by its officers or employees. 

 

6. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned during the 

year: 
 

No change in the Board of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel happened during the 

FY 2021-22. 
 

7. Financial Statements: 

 

The Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification, 

observation or adverse comment.   

 

8. Directors Responsibility Statement: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 

 

a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures. 



 

 

 

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that 

period. 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the local 

statutes for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis. 

e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 

were operating effectively. 

 

9. Acknowledgement 

 

Your directors acknowledge the invaluable support extended by the government 

authorities in Canada and take this opportunity to thank them as well as the 

customers, supply chain partners, employees, financial institutions, banks and all 

the various stakeholders for their continued co-operation and support to the 

Company.  

 

 
   For and on behalf of the Board 
   Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited 

 

 

       Harsh Naidu    Tina Allan  
                Director     Director 
          (Edison)                 (Mississauga) 
 

Date: April 14, 2022 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the Shareholder of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Ltd / Infotech Larsen & Toubro Canada LTEE 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Ltd / Infotech 

Larsen & Toubro Canada LTEE (“the Company”) which comprise the balance sheets as at March 31, 2022 and 

March 31, 2021 and the related statements of income and retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then 

ended and the related notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.   

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Ltd / Infotech Larsen & Toubro Canada LTEE as at March 31, 2022 

and March 31, 2021 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 

Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises. 

 

Basis of Opinion 

 

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements  

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 

with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises, and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 

or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.  

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

KNAV Professional Corporation
Chartered Professional Accountants
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accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing 

standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

 

We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the Company's internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 

we identify during our audit.  

 

 

KNAV Professional Corporation 
 
KNAV Professional Corporation 

Chartered Professional Accountants  

Authorized to practice public accounting by the Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario  

55 York Street, Suite 401,  

Toronto Ontario M5J 1R7 

Date: April 14, 2022 
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(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements) 

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

 
 
 

  

Chief Financial Officer: Alekh Gupta  Director : Tina Allan 

   
 
 

  Director : Harsh Naidu 

   
` 

Balance sheets 
(All amounts in Canadian Dollars, unless otherwise stated) Notes  

As at 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

     

ASSETS     

Current assets     

Cash and cash equivalents 6   73,365          1,767,800  

Accounts receivable, net  7   13,386,487          7,045,462  

Advance taxes (net of provisions)    6,927             216,241  

Other current assets 9   150,659             106,871  

Unbilled revenue    2,177,088             446,940  

Total current assets  $  15,794,526          9,583,314  

     
Computer equipment, other equipment, leasehold 
improvement and electrical installation 10  229,854     73,873 

Total assets  $ 16,024,380  9,657,187 

     

LIABILITIES     

Current liabilities     

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 11            5,367,829          1,705,333  

Other current liabilities 12           2,360,351          1,691,252  

Deferred revenue                                   -                 27,515 

Total current liabilities  $          7,728,180          3,424,100  

      

Future tax liabilities 15                 46,019               12,126  

Total liabilities  $          7,774,199          3,436,226 

      

Shareholder’s equity      

Share capital 13                               100                   100  

Retained earnings            8,250,081          6,220,861  

Total shareholder’s equity  $          8,250,181          6,220,961  

      

Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity  $        16,024,380    9,657,187 
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Statements of income and retained 
earnings.  
(All amounts in Canadian Dollars, unless otherwise stated) 

 
Notes 

 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

     

Revenue 14   59,107,650  43,928,902 

Other income    30,725  36,513 

Total revenue  $  59,138,375  43,965,415 

     

Employee cost    31,813,929  18,938,733 

Subcontracting expenses    21,895,379  20,297,189 

Total direct expense  $ 53,709,308 39,235,922 

     

Sales and administration expenses   864,870   811,902  

Rent   289,320   333,324  

Professional charges   1,196,886   603,724  

Travelling and conveyance   247,475   87,780  

Telephone charges   33,173   33,333  

Auditor’s remuneration   10,163   10,000  

Foreign exchange (gain)loss    (72,165) 621,525 

Finance cost   - 14,659 

Miscellaneous expenses   26,581  13,231 

Total indirect costs  $ 2,596,303 2,529,478 

     

Depreciation  10  64,469 24,685 

     

Income before tax  $ 2,768,295 2,175,330 

     

Provision for income taxes    705,183   566,751  

Future income tax expenses    33,892   11,527  

Income taxes 15   739,075   578,278  

     

Net income after taxes  $  2,029,220   1,597,052  

Retained earnings, beginning of the year    6,220,861       4,623,809 

Retained earnings, end of the year  $  8,250,081  6,220,861 

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements) 
 
APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

 
 

  
 

Chief Financial Officer: Alekh Gupta  Director : Tina Allan 

   
 

  Director : Harsh Naidu 
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APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

 
 

  

Chief Financial Officer: Alekh Gupta  Director : Tina Allan 

   
 

  Director : Harsh Naidu 

Statements of cash flows    
(All amounts are in Canadian Dollars, unless otherwise stated) 

 
       For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

    

Cash flows from operating activities    

Net income after tax  2,029,220  1,597,052 

    

Adjustments for non-cash items    

Depreciation  64,469  24,481 

Provision for doubtful accounts receivable  - (17,478) 

Future income tax expenses  33,892  11,527 

Unrealized foreign exchange loss          86,896  164,283 

Asset written off  -    204 

    

Net change in non-cash operating working capital    

Accounts receivable         (6,046,502)  99,221  

Other current assets   (43,788)  64,701  

Unbilled revenue   (1,733,352)  (199,176) 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities   3,662,495   136,557  

Deferred revenue   (27,515)  (67,070) 

Other current liabilities  669,228   (34,475) 

Advance taxes (net)  209,314  (216,241) 
Cash (used in) provided by operating activities $  (1,095,643) 1,563,586 

    

Cash flows from investing activities    

Purchase of computer equipment   (220,450)  (52,359) 

Loan given to related party   (3,000,000)  (14,012,700) 

Loan repayment by related party  3,000,000   14,012,700  

Cash used in investing activities $  (220,450)  (52,359) 

 
Cash flows from financing activities 

 
  

Loan taken from related party  -  14,500,000  

Loan repaid to related party  -     (14,500,000) 

Cash used in financing activities $ -    - 

Net foreign exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents   (378,342) (169,492) 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents   (1,694,435)  1,341,735 

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of the year  1,767,800   426,065  

Cash and cash equivalents, at end of the year $ 73,365   1,767,800  
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Notes to financial statements. 
(Amounts are in Canadian Dollars, unless otherwise stated) 

1. Description of business 
 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Ltd. / Infotech Larsen & Toubro Canada LTEE (the "Company") is incorporated 
under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario). The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech 
Ltd., an Indian registered company ("Parent"). The Company is engaged in software consulting and development services. 
 
2. Basis of presentation 
 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared by the management in accordance with Canadian accounting 
standards for private enterprises ("GAAP" or “ASPE”). The financial statements are presented for the year April 01, 2021, 
to March 31, 2022, and for the year April 01, 2020 to March 31, 2021. All amounts are in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
3. Basis for measurement 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on going concern and historical cost basis.  
 
4. Functional and presentation currency 
 
The Company’s functional and presentation currency is the Canadian dollar. 

5. Significant accounting policies 
 
a)  Use of estimates 

 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Management bases the estimates on several factors, including historical experience, current events and actions that 
the Company may undertake in the future and other assumptions that the Company believes are reasonable under 
the circumstances. Estimates are used in accounting for items and matters such as revenues, provision for doubtful 
accounts, useful lives of non-current assets, legal and tax contingencies, employee compensation plans, income taxes 
and investment tax credit. 

The estimates and judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below: 

 
i. Income taxes: Management uses estimates when determining current and future income taxes. These estimates 

are used to determine the recoverability of tax loss carry forward amounts, research and development 
expenditures and investment tax credits. 

 
b) Foreign currency transactions 

 

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the Canadian dollar at the rate of exchange in 
effect at the time of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the year-
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end exchange rate. Non-monetary items are translated at historical rates. All exchange gains and losses are included 
in net income. 

 
c) Revenue recognition 

The Company recognizes revenues across all the revenue streams when they are earned, specifically when all the 
following conditions are met: 

a) Services are provided to customers. 
b) There is clear evidence that an arrangement exists. 
c) Amounts are fixed or can be determined; and 
d) The ability to collect is reasonably assured.        

The Company recognizes revenue for different revenue streams as follows:  
 

• Time and material services: Revenue with respect to time-and-material contracts is recognized as related services 
are performed applying the contracted rates.  

 

• Fixed price contracts: Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized over the life of contract based on a 
percentage completion method. Percentage completion is measured based upon the efforts incurred to date in 
relation to the total estimated efforts to complete the contract. The Company monitors estimates of total 
contract revenue and cost on a routine basis through the delivery period. The cumulative impact of any change 
in estimates of the contract revenue or costs is reflected in the period in which the changes become known. In 
the event that a loss is anticipated on a particular contract, provision is made for the estimated loss.  

 
Deferred revenue represents amounts collected or billed prior to satisfying the above revenue recognition 
criteria. Unbilled revenue represents amounts not billed to the customers but accrued because of satisfying the 
above revenue recognition criteria. 

 
d) Provision for doubtful accounts 

 
The Company follows specific identification method for providing for doubtful accounts. Management analyses 
accounts receivable and the composition of the accounts receivable ageing, historical bad debts, when evaluating the 
adequacy of the provision for doubtful accounts. 
 

e) Financial instruments 

 
Financial instruments are measured at fair value on initial recognition. After initial recognition, financial instruments 
are measured at their fair values, except for loans and receivables and other financial liabilities, which are measured 
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 

The Company has made the following classifications: 
 

• Cash and cash equivalents are classified as assets held for trading and are measured at fair value. Gains and losses 
resulting from the periodic revaluation are recorded in net income. 

 

• Accounts receivables are classified as loans and receivables and are initially recorded at fair value and subsequent 
measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method; and 

 

• Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities and are initially measured at 
their fair value. Subsequent measurements are recorded at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 
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The carrying value of cash and cash equivalent, accounts receivable and accounts payable equals or approximates the 
fair value. 

 

f) Income taxes 

The Company follows asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future income 
taxes are recognized for the future income tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial 
statement carrying values and their respective income tax basis [temporary differences]. Future income tax assets and 
liabilities are measured using substantively enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years 
during which temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled. The effect on future income tax assets and 
liabilities of a change in tax rates is included in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation 
allowance is provided to the extent that it is more likely than not; that future income tax asset will not be realized. 

 

g) Dividend 

 
Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are declared. The income tax consequences of 
dividends are recognized when a liability to pay the dividend is recognized. 

h) Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash on account, demand deposits and short-term investments with original 
maturities of three months or less, are recorded at cost, which approximates market value. 

 
i) Computers equipment, other equipment, leasehold improvement and electrical installation 

 
Computers, furniture and office equipment are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Capital assets are 
amortized over their estimated useful lives at the following rates and methods: 

 

Particulars Useful lives in years 

Equipment Up to 5 years 

Electric Installation Up to 10 years 

Computer equipment Up to 6 years 

Furniture and fixtures Up to 10 years 

Leasehold Improvement Over lease period 

The Company regularly reviews its capital assets to eliminate obsolete items. 
 

j) Impairment of long-lived assets  
 
Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable if the carrying amount 
exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. This 
assessment is based on the carrying amount of the asset at the date it is tested for recoverability, whether it is in use 
or under development. In cases where the undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying amount, 
an impairment loss shall be recognized when the carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable and exceeds 
its fair value. An impairment loss shall be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived 
asset exceeds its fair value. If an impairment loss is recognized, the adjusted carrying amount becomes the new cost 
basis. An impairment loss shall not be reversed if the fair value subsequently increases. 

 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 43E0CA80-A93C-4246-8CDA-5B101188CC54



Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Ltd / Infotech Larsen & Toubro Canada LTEE 
Financial Statements 
March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021 

12 
 

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  
 

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of: 
 

  As at 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cash at bank  73,365              1,767,800 

Total $ 73,365              1,767,800 

 
7. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET  
 
Accounts receivable comprise of: 
 
  As at 

  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Related party accounts receivable           9,274,394           5,300,137  

Trade accounts receivable            4,119,614           1,752,846  

Less: Provision for doubtful accounts               (7,521)              (7,521) 

Total accounts receivable $        13,386,487          7,045,462  

  
The terms and conditions with related party accounts receivable are the same common terms provided to non-related 
parties. The provision for doubtful accounts as on March 31, 2022, is $ 7,521 and $ 7,521 as on March 31, 2021. 

The activities in provision for doubtful debts account for year ended March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021, are as given 
below- 

 Year ended 

 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Balance at beginning of the year           7,521           24,999 

Add: Provision during the year -               - 

Less: Write off/ reversal during the year -  (17,478) 

Balance at end of the year                                                                           $           7,521           7,521 

 
8. RELATED PARTY LOAN 
 
The Company has entered into an agreement on January 20, 2022, with Larsen & Toubro Infotech GmbH, (LTGE) for 
providing loan facility. The loan is repayable within 1 years from the date of first withdrawal of the loan facility. Maximum 
principal outstanding as on any date can be $ 5,000,000 as per the agreement. Accordingly, the Company had advanced $ 
3,000,000 to LTGE & LTGE has repaid the same in full during the year ended March 31, 2022. 

The Company has entered into an agreement on January 1, 2021, with LTI Middle East FZ-LLC, (LTDL) for providing loan 
facility. The loan is repayable within 1 years from the date of first withdrawal of the loan facility. Maximum principal 
outstanding as on any date can be $ 15,000,000 as per the agreement. Accordingly, the Company had advanced $ 14,012,700 
to LTDL & LTDL has repaid the same in full during the year ended March 31, 2021.  
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 As at 

 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Opening principal outstanding - - 

Loan advanced to LTDL  - (14,012,700) 

Repayment by LTDL during the year - 14,012,700 

Loan taken from LTIFST - 14,500,000 

Loan repaid to LTIFST during the year - (14,500,000) 

Loan advanced to LTGE (3,000,000) - 

Repayment by LTGE during the year 3,000,000 - 

Total - - 

 
Interest income on loan advanced to related party for the year ended March 31, 2022, amounted to $ 19,784 (March 2021: $ 
12,720) and interest outstanding as on March 31, 2022, amounted is NIL (March 31, 2021: Nil). Rate of interest as of March 
31, 2022, was 4.15% p.a. (March 31, 2021: 4.10%) 

Interest expenses on loan taken from related party for the year ended March 31, 2022, amounted to $ NIL (March 31, 2021: 
$ 14,659). Rate of interest as of March 31, 2021, was 4.10% p.a. 

9. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
 

 Other current assets comprise of: 
  As at 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Advance to employees           119,811           100,271  

Prepaid expenses             30,848              6,600  

Total  $ 150,659 106,871 

 
10. COMPUTER EQUIPMENT, OTHER EQUIPMENT, LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENT AND 

ELECTRICAL INSTALLATION  
 

 
Computer 
equipment Equipment 

Furniture & 
fixtures 

Leasehold 
Improvement 

Electrical 
Installation Total 

       

As at March 31, 2022       
Gross block as at 
April 1, 2021 86,344 2,315 1,543 21,750 3,475 115,427 

Add: Additions 220,450 - - - - 220,450 

Less: Deductions - - - - - - 
Less: Accumulated 
depreciation (84,645) (2,042) (1,543) (16,768) (1,026) 

          
(106,023) 

Net block as at 
March 31, 2022 222,149 273 - 4,982 2,449 229,854 
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Computer 
equipment Equipment 

Furniture & 
fixtures 

Leasehold 
Improvement 

Electrical 
Installation Total 

As at March 31, 2021       
Gross block as at 
April 1, 2020 32,862 3,437 1,543 21,750 3,475 63,067 

Add: Additions 53,482     53,482 

Less: Deductions  (1,122)    (1,122) 
Less: Accumulated 
depreciation (26,443) (1,802) (1,543) (11,088) (678) (41,554) 

Net block as at 
March 31, 2021 59,901 513 - 10,662 2,797 73,873 

 
Depreciation expense for the year ended March 31, 2022, amounted to $ 64,469 (March 31, 2021: $ 24,685). 

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has written off office equipment with net book value of $ 204 (Gross 
block of $ 1,122; accumulated depreciation of $ 918) 

11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 

 Accounts payable and accrued liabilities comprise of: 
  As at 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Related party accounts payable           3,920,899  1,226,024 
Other accounts payable             192,193  19,700 
Accrued liabilities           1,254,737  459,609 

Total $         5,367,829  1,705,333 

 
12. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Other current liabilities comprise of: 
  As at 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Payable to government agencies             416,779  157,231 

Accrued vacation pay          1,505,662  1,218,108 

Others             437,910  315,913 

Total $         2,360,351  1,691,252 

 
13. SHARE CAPITAL 
 
Share capital comprise of: 
  As at 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Authorized: 
Unlimited common shares 

 
- - 

    

Issued:     

100 common shares  100 100 

 $ 100 100 
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14. REVENUE 
 
Major source of revenue includes: 
  For the year ended 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Software development and consulting service revenue  59,107,650 43,928,902 

Total $ 59,107,650 43,928,902 

 
15. INCOME TAX  
 
 A reconciliation of income taxes at Canadian statutory rates with the reported income taxes is as follows: 

  For the year ended 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Statutory federal and provincial income tax rates  26.50% 26.50% 

Expected taxes on income  733,598 576,462 

Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from:    

Permanent differences  5,720 2,297 

Others  (243) (481) 

Income tax expenses $ 739,075  578,278 

 
 

 
As at 

  March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 

Future income tax liabilities:    

Capital assets  (46,019) (12,126) 

Total  (46,019) (12,126) 

 
16. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
 
The Company sponsors pension arrangements for substantially all its employees through defined contribution plans. The 
Company makes regular contributions to the employees' individual accounts, which are administered by a plan trustee, in 
accordance with the plan documents. The cost of this plan, which is expensed as incurred, amounted $ 1,030,421 for the year 
ended March 31, 2022 [March 31, 2021: $354,081]. 

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
A. Related parties: 
 

a. Larsen & Toubro Ltd., India - Ultimate parent company  
b. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., USA – branch of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., India 
c. L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. - fellow subsidiary  
d. L&T Technology Services Ltd. - fellow subsidiary 
e. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., France – branch of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., India 
f. Larsen & Toubro Infotech GmbH – fellow subsidiary 
g. Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited - fellow subsidiary 
h. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Middle East FZ-LLC - fellow subsidiary 
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B. Summary of transactions with related parties are as follows: 
 
  For the year ended 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Overheads charged by:    

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., USA $ (624,166)  (227,567) 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. $ (649,821)  (555,235) 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., India $ (219,277)  (111,947) 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., France $ (126,039)  (8,360) 

    

Procurement of services recorded as expenses:    

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., India $ (17,816,579)  (18,205,658) 

L&T Technology Services Ltd. $ (6,978) - 

    

Sale of services:    

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., USA $ 33,855,565  25,073,594 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. $ 488,208  645,152 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., India $ 411,623  864,967 

    

Overheads charged to:    

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., USA $ - 133,849 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. $ 96,083  72,177 

L&T Technology Services Ltd. $ 4,647  4,647 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., Australia                                                      $ - 21,844 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., UK     $ 17,572  - 

    

Sale of goods:    

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. $ - 814 

    

Related party loan taken    

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. $ - 14,500,000 

    

Related party loan repayment    

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. $ - (14,500,000) 

LTI Middle East FZ-LLC $ - 14,012,700 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech GmbH $ 3,000,000 - 

    

Related party loan advanced    

LTI Middle East FZ-LLC $ - (14,012,700) 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech GmbH $ (3,000,000) - 

    

Interest charged by:    

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. $ - (14,659) 
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  For the year ended 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Interest charged from:    

LTI Middle East FZ-LLC $ - 12,720 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech GmbH $ 19,784 - 
  
These transactions are under normal credit terms and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of 
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 
 
The following balances are due from (due to) related parties and are non-interest bearing: 

 
In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to financial risks that may potentially impact its operating 
results. The Company employs risk management strategies with a view to mitigating these risks on a cost-effective basis. 
 
Credit risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash equivalents and accounts 
receivable. The carrying amount of assets included on the balance sheet represents the maximum credit exposure. 

The Company has deposited the cash equivalents with a reputable financial institution, from which management believes 
the risk of loss to be remote. 
 

As at March 31, 2022, three customers accounted for 79% [March 31, 2021 - three customers accounted for 91%] of the 
accounts receivable. 

 

Currency risk 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in foreign exchange rates. Company's 62% revenues are denominated in U.S. dollars [March 31, 2021: 64%]. As at March 
31, 2022, the accounts receivable denominated in U.S. dollars amounted to USD 7,805,907 [March 31, 2021 – USD 
4,267,405]. The Company’s cash and cash & cash equivalents denominated in U.S dollars amounted to USD 14,950 [March 
31, 2021 – USD 107,865] 

 

 

  As at 
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Due from related parties    

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., USA          9,257,020          5,299,750  

Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited  17,374                         (60,340) 

    

Due to related parties    

L&T Technology Services Ltd               (1,478)                  387  

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd, India         (3,779,348)        (1,161,771) 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc.  (45,159)  -  

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd, France              (94,914)              (3,913) 

    

Accrued revenue    

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc.  25,069 - 

 $         5,378,564          4,074,113  
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Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities. Accounts payable are primarily due within 90 days and will be satisfied from current working capital. 
 
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments 
traded in the market. The Company manages other price risk through asset allocation and/or maintaining a portfolio that 
is well diversified on both a geographic and industry sector basis. 
 
18. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE  
 
During the year ended March 31, 2022, one of the Company’s major customers provided 58% of total revenues (March 
31, 2021: 57%).  
 
19. RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES: 

 
The extent of the impact of coronavirus (COVID 19) outbreak on operations of the Company will depend on future 
developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, related advisories and restrictions, government actions, the 
impact on financial markets and the overall economy, all of which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted. 
 
20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The Company evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after March 31, 2022, through April 14, 2022 the date 
the financial statements are available to be issued. Based on the evaluation, the Company is not aware of any subsequent 
events or transactions, that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. 
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 Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC 
 

BOARD’S REPORT  
 

Dear Member,  

 

It’s a pleasure in presenting the report and Audited Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 

Particulars 
2021-22 2020-21 

USD  USD  

Total Income 2,993,320 3,096,740 

Total Expenditure 2,963,133 2,783,731 

Operating Profit / (Loss) 30,187 313,009 

Add: Interest Income 3,325 917 

Less: Finance Costs - - 

Net Income 33,541 313,926 

  

2. State of Company Affairs:   

 

The total income for the financial year under review were USD 2,993,320 against USD 

3,096,740 for the previous financial year registering a decrease of 3.34%. The net income 

was USD 33,541 for the financial year under review as against USD 313,926 for the previous 

financial year, registering a decrease of 89.32%. 
 

3. Dividend:  

 
In order to conserve the resources for future growth, no dividend is proposed for the FY 
2021-22.   

 

4. Reporting of Frauds:  

 

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against the Company 

by its officers or employees. 

 

5. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned during the year: 
 

There was no change in the Composition of the Board & Key Managerial Personnel during 

the FY 2021-22. 



 

 

 

 

6. Financial Statements: 

 

The Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification, 

observation or adverse comment.   

 

7. Board’s Responsibility Statement: 

 

The Sole Director of the Company confirms: 

 

a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have 

been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 

b) The Director has selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 

and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 

a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 

year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. 

c) The Director has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the local statutes for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 

and other irregularities. 

d) The Director has prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis. 

e) The Director has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 

of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and were operating 

effectively. 

 

8. Acknowledgement 

 

Your director acknowledges the invaluable support extended by the Government 

authorities in USA and take this opportunity to thank them as well as the customers, 

supply chain partners, employees, financial institutions, banks and all the various 

stakeholders for their continued co-operation and support to the Company.  

 

 
  For and on behalf of the Board 

 

Place:  USA 

Date:  April 14, 2022 
Harsh Naidu    
Director                  
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          SGC & Associates LLP 

    Certified Public Accountants 

 
Independent Auditor�s Report 

 
To Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC
(a New Jersey limited liability company), which comprise the balance sheets as of March 
31, 2022, and 2021, and the related statements of income, comprehensive income, changes 
in members� equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the 
financial statements. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC as of March 31, 2022, and 
2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor�s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are required to be independent of Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our 
audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Larsen & 
Toubro Infotech LLC�s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date 
that the financial statements are available to be issued. 

 

63 Cuttermill Road 
 Great Neck, NY 11021 

Tel � (516)-504-0110 
Fax � (516)-706-0149 
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          SGC & Associates LLP 

    Certified Public Accountants 

 
Independent Auditor�s Report (Continued) 

 
Auditor�s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor�s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, 
including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC�s 
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC�s ability 
to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and 
certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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          SGC & Associates LLP 

    Certified Public Accountants 

 
Independent Auditor�s Report (Continued) 

 
Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements 
as a whole.  The supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility 
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole. 

  
 
Great Neck NY 
 
April 14, 2022 
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March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 445,932             $ 284,923             
Accounts receivable, net 1,339,393          1,337,233          
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 10,471               34,026               

Total current assets 1,795,796          1,656,182          

Total assets $ 1,795,796          $ 1,656,182          

Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 58,310               $ 97,890               
Due to related parties 578,961             417,036             
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 284,101             300,373             

Total current liabilities 921,372             815,299

Total liabilities $ 921,372             $ 815,299             

Equity

Members' equity 874,424             840,883             

Total equity 874,424             840,883             

Total liabilities and equity $ 1,795,796          $ 1,656,182          

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

 
 

  
   See Notes to Financial Statements 
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March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Sales
Net Sales $ 2,993,320          $ 3,096,740          

Total operating revenue 2,993,320          3,096,740          

Operating expenses 2,963,133          2,783,731          

Total operating expenses 2,963,133          2,783,731          

Operating income 30,187               313,009             

Interest income 3,325                 917
Other income (expenses) 29                      -                         

Net income 33,541               313,926             

Comprehensive income 33,541               313,926             

Members' equity, beginning of year 840,883             526,957             

Members' equity, end of year $ 874,424             $ 840,883             

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash flows from operating activities

Net income $ 33,541               $ 313,926             
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash used by operating activities
Interest income (3,325) (917)
Allowance for doubtful debts (15,337) 27,972               
Decrease (increase) in assets 

Accounts receivable 13,177 (1,365,205)         
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 23,555               (31,071)              

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (39,580) 97,890               
Due to related parties 161,925 481,026             
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (16,272)              222,649             

Net cash from operating activities 157,684             (253,730)            

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 3,325                 917                    

3,325 917

Cash flows from financing activities -                         -                         

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 161,009             (252,813)            

Cash  and cash equivalents - beginning of year 284,923             537,736             

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 445,932             $ 284,923             

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

See Notes to Financial Statements 
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NOTE 1 � BUSINESS DESCRIPTION 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech LLC (�the Company� or �LTLL�) is a limited liability company 
organized in the State of Delaware, United States of America. The Company is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, a public limited company incorporated, 
domiciled, and having its registered office in Mumbai, India. The Company was formed to take 
over the work and absorb the staff from a large client of its parent, Larsen & Toubro Infotech 
Limited. The client closed its information technology operations and transferred them to the 
Company. Historically, the Company had always provided services solely to Larsen & Toubro 
Infotech Limited, U.S. branch. However, from the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company 
has started providing services to external clients. The Company�s headquarters are in Edison, 
New Jersey in the United States of America. 

 
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation � The accompanying financial statements of Larsen & Toubro Infotech 
LLC are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards as issued by the 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Interpretations (collectively IFRS). 
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company�s Management on April 
14, 2022. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred.  All 
amounts are stated in United States Dollars. 

Use of Estimates � The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. The important estimates made by LTLL in preparing these financial statements 
include allowance for doubtful accounts, revenue recognition, accrued revenue, accrued 
liabilities, provisions for compensated absences, provisions for employee benefit obligations, 
and other contingencies. The estimates are made using historical information and other relevant 
factors available to management. Management believes that the estimates used in the 
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ 
from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes 
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any revision to accounting 
estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents � LTLL considers all cash which is used for current operations 
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. The Company believes 
it is not exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents. 
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NOTE 2 � SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Accounts Receivable & Allowance for Doubtful Accounts � Accounts receivable are recorded 
at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. LTLL maintains an allowance for doubtful 
accounts for estimated losses inherent in its accounts receivable. In establishing the required 
allowance, management considers historical losses that are adjusted considering current market 
conditions and the customers� financial condition, the amounts of receivables in dispute, and the 
current receivables ageing and current payment patterns. LTLL reviews its allowance for 
doubtful accounts periodically. Past due balances over 180 days and over a specified amount are 
reviewed individually for collectability. Bad debt expense is included in operating expenses in 
the statement of income, comprehensive income, and changes in equity. LTLL charges off 
uncollectable amounts against the allowance for doubtful accounts in the period in which it 
determines they are uncollectable. 

Retirement Benefits � Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an expense 
in the statement of income, comprehensive income, and changes in members� equity in the 
period during which services are rendered by the employees. 

Compensated Absences � Compensated absences are recognized in the period in which the 
employee renders the related service. The provision for compensated absences totaled $43,740 
and $53,827 at March 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively. Such amount is included in �accrued 
expenses and other current liabilities� in the accompanying balance sheets at March 31, 2022, 
and 2021. 

Revenue Recognition � Revenue is recognized only when evidence of an arrangement is 
obtained and the other criteria to support revenue recognition are met, including the price is 
fixed or determinable, services have been rendered and collectability of the resulting receivables 
is reasonably assured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable and is reduced for estimated rebates and other similar allowances. 

Revenue from contracts priced on time and material basis is recognized when services are 
rendered, and related costs are incurred. 

Revenue from services performed on fixed-price basis is recognized over the life of contract 
using the proportionate completion method. 

Revenue from sale of products and licenses is recognized upon delivery when all risks and 
rewards are transferred. 

Other Income � Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. 

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises. 
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NOTE 2 � SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Commitments and Contingencies � Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, 
assessments, litigation, fines, and penalties and other sources are recorded when it is probable 
that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.  
 
Income Taxes � LTLL operates as a Limited Liability Company (LLC) under statutes of the 
Limited Liability Company Act of the State of Delaware. Under those statues, the Company's 
taxable income or loss is distributed to its members, who report their proportionate share of 
income or loss on their respective income tax returns.   
 
LTLL is a single member LLC and Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited is its sole member. A 
single member LLC is treated as a disregarded entity for income tax purposes, and all income 
and expenses of a single member LLC are reflected on the income tax returns of the sole 
member of the single member LLC. Therefore, all income and expenses of LTLL are reflected 
on the income tax returns of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited. Therefore, no provision for 
income taxes has been provided in the accompanying financial statements of LTLL. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments � At March 31, 2022, and 2021, the carrying value of 
cash, accounts receivable, accrued revenue, due from affiliates, prepaid expenses and other 
current assets, accounts payable, due to affiliates, accrued expenses and other current liabilities 
approximates fair value because of the short maturity of these items. 
 
Events Occurring After the Report Date � LTLL has evaluated all events or transactions that 
occurred after the balance sheet date of March 31, 2022, through April 14, 2022, the date these 
financial statements were available to be issued. As of April 14, 2022, there were no adjusting 
or non-adjusting events that were required to be accrued or disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
NOTE 3 � ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET 
 
Accounts receivable as at March 31, 2022, and 2021 represent dues from customers, related 
parties, and accrued revenue of $1,352,028 and $1,365,205, net of allowance of doubtful 
accounts and expected credit losses of $12,635 and $27,972. The accounts receivable at March 
31, 2022, includes an amount of $815,789 due from Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India, a 
related party (see Note 8). LTLL maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts on all accounts 
receivable, based on present and prospective financial condition of the customer and aging of 
accounts receivable after considering historical experience and the current economic 
environment. 
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NOTE 4 � INTEREST INCOME 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Interest income:
Bank interest $ 3,325                $ 917                  

$ 3,325                $ 917                  

NOTE 5 � EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN 
 
LTLL has a 401(k)-retirement plan (the �Plan�) for the benefit of its employees. As allowed 
under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan provides for tax-deferred salary 
contributions for eligible employees. The Plan allows employees to contribute a percentage of 
their annual compensation to the Plan on a pre-tax basis. Employee contributions are limited to 
a maximum annual amount as set periodically by the Internal Revenue Code. At its discretion, 
the Company may match pre-tax employee contributions up to percentage of eligible earnings 
that are contributed by employees. During the years ended March 31, 2022, and 2021, the 
Company contributed $0 and $0 towards the Plan. 
 
 
NOTE  6 � CONCENTRATIONS 
 
LTLL had three customers that accounted for 61%, 27%, 12% and of its sales for the year 
ended March 31, 2022, and one customer that accounted for 92% of its sales for the year ended 
March 31, 2021. LTLL had two customers that accounted for 61% and 33% of its accounts 
receivable at March 31, 2022, and one customer that accounted for 100% of its accounts 
receivable at March 31, 2021. 
 
LTLL had three vendors that accounted for 35%, 33%, and 25% of its purchases for the year 
ended March 31, 2022, and no vendors that accounted for more than 10% of the purchases for 
the year ended March 31, 2021. LTLL had one vendor that accounted for 91% of its accounts 
payable at March 31, 2022, and two vendors that accounted for 83% and 17% of its accounts 
payable at March 31, 2021. 
 
From time to time, LTLL has cash on deposit with financial institutions in excess of Federal 
(�FDIC�) limits. 
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NOTE 7 � EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
Employee benefits comprise: 
 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Salaries $ 1,607,465            $ 1,183,690           
Payroll taxes 118,471               97,155                

$ 1,725,936            $ 1,280,845           

 
NOTE 8 � RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

LTLL had transactions and balances in the ordinary course of business with the following 
related parties during the year ended and as of March 31, 2022, and 2021: 

No. Name of the related party Nature of relationship
1 Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India Parent
2 Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, U.S. Branch U.S. Branch of the Parent

LTLL�s balances with the related parties amounted to the following at March 31, 2022, and 
2021: 
 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India $815,789

($5,825)
($578,961) ($411,211)

Particulars

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, U.S. Branch

Trade Receivables:

Other Payables:
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India
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NOTE 8 � RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

LTLL�s transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business amounted to the 
following for the years ended March 31, 2022, and 2021: 

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of Services:
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India $815,789
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, U.S. Branch $246,821
Purchase of Services:
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India $5,825
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, U.S. Branch $341,754 $84,856

 
 
NOTE 9 � SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 14, 2022, the date these financial 
statements were available for issue. All subsequent events, requiring recognition or disclosure 
through this date, have been incorporated into these financial statements. 
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March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Operating expenses

Salaries $ 1,607,465          $ 1,183,690          
Subcontracting 1,192,166          1,197,526          
Purchase of trading goods 34,858               248,292             
Payroll taxes 118,471             97,155               
Employee recruitment expenses 8,000                 24,000               
Stationery and office expenses 5,000                 -                         
Travel 4,830                 482                    
Allowance for doubtful debts (15,337)              27,972               
Professional fees 3,481                 2,968                 
Other taxes -                         1,002                 
Selling expenses 4,151                 504                    
Bank charges 48                      -                         
Telephone expenses -                         140                    

Total operating expenses $ 2,963,133          $ 2,783,731          

Other income (expenses)
Interest income $ 3,325 $ 917
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 36                      -                         
Other expenses (7)                       -                         

Total other income (expenses) $ 3,354                 $ 917                    
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L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. 

 

BOARD’S REPORT  

Dear Members,  

 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the report and Audited Accounts for the 
year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 

Particulars 
2021-22  2020-21  

CAD  CAD 

Total Income 60,261,238 54,320,131 

Total Expenditure 35,551,453 32,986,562 

Operating Profit / (Loss) 24,709,785 21,333,569 

Add: Interest Income 451,216 166,673 

Less: Finance Costs - - 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 25,161,001 21,500,242 

Less: Tax 6,646,056 6,118,076 

Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax 18,514,945 15,382,166 

Add: Balance b/f from previous year 25,229,787 9,847,621 

Balance available for disposal which directors 

appropriate as follows: 
  

Dividend - - 

Transfer to Reserves - - 

Premium on buyback of shares (16,300,000) - 

Balance to be carried forward 27,444,732 25,229,787 

 

2. Capital & Finance:  
 
On May 4, 2021, the Board of Directors approved buy-back proposal for repurchase of 

33.33% of total equity capital representing 200,000 shares having par value of CAD 

62.5 each from the sole shareholder of the Company (Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., 

India) for aggregate amount not exceeding CAD 28,800,000. The Company bought 

back 200,000 common shares at a valuation of CAD 144 per share and paid CAD 

28,800,000 in cash. Pursuant to buy back, share capital of the Company reduced by 

CAD 12,500,000 and retained earnings by CAD 16,300,000. The Company has 

deducted and deposited to the government, the applicable withholding taxes on 

shares repurchased amounting to CAD 2,445,000. 

 



 

 

 

3. Capital Expenditure: 
   

As at March 31, 2022, the gross fixed assets, intangible assets and Goodwill including 

leased Assets, stood at CAD 98,753,566 and the net fixed and intangible assets and 

goodwill including leased assets, at CAD 18,953,587. Capital Expenditure during the 

year amounted to CAD 4,987,238. 

  

4. State of Company Affairs / Business Prospects:  

 

The gross sales and other income for the financial year under review were CAD 60.71 

Mn. as against CAD 54.49 Mn for the previous financial year registering an increase of 

11.43%. The profit before tax from continuing operations including extraordinary and 

exceptional items was CAD 25.16 Mn. and the profit after tax from continuing 

operations including extraordinary and exceptional items of CAD 18.51 Mn. for the 

financial year under review as against CAD 21.50 Mn. and CAD 15.38 Mn. respectively 

for the previous financial year, registering an increase of 17.03% and 20.37% 

respectively. 
 

5. Dividend:  

 

In order to conserve the resources for future business growth, the Directors do not 

recommend any final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

 

6. Reporting of Frauds:  

 

The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against the 

Company by its officers or employees. 

 

7. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned during the 

year: 
 

No change in the Board of Directors & Key Managerial Personnel happened during the 

FY 2021-22. 
 

8. Financial Statements: 

 
The Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification, 
observation, or adverse comment.   

 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 

9. Directors Responsibility Statement: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 

a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards 

have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material 

departures. 

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 

at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that 

period. 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the local 

statutes for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis. 

e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 

were operating effectively. 
 

10. Acknowledgement 

 

Your directors acknowledge the invaluable support extended by the Government 

authorities in Canada and take this opportunity to thank them as well as the 

customers, supply chain partners, employees, financial institutions, banks and all 

the various stakeholders for their continued co-operation and support to the 

Company.  

 
For and on behalf of the Board 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. 

 

 

Harsh Naidu        Tina Allan 
(Director)         (Director) 
(Edison)                     (Mississauga) 

 
Date:  14-04-2022            
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

To the Shareholder of L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

  

Opinion 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies 

Inc. (“the Company”) which comprise the balance sheets as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021, the 

related statements of income and retained earnings, and the related cash flows for the years then ended and 

notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.   

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 and 

its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting 

standards for private enterprises. 

 

Basis of Opinion 

 

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 

the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 

ethical requirements that are relevant to our audits of the financial statements in Canada, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements  

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises, and for such internal control as 

management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.  

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 

mailto:admin@knavcpa.com
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the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted 

auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 

audit.  
 

We also: 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the Company's internal control. 

 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management. 

 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 

a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related 

disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, 

future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that we identify during our audits.  

 

KNAV Professional Corporation 
 

KNAV Professional Corporation 

Chartered Professional Accountants  

Authorized to practice public accounting by the Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario  

55 York Street, Suite 401,  

Toronto Ontario M5J 1R7 

Date: April 14, 2022 

mailto:admin@knavcpa.com
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Balance sheets 
(All amounts in Canadian Dollars, unless otherwise stated) Notes 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

ASSETS     
Current assets     
Cash and cash equivalents 6  3,948,188 23,313,796 
Demand deposits with bank 7  - 12,500,000 
Accounts receivable, net 9  9,576,776 7,223,116 
Unbilled revenue   185,770 - 
Prepaid expenses 10  2,195,029 1,733,572 
Other current assets 11  816,801 840,900 
Total current assets  $ 16,722,564 45,611,384  
     
Restricted deposits 8  1,000,123 1,000,000 
Loan to related party 12  18,000,000                       - 
Other non-current assets 13  2,863,952 3,331,884 
Computers 14  2,174,129 2,455,445 
Furniture and office equipment 15  18,211 46,342 
Software 16  9,916,139 7,197,815 
Leasehold improvement 17  22,137 44,273 
Customer relationship intangibles 18  - - 
Goodwill   6,822,971 6,822,971 
Total assets  $ 57,540,226 66,510,114 

     
LIABILITIES     
Current liabilities     
Accounts payable 19  1,594,402 1,383,589  
Other current liabilities 20  2,215,409               1,900,545  
Total current liabilities  $ 3,809,811 3,284,134 
     
Future tax liabilities 29  1,285,683                 267,216  
Other non-current liabilities 21  -                 228,977  
Total liabilities  $ 5,095,494              3,780,327  
     
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY     
Share capital 22  25,000,000 37,500,000 
Retained earnings 23  27,444,732             25,229,787  
Total shareholder’s equity  $ 52,444,732            62,729,787  
Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity  $ 57,540,226 66,510,114           
(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

      
    Director: Tina Allan 
CFO: Alekh Gupta     
    Director: Harsh Naidu 
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APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 
      
    Director: Tina Allan 
CFO: Alekh Gupta     
    Director: Harsh Naidu 

 

 

 

Statements of income and retained 
earnings  
(All amounts in Canadian Dollars, unless otherwise stated) 

 
Notes 

 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

     
Revenue 25  60,024,891  54,320,131  
Other income 26  687,563  166,673  
Total revenue  $ 60,712,454  54,486,804 
     
Employee cost   16,092,876  12,271,787  
Subcontracting expenses   8,566,117 6,110,333  
Data centre lease rent   722,271  706,068  
Software purchase annual license fee   2,233,178  1,920,623 
Hardware purchase annual maintenance fee   627,235   460,442 
Other direct cost   181,897  173,051  
Total direct expenses  $ 28,423,574  21,642,304  
Sales and administration expenses   3,252,459   3,389,769 
Premises rent   690,940  843,382  
Professional charges   305,386  449,199  
General repairs and maintenance   32,049  24,253  
Telephone expenses        

      
110,454  108,314  

Auditor’s remuneration   59,000  55,500  
Foreign exchange loss   44,469  10,728  
Miscellaneous expenses   94,704  103,140  
Total indirect costs  $ 4,589,461  4,984,285  
Depreciation and amortization   2,538,418  6,359,973  
Income before tax  $ 25,161,001  21,500,242  
Current income tax 29  5,627,588 5,798,866 
Future income tax expense 29  1,018,468 319,210                            
Net income after taxes   18,514,945 15,382,166 
Retained earnings, beginning of the period 
 

  25,229,787 9,847,621 
Premium on buy-back of shares   (16,300,000) - 
Retained earnings, end of the period  $ 27,444,732 25,229,787 
(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements) 
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APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

      
    Director: Tina Allan 
CFO: Alekh Gupta     
    Director: Harsh Naidu 

 
 

 
Statements of cash flows  
(All amounts in Canadian Dollars, unless otherwise stated) 

  
 

For the year ended 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cash flow from operating activities    
Net income after tax  18,514,945  15,382,166  
Adjustments for non-cash items    

Depreciation and amortization  2,538,418  6,359,973  
Future income taxes  1,018,468  319,210  
Unrealised exchange loss  41,058  8,075 
Net change in non-cash operating working capital      

Accounts receivable, net   (2,354,139)   3,623,062 
Unbilled revenue  (185,770)  633,240  
Prepaid expenses  (461,457)  (388,020) 
Other current assets  24,100 (164,561) 
Restricted deposits  (122) 200,000 
Other non-current assets   467,930  (508,801) 
Accounts payable  204,721  (200,432)  
Other current liabilities  299,787  (86,007) 
Non-current liabilities  (228,977) (207,109) 
Net cash provided by operating activities                                       $ 19,878,962 24,970,796  
Cash flow from investing activities    
Related party loan advanced   (18,000,000) (14,500,000) 
Repayment of related party loan advanced  - 15,190,000 
Purchases of computers  (714,553) (554,754) 
Purchases of furniture and office equipment  (215)  (2,083) 
Capitalization of software  (4,210,390)  (4,049,737) 
Maturity (Placement) of demand deposits with bank  12,500,000 (9,000,000) 
Net cash used in investing activities $ (10,425,158) (12,916,574) 
Cash flow from financing activities    
Buy-back of shares  (28,800,000) - 
Net cash used in financing activities $ (28,800,000) - 
Net foreign exchange difference on cash and cash equivalents  (19,412) (10,037) 
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents  (19,365,608)  12,044,185  
Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of the year  23,313,796  11,269,611  
Cash and cash equivalents, at end of the year $ 3,948,188 23,313,796 
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Notes to financial statements 
(All amounts in Canadian Dollars, unless otherwise stated) 

1. Description of business 
 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. (the "Company" or “LTIFST”) is incorporated under the 
Canada Business Corporations Act. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., 
an India company ("Parent"). The Company commenced operations on January 1, 2011, with the acquisition of the 
information technology operations business of Citigroup Fund Services Canada Inc. (“Citi” or “CFSC”) by the 
Company's Parent. LTIFST is a technology service provider and owns and develops variety of products and services 
used by the financial services marketplace in Canada. 
 

2. Basis of presentation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared by the management in accordance with Canadian 
accounting standards for private enterprises ("GAAP"). The financial statements are presented for the year April 
01, 2021, to March 31, 2022, and for the year April 01, 2020, to March 31, 2021. All amounts are in Canadian dollars, 
unless otherwise stated. 

3. Basis for measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis. 

4. Functional and presentation currency 
 

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is the Canadian dollar. 

5. Significant accounting policies 

Use of estimates 
 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Management bases the estimates on a number of factors, including historical experience, current events, and actions 
that the Company may undertake in the future and other assumptions that the Company believes are reasonable 
under the circumstances. Estimates are used in accounting for items and matters such as revenues, allowance for 
doubtful accounts, useful lives of property, equipment and intangible assets, legal and tax contingencies, employee 
compensation plans, income taxes and investment tax credit. 

The estimates and judgments that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below 

i. Estimated useful lives and valuation of intangible assets: Management estimates the useful lives of intangible 
assets based on the period during which the assets are expected to be available for use and also estimates their 
recoverability to assess if there has been an impairment. The amounts and timing of recorded expenses for 
amortization and impairments of intangible assets for any period are affected by these estimates. The estimates 
are reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations change as a result of technical or commercial 
obsolescence, threats and legal or other limits to use. It is possible that changes in these factors may cause 
significant changes in the estimated useful lives of the Company’s intangible assets in the future. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: BB0F68B6-0005-4904-B85F-BF30F74095C8



L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. 
Financial statements 
March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021 
 

10 
 

ii. Income taxes: Management uses estimates when determining current and future income taxes. These estimates 
are used to determine the recoverability of tax loss carry forward amounts, research and development   
expenditure and investment tax credits. 

 
Foreign currency transactions 

 
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the Canadian dollar at the rate of exchange in 
effect at the time of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the period-
end exchange rate. Non-monetary items are translated at historical rates. All exchange gains and losses are included 
in net income. 
 
Dividend 
 
Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are declared. The income tax consequences of 
dividends are recognized when a liability to pay the dividend is recognized. 
 
Revenue recognition 
 
The Company recognizes revenues across all the revenue streams when they are earned, specifically when all the 
following conditions are met: 
 

a) Services are provided to customers. 
b) There is clear evidence that an arrangement exists. 
c) Amounts are fixed or can be determined; and 
d) The ability to collect is reasonably assured. 
 

The Company recognizes revenues for different revenue streams as follows:  
 

 Application Service Provider (“ASP”) Service: Revenue is recognized by applying the contracted rates on the 
total number of active and inactive fund accounts across all client customer environments.  

 
 Time and Material Service: Revenue with respect to time‐and‐material contracts is recognized as related 

services are performed applying the contracted rates. 
 

 Development Service: Revenue from development service is recognised using percentage of completion 
method. It is measured based upon the time and material efforts incurred to date. The Company monitors 
estimates of total contract revenue and cost on a routine basis through the delivery period. The cumulative 
impact of any change in estimates of the contract revenue or costs is reflected in the period in which the 
changes become known. In the event that a loss is anticipated on a particular contract, provision is made for 
the estimated loss. Revenue recognised under this method is included in unbilled revenue if it is not invoiced 
by the year end. 

 
 License Service: Revenue from sale of license is recognized rateably over the term of arrangement. 

 

 Others: This includes ASP revenue from non-transfer agency modules for which revenue is recognised as 
mentioned for ASP service above, and fixed monthly billing for which revenue is recognised based on time 
elapsed. 

 
Unbilled revenue on the accompanying balance sheet represents amounts not billed to the customers but accrued 
because of satisfying the above revenue recognition criteria. 
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Provision for doubtful debts 
 

The Company follows specific identification method for providing for doubtful debts. Management analyses 
accounts receivable and the composition of the accounts receivable ageing, historical bad debts, when evaluating 
the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts. 
 

Deferred contract costs 
 
Deferred contract costs are costs to fulfil a contract which are recognised as assets and amortized over the term of 
the contract. 
 
Financial instruments 
 

 Measurement of financial instruments 
The Company initially measures its financial assets (such as accounts receivables) and financial liabilities (such 
as accounts payable and accrued liabilities) at fair value, except for certain instruments originated or acquired 
in related party transactions. The Company subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities 
at amortized cost, except for equity investments quoted in active markets and derivative financial instruments, 
which are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in net income. 
 
Financial assets measured at amortized cost include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and loans 
receivable. Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include trade payables and other current liabilities. 
 
Transaction costs on financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost are adjusted against the carrying 
value of the related asset or liability and then recognized over the expected life of the instrument using the 
straight-line method. Transaction costs on equity investments quoted in active markets are recognized 
immediately in the statement of income. 
 

 Impairment 
 
At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there are any indications that a financial 
asset measured at amortized cost may be impaired. If there are indicators of impairment, and the Company 
determines there has been a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future cash flows, 
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to the higher of the expected cash flows expected to be generated 
by holding the asset, discounted using a current market rate of interest, and the amount that could be realized 
by selling the asset at the balance sheet date. 

 
Leases 
 
Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term in 
the statement of income and retained earnings. Certain operating lease agreements provide for scheduled rent 
increases over the lease term. Rent expense for such leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

Income taxes 
 

The Company follows asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future income 
taxes are recognized for the future income tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial 
statement carrying values and their respective income tax basis [temporary differences]. Future income tax assets 
and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted income tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the 
years during which temporary differences are expected to be realized or settled. The effect on future income tax 
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is included in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A 

DocuSign Envelope ID: BB0F68B6-0005-4904-B85F-BF30F74095C8



L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. 
Financial statements 
March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021 
 

12 
 

valuation allowance is provided to the extent that it is more likely than not; that future income tax asset will not be 
realized. 
 

Investment tax credit 
 
The Company is entitled to investment tax credits, which are earned as a percentage of eligible research and 
development expenditures incurred in each taxation year. Income tax investment tax credits related to expensed 
research and development costs are recorded as a reduction of the total expenditure. Income tax investment tax 
credits related to property and equipment are accounted for as a reduction in the cost of the related asset. 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash on account, demand deposits and short-term investments with original 
maturities of three months or less, are recorded at cost, which approximates market value. Restricted cash deposits 
do not form part of cash and equivalents. 
 
Computers, software, furniture, office equipment and leasehold improvements 

Computers, software, furniture, leasehold improvements, and office equipment form part of capital assets and are 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization are calculated on the 
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Class of asset Useful life 
Computers 3 to 5 years 
Acquired software 10 years 
Internally developed software 1 to 5 years 
Furniture    5 years 
Office equipment                                             5 years 
Leasehold improvements                Over the period of lease term 

Leasehold improvements are amortized in a similar manner to other property and equipment. The Company 
amortizes leasehold improvements over the remaining term of the lease. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is recognized in statement of income and retained 
earnings. Certain costs are capitalized for the development or enhancement of computer software used internally 
to process customer transactions. Routine software maintenance and customer support costs are expensed when 
incurred. 

Customer relationship intangibles 

Customer relationship intangibles, which are comprised of customer contracts and relationships acquired, are stated 
net of amortization. Customer relationship intangibles are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated 
useful lives of ten years. 
 
Impairment of long-lived assets 
 
Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable if the carrying 
amount exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. 
This assessment is based on the carrying amount of the asset at the date it is tested for recoverability, whether it is 
in use or under development. In cases where the undiscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying 
amount, an impairment loss shall be recognized when the carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable 
and exceeds its fair value. An impairment loss shall be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a 
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long-lived asset exceeds its fair value. If an impairment loss is recognized, the adjusted carrying amount becomes 
the new cost basis. An impairment loss shall not be reversed if the fair value subsequently increases. 
 
Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the cost of acquired businesses in excess of the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired. 
Goodwill is not amortized but is instead tested for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
an impairment loss may have occurred. In the impairment test, the carrying amount of the reporting unit, including 
goodwill, is compared with its fair value. When the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, a 
goodwill impairment loss is recognized, up to a maximum amount of the recorded goodwill related to the reporting 
unit. Goodwill impairment losses are not reversed. 
 

Investments 
 
The Company has elected to account for its investment of 1% in L&T Infotech S De RL DE CV (“LTIL Mexico”) 
using the cost method. Accordingly, investment is recorded at original cost unless there is a permanent impairment 
in value, in which case the investment will be written down to fair value. Investment in LTIL Mexico amounting to 
CAD 2 has been presented under ‘other non-current assets’ in the balance sheets. 

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following: 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Balances with bank   
In current account 448,188 813,796  
In deposit account 3,500,000 22,500,000 

Total 3,948,188 23,313,796 
 

7. DEMAND DEPOSIT WITH BANK  
 
Demand deposits with bank comprise following: 
 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Demand deposits with bank   

Current - 12,500,000 
Total - 12,500,000 
 

Current demand deposits are demand deposits with the bank maturing within twelve months. The carrying amount 
of the demand deposits represent fair value as on March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021. 
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8. RESTRICTED DEPOSIT 
The Company's restricted deposits include the following:  
 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Fixed deposit with an escrow deposit account 1,000,123 1,000,000 
Total 1,000,123 1,000,000 
 

This long-term deposit has been created as a part of an agreement with a customer along with an escrow agent. As 
per the services agreement with the customer, the deposit may be withdrawn to satisfy any shortfall in the 
Company’s obligation to pay damages in accordance with the provisions of the agreement. This fund can only be 
drawn upon mutual agreement and subject to terms and conditions of the escrow agreement. As on March 31, 2022 
and March 31, 2021, the funds were not invested and lying as cash in an interest-bearing deposit account. 
 

9. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Trade receivables   
Due from related parties 20,569 - 
Due from others 9,556,207 7,223,116 

Total 9,576,776 7,223,116 
 

The provision for doubtful accounts was $Nil as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021. 

10. PREPAID EXPENSES 
 
 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Prepaid expenses, current 2,195,029  1,733,572  
Total 2,195,029  1,733,572  
 
The Company pays hardware maintenance fees and software license fees in advance for which services are availed 
over a period of 2-5 years based on the contracts. These expenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
life of the contracts. Prepaid expenses for which maintenance services will be availed after March 31, 2023 till end 
of the contract are treated as non-current assets. 
  
11. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Deposits 8,940 14,120 
Interest accrued on bank deposits 422 13,706 
Deferred contract costs 492,431 296,258 
Advance tax, net of provision for tax 269,165 455,594 
Dues from related parties 45,843 61,024 
Other assets - 198 
Total 816,801 840,900 
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12. RELATED PARTY LOAN 

The Company has entered into an agreement on July 1, 2021, with LTI Middle East FZ-LLC (“LTDL”) for 
providing loan facility. The terms of the agreement state that, principal outstanding as on any date during the term 
of the loan cannot be more than $ 30,000,000. The interest on loan will be charged per the rates prescribed by the 
Canada Revenue Agency (“CRA”) at the end of each quarter. The average rate of interest for the year ended March 
31, 2022, was 4.14% p.a. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has advanced loan amounting to $ 
18,000,000 and anticipates receiving the outstanding balance beyond a period of twelve months period and therefore 
has classified this as a long-term loan.  

During the previous year, the Company had advanced loan to LTIL Mexico and Larsen and Toubro Infotech 
Canada Ltd (“LTCA”). The said loans were fully repaid during the year ended March 31, 2021.   

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Opening principal outstanding - 690,000 
Loan advanced  18,000,000             14,500,000 
Repayment during the year - (15,190,000) 
Total 18,000,000 - 
 
Interest income for the year ended March 31, 2022, on loan advanced to LTDL, amounted to $414,993 and interest 
outstanding as on March 31, 2022, amounted to $Nil.  
 
Interest income for the year ended March 31, 2021, on loan advanced to LTIL Mexico, amounted to $30,735 and 
interest outstanding as on March 31, 2021, amounted to $Nil. Rate of interest as of March 31, 2021, was 5.00% p.a. 
 
Interest income for the year ended March 31, 2021, on loan advanced to LTCA, amounted to $14,659 and interest 
outstanding as on March 31, 2021 amounted to $Nil. Rate of interest as of March 31, 2021 was 4.10% p.a. 
 
13. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Prepaid expenses 974,039 1,545,034 
Deposits, others 26,760 26,760 
Deferred contract costs 1,696,702 1,760,088 
Other advances recoverable 166,449 - 
Investment in LTIL Mexico 2 2 
Total 2,863,952 3,331,884 
 

The Company invested an amount of $ 2 (representing 1 % of total share capital) in LTIL Mexico on July 20, 2017.  
 
Other advances recoverable represents amount paid to Canadian Revenue Agency (“CRA”) against the notice of 
assessment received for Canadian Pension Plan (“CPP”) assessment. The Company has filed an appeal against the 
notice of assessment. 
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14. COMPUTERS 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cost 10,758,256 10,043,703 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (8,584,127) (7,588,258) 

Total 2,174,129 2,455,445 
 
Depreciation for the year ended March 31, 2022, amounted to $ 995,869 (March 31, 2021 - $933,892). During the 
year, the Company had capitalised depreciation amounted to $ 50,107 (March 31, 2021 - $12,349) under intangible 
assets under development and expensed $ 945,762 (March 31, 2021 - $921,543) to statement of income and retained 
earnings.  
 

15. FURNITURE AND OFFICE EQUIPMENT 
 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cost 966,836 966,621 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (948,625) (920,279) 

Total 18,211 46,342 
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended March 31, 2022, amounted to $ 28,346 (March 31, 2021 - $ 34,022).  
 

16. SOFTWARE 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cost 80,120,721 75,848,251 

Less: Accumulated amortization (70,204,582) (68,650,436) 

Total 9,916,139 7,197,815 
 

Amortization expense for the year ended March 31, 2022, amounted to $ 1,554,146 (March 31, 2021 - $ 3,839,320). 
During the year, the Company had capitalised amortisation amounted to $ 11,973 (March 31, 2021 - $10,299) under 
intangible assets under development and expensed $ 1,542,173 ($3,829,021) to statement of income and retained 
earnings. Out of the total cost mentioned above, $ 4,346,787 (March 31, 2021 - $ 4,026,351) pertains to intangible 
assets under development. 

17. LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENT 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cost 84,782 84,782 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (62,645) (40,509) 
Total 22,137 44,273 
 

Depreciation expense for the year ended March 31, 2022, amounted to $ 22,137 (March 31, 2021 - $22,137). 
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18. CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIP INTANGIBLES 
 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Cost 20,710,000 20,710,000 
Less: Accumulated amortization (20,710,000) (20,710,000) 
Total  - - 
 

Amortization expense for the year ended March 31, 2022, amounted to $Nil (March 31, 2021 - $1,553,250). 
 

19. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Accounts payable   
Due to related parties 795,443 539,606 
Other payables 798,959 843,983 

Total 1,594,402 1,383,589 
 

20. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Indirect tax payable 654,594 588,259 
Provision for employee benefits 1,317,244 1,111,202 
Other liabilities 243,571 201,084 
Total 2,215,409 1,900,545 
 
21. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABLITIES 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Lease equalisation reserve - 228,977 

Total - 228,977 
 

22. SHARE CAPITAL 

 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Authorization   
Unlimited common shares   
Issued: 600,000 common shares issued at CAD 62.5 37,500,000 37,500,000 
Less: 200,000 common shares of CAD 62.5 extinguished pursuant 
to buy-back of shares (12,500,000) - 
Total 25,000,000 37,500,000 
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On May 4, 2021, the Board of Directors approved buy-back proposal for repurchase of 33.33% of total equity 
capital representing 200,000 shares having par value of CAD 62.5 each from the sole shareholder of the Company 
(Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd.) for aggregate amount not exceeding CAD 28,800,000 in accordance with the 
provision 34(2) of Canada Business Corporations Act and By-Law No.1-A of the Corporation. The Company 
bought back 200,000 common shares at a valuation of CAD 144 per share and paid $ 28,800,000 in cash. These 
shares were cancelled post buy-back and were not included in treasury stock. Pursuant to buy-back, share capital 
of the Company is reduced by $ 12,500,000 and retained earnings by $ 16,300,000. The Company has deducted 
and deposited to the government, the applicable withholding taxes on shares repurchased amounting to $ 
2,445,000. 
 

 
23. RETAINED EARNINGS 
 
 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Retained earnings, beginning of the year 25,229,787 9,847,621 
Add: Net income earned during the year 18,514,945 15,382,166 
Less: Premium on buy-back of shares (refer note 22) (16,300,000) - 
Total 27,444,732 25,229,787 
 
24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

In the normal course of business, the Company is exposed to financial risks that may potentially impact its operating 
results. The Company employs risk management strategies with a view to mitigating these risks on a cost-effective 
basis. 
 
Credit risk 
 
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash equivalents and accounts 
receivable. The carrying amount of assets included on the balance sheet represents the maximum credit exposure. 

Cash equivalents consist mainly of short-term investments, such as bank deposits. No asset-backed commercial 
paper products were held. The Company has deposited the cash equivalents with a reputable financial institution, 
from which management believes the risk of loss to be remote. 
 
The Company's accounts receivable is from customers engaged in the fund management sector. As at March 31, 
2022 and March 31, 2021, top five customers accounted for 75% and 81% of the total accounts receivable, 
respectively. 
 
Currency risk 
 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Certain of the Company's purchases are denominated in U.S. Dollars (USD) and 
Great Britain Pounds (GBP). As of March 31, 2022, the accounts payable and accrued liabilities denominated in 
U.S. Dollars amounted to USD 390,483; and in Great Britain Pound amounted to GBP 2,015 [March 31, 2021 – 
USD 53,270, GBP 24,209].  
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Interest rate risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates.  
 
Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial 
liabilities. Accounts payable are primarily due within 90 days and will be satisfied from current working capital. 

 
25. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

 Year ended 
Revenue stream March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Application Service Provider service – Transfer agency 40,647,902 36,308,322 
Development service 13,690,131 9,205,096 
License service - 2,740,489 
Time and material service 1,204,068 1,127,494 
Other services 4,482,790 4,938,730 
Total 60,024,891 54,320,131 
 

26. OTHER INCOME 

 Year ended 

 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Interest income from bank deposits 34,220 119,309 

Interest income from related party loan advanced 414,993 45,394 

Interest income from others 2,003 1,970 

Canada Employment Wage Subsidy (CEWS)* 236,347 - 

Total 687,563 166,673 
*CEWS included in Other Income represents benefits received from CRA in FY 2021-22 towards expenses 
incurred in previous financial year. 
 

27. EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 

The Company sponsors pension arrangements for substantially all its employees through defined contribution 
plans. The Company makes regular contributions to the employees' individual accounts, which are administered by 
a plan trustee, in accordance with the plan documents. The cost of this plan, which is expensed as incurred, 
amounted $ 609,594 for the year ended March 31, 2022. [March 31, 2021: $438,567.] 
 
28. GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE 

In response to the negative economic impact of COVID-19, the Government of Canada announced the Canada 
Emergency Wage Subsidy program in April 2020 (“CEWS”). CEWS provides a wage subsidy on eligible 
remuneration to eligible employers based on certain criteria. During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company 
assessed its eligibility related to CEWS and determined that it qualified for this subsidy. Accordingly, the Company 
applied for and received $ 470,710 for the year ended March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: $ 2,401,178) out of which 
$236,347 is pertaining to expenditure incurred in previous year and accordingly it is included in other income in the 
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current year. Subsidy received during the current year pertaining to expenditure incurred in the current year has 
been recorded as a reduction to the eligible remuneration expense incurred by the Company. 
 
In response to the negative economic impact of COVID-19, the Government of Canada announced the Canada 
Emergency Rent Subsidy (“CERS”), a subsidy for Companies to cover part of their commercial rent or property 
expenses. This subsidy provides payments directly to qualifying renters and property owners. During the year ended 
March 31, 2022, the Company assessed its eligibility related to CERS and determined that it qualified for this subsidy 
and applied for and received the same. The Company has recorded subsidy of $ 128,458 as a reduction to the rent 
expense incurred by the Company during this period. 
 

29. INCOME TAX 
 

A reconciliation of income taxes at Canadian statutory rates with the reported income taxes is as follows: 
 Year ended 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Statutory federal and provincial income tax rates 26.5% 26.5% 
   
Income before tax 25,161,001 21,500,242 
Expected taxes on income 6,667,665 5,697,564 
   
Increase (decrease) in income taxes resulting from   
Non-deductible items  1,285 1,509 
True-up of prior year future tax asset (48,776) 269,117 
True-up of tax provision 42,333 46,984 
Others (16,451) 102,902 
Provision for income taxes 6,646,056 6,118,076 

 
The income tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of the future income tax assets 
and future income tax liabilities were as follows: 
 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Future income tax assets  
Deferred rent   60,671 115,547 
Customer relationship intangible 1,411,567 1,619,883 
Total 1,472,238 1,735,430 
   
Future income tax liabilities   
Computers and software 2,757,921 2,002,646 
Total 2,757,921 2,002,646 
   

Net future tax liabilities  1,285,683 267,216 
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30. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Company has operating leases for its office premises. The annual minimum payments under the operating 
leases are as follows: 

 Amount ($) 

March 31, 2023 1,330,161 
 
 

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A. Related parties: 
 

a. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India - parent company  
b. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., UK – branch of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., India 
c. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., USA – branch of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., India 
d. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited – fellow subsidiary 
e. L&T Technology Services Limited - fellow subsidiary 
f. L&T Infotech S De RL DE CV (“LTIL Mexico”) – affiliate company 
g. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., Poland – branch of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., India 
h. Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd, UK Ltd. – fellow subsidiary 
i. LTI Middle East FZ-LLC – fellow subsidiary 
 

B. Summary of transactions with related parties are as follows: 
 

   Year ended  
  March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Expenses reimbursed by:     
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited $ 586,867 555,235 
L&T Technology Services Limited $ 7,260 8,208 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., USA $ 933  
       
Expenses reimbursed to:     
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited. $ 85,716 72,177 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., India $ 93,851 133,556 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., USA $ 87,313 101,475 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., UK $ - 38,896 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd, UK Ltd. $ 37,559 - 
      
Procurement of goods and services      
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited $ 456,424 645,963 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., India $ 8,013,998 6,008,622 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., USA $ 483,714 488,498 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., Poland  24,278  
    

Sale of services    
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., USA $ 103,290 - 
    

DocuSign Envelope ID: BB0F68B6-0005-4904-B85F-BF30F74095C8



L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. 
Financial statements 
March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021 
 

22 
 

Related party loan advanced    
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited $ - 14,500,000 
LTI Middle East FZ-LLC $ 18,000,000 - 
 

Related party loan repaid    
LTIL Mexico $ - 690,000 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited $ - 14,500,000 
 
Interest income    
LTIL Mexico $ - 30,735 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited $ - 14,659 
LTI Middle East FZ-LLC $ 414,993 - 
    

      
These transactions are under normal credit terms and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount 
of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 
 

The following balances are due to (due from) related parties and are non-interest bearing: 
 
 As at 
 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Accounts receivable   
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, USA (20,569) - 
 (20,569) - 
Other assets   
LTIL Mexico - (198) 
 - (198) 
Dues from related parties (included in other current assets)    
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited  (45,159) (60,340) 
L&T Technology Services Limited (684) (684) 
 45,843 61,024 
Due to related parties   
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, USA 250,497 29,258 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India 492,286 502,437 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Canada Limited 25,069 - 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, UK - 7,911 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd, UK Ltd. 3,313 - 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited., Poland 24,278 - 
 795,443 539,606 
 

Parent guarantee: Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd., India had provided guarantee to one of the customers of the 
Company till January 01, 2021. The obligation of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India was limited in aggregate 
to the amount of $ 70,000,000. As of March 31, 2022, the guarantee has expired. 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: BB0F68B6-0005-4904-B85F-BF30F74095C8



L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. 
Financial statements 
March 31, 2022, and March 31, 2021 
 

23 
 

32. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation adopted in the current period. 
The reclassification has no impact on the previously reported net income and retained earnings. 
 
33. RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES  

The extent of the impact of coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak on operations of the Company will depend on 
future developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, related advisories and restrictions, 
government actions, the impact on financial markets and the overall economy, all of which are highly uncertain 
and cannot be predicted. 
 
34. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Company evaluated all events and transactions that occurred after March 31, 2022, through April 14, 2022; 
the date the financial statements are issued. Based on the evaluation, the Company is not aware of any events or 
transactions, that would require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of L&T Information Technology Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)
Hushunkuaishenzi (2022) No.040

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of L&T Information Technology Services (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. (the Company), which comprise:
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021,the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and notes to the
financial statements.
In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2021, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with The Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with China Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in China, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with China Auditing Standards will always detect a material
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misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

During the process of our audit in accordance with China Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism. We also:

(1) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

(2) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

(3) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(4) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

(5) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared solely to enable the holding company to
prepare financial statements and not to report on L&T Information Technology Services (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. as a separate entity.

Shanghai Shunda Certified Public Accountants Co.,Ltd
Shanghai 200012, P. R. China
15 April 2022
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Note 5 31 December 2021 31 December 2020
（CNY） （CNY）

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1 5,073,175.69 2,160,554.44
Accounts receivable 2 2,339,846.37 3,880,892.73
Advances to suppliers 3 15,600.00 -
Other receivables 4 2,500.00 2,500.00
Other current assets 5 - 89,376.58
Total current assets 7,431,122.06 6,133,323.75

Non-current assets
Fixed assets-cost 6 28,948.98 48,152.58
Deferred tax assets 109,135.47 1,416,332.21
Total non-current assets 138,084.45 1,464,484.79
TOTAL ASSETS 7,569,206.51 7,597,808.54

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Current liabilities
Advances - -
Accrued payroll 7 515,265.79 291,601.91
Tax payable 8 335,855.83 333,824.85
Other payables 9 8,929,513.06 7,246,456.28
Total current liabilities 9,780,634.68 7,871,883.04

Total non-current liabilities - -

Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Paid-in capital(Share capital) 10 1,074,799.00 1,074,799.00
Undistributed profits 11 (3,286,227.17) (1,348,873.50)
Total Equity (2,211,428.17) (274,074.50)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’
EQUITY

7,569,206.51 7,597,808.54
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Note 5 FY2021 FY2020

（CNY） （CNY）

Revenue 12 27,995,645.47 22,731,131.90

Less: Total Operating cost 28,719,638.49 21,927,097.58

incl: Operating cost 13 87,771.70 239,188.00

Business tax and surcharges 14 130,006.29 137,095.16

Selling expenses 7,462.40 6,876.31

General and administrative expenses 28,243,463.98 21,469,342.75

Financial expenses 250,934.12 74,595.36

Gross Profit (723,993.02) 804,034.32

Add：Non-operating income 38,959.58 70,387.42

Less: Non-operating expenses - (116,600.32)

Profit before tax (685,033.44) 991,022.06

Less: Income tax 1,252,320.23 (193,342.33)

Profit for the year (1,937,353.67) 1,184,364.39
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Total attributable
Accumulated to equity holders of

Share capital losses the Company
（CNY） （CNY） （CNY）

Changes in equity for 2021
Balance at 1 January 2021 1,074,799.00 (1,348,873.50) (274,074.50)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (1,937,353.67) (1,937,353.67
Balance at 31 December 2021 1,074,799.00 (3,286,227.17) (2,211,428.17)

Changes in equity for 2020
Balance at 1 January 2020 1,074,799.00 (2,533,237.89) (1,458,438.89)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,184,364.39 1,184,364.89
Balance at 31 December 2020 1,074,799.00 (1,348,873.50) (274,074.50)
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FY2021 FY2020
（CNY） （CNY）

Cash received from sale of goods or rendering of services 31,173,337.09 29,021,675.56
Receipts of tax refunds 181,412.67 -
Other cash received relating to operating activities 9,723.69 60,403.24
Sub-total of cash inflows 31,364,473.45 29,082,078.80

Cash paid for goods and services - -
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 19,566,159.69 14,784,221.82
Payments of all types of taxes 1,359,899.89 4,715,219.64
Other cash paid relating to operating activities 7,282,424.84 8,301,572.84
Sub-total of cash outflows 28,208,484.42 27,801,014.30

Net cash flows from operating activities 3,155,989.03 1,281,064.50

Cash received from disposal of fixed assets ,intangible assets & other
long-term assets

- -

Sub-total of cash inflows - -

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets ,intangible assets & other long-term
assets

- 45,900.00

Sub-total of cash outflows - 45,900.00

Net cash flows from investing activities - (45,900.00)

Cash received from capital contribution - -
Cash received from borrowings - -
Sub-total of cash inflows - -

Cash repayments of amounts borrowed - -
Cash payments for interest expenses and distribution of dividends or
profit

- -

Sub-total of cash outflows - -

Net cash flows from financing activities - -
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH (243,367.78) -
Net increase in Cash and cash equivalents 2,912,621.25 1,235,164.50
Add: Cash and cash equivalents of the year beginning 2,160,554.44 925,389.94
Cash and cash equivalents of the year end 5,073,175.69 2,160,554.44
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1. General corporate information

(1) Company profile

L&T Information Technology Services (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.(“the Company”) is a wholly owned foreign

enterprise incorporated by LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED. The Company was registered at

Shanghai Administration of Industry and Commerce, and obtained the Business License for Enterprise as No.

91310000069392188J on June 28th 2013. The registered capital is USD 175000 and the residential address

for the Company is Room 1317 No. 35 Dingbian Road Jiading Industry Zone Shanghai. The Company has an

approved operating period of 10 years.

(2) The Company' s approved scope of business operations includes Computer software (video, publication

except) design, development, production, sales of own products and provide after sale service, the

commission agent products and computer hardware (excluding auction), enterprise management consulting,

business information consulting, computer information engineering technical consultation and services, to

undertake service outsourcing in system management and maintenance technical support, information

management, software development, data processing, (not related to the management of state-run trade goods;

involving quota, license management of goods, in accordance with relevant state regulations apply; involving

administrative approval, permit to operate).

2. The basis of preparation of financial statements

(1) The basis for the preparation

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Company prepare financial statements

based on actual transactions and events according to the ”Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises -

Basic Standards” and other specific accounting standards, guidelines for the application of business

accounting standards, explaination on corporate accounting standards and other related regulations

(hereinafter collectively referred to" accounting standards for business enterprises ").

(2) Going concern

There is no issues that have significant impact on the Company’s going concern ability.

3. Significant accounting policies and accounting estimates

3.1 The statements of compliance with the Chinese Accounting Standards for Enterprises.

The financial statements comply with the requirements of the Chinese Accounting Standards for Enterprises;

fairly and completely reflect the financial position, operating results, cash flow and relevant information of

the company as of reporting period.

3.2 Accounting period

The accounting period of the company is from 1 January to 31 December in calendar year.

3.3 Operating cycle

The company’s operating cycle is 12 months.

3.4 Functional currency
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The Company uses CNY as its functional currency

3.5 Recognition of cash and cash equivalents

In the cash flow statement, cash on hand and available-to-pay deposits are recognized as cash. Investments

that meet four conditions: short-term (normally matured within 3 months), highly liquid, readily convertible

to known cash, little risk of changes in value are recognized as cash equivalents.

3.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash and deposits with banks. Cash and cash equivalents

are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

3.7 Provision for bad debt of account receivable

(1) Recognition of bad debt:

when one of the following matters occurs, the company shall write off bad debts under the authority approval.

The debtor is declared bankrupt, closed and its liquidation property is insufficient to pay off its debts; The

debtor dies,, and its property or heritage is insufficient to pay off its debts；The debtor is overdue, and there

is conclusive evidence to prove that it has been unable to pay off its debts.

(2) Loss of bad debt

The provision for bad debt shall be accrued by the individual recognition method.

3.8 Fixed Assets

(1) Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets refer to tangible assets that are held for the purpose of producing goods, providing labor service,

renting or business management, and have a useful life of more than one fiscal year. Fixed assets are

recognized when both of the following conditions are met:

a.The economic benefits associated with the fixed assets are likely to flow into the company;

b.The cost of the fixed asset can be measured reliably

(2) Depreciation method

Depreciation of fixed assets is calculated using the straight-line method, and the depreciation rate is

determined based on the type of fixed assets, estimated useful life, and estimated net residual value. If

different parts of the fixed assets have different service lives or provide economic benefits to the company in

different ways, the company will choose different depreciation rates or depreciation methods and make

depreciation separately.

If a fixed asset is leased by a financial lease and the company can reasonably determine that the ownership of

the leased asset will be obtained when the lease period expires, depreciation shall be made within the service

life of the leased asset; if it cannot be reasonably determined that the ownership of the leased asset can be

obtained when the lease period expires, Depreciation is provided for the shorter of the lease term and the

remaining useful life of the leased asset.

The depreciation method, depreciation life, salvage value rate and annual depreciation rate of various fixed

assets are as follows:：

Category
Estimated useful

lives

Estimated residual

rate

Annual

depreciation rate

Office equipments & Electronics 3 0 33.33%
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(3) Recognition criteria and valuation method for fixed assets acquired under finance leases

Fixed assets acquired under finance leases can be recognized if one of the following situations is specified in

the lease agreement signed by the Company and the lessor:

i)The lessor transfers ownership of the assets to the lessee by the end of the lease terms;

ii)The Company has the option to purchase the assets at price which are expected to be so much lower than

fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable that, at the inception of the leases, it is reasonably certain

that the option will be exercised;

iii)The lease terms account for the majority of the economic lives of the assets, even if titles are not

transferred;

iv)At the inception of the leases, the present value of the minimum lease payments amount to at least

substantially all of the fair value of the leased assets.

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to

ensure that the residual values, period of depreciation and depreciation method are consistent with previous

estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of

property, plant and bearer biological.

At the inception of the leases, the Company shall recognize the leased assets at the lower of their fair value or

the present value of the minimum lease payments and long-term payables at the amounts of the minimum

lease payments, and treat the differences between carrying amounts of the leased assets and the long-term

payables as unrecognized finance charges.

3.9 Employee benefits

1、 Accounting treatment of short-term remuneration

During the accounting period in which the employees provide services for the company, the company

recognizes the actual short-term remuneration as a liability, which is included in the current profit or loss or

the cost of related assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a

business combination is their fair values as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible

assets are carried cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The social insurance premiums and housing accumulation funds paid by the company for the employees, as

well as the labor union funds and employee education funds accrued according to the regulations, shall be

calculated according to the provisioned basis and accrual ratios during the accounting period in which the

employees provide services for the company to reach the amount of employee compensation.

For employee welfare costs which are non-monetary benefits, if they can be reliably measured, they are

measured at fair value.

2、 Accounting treatment methods for post-employment welfare

(1) Defined pension plan

The company pays basic pension insurance and unemployment insurance for employees according to the

relevant regulations of the local government. In the accounting period in which the employees provide

services for the company, the company shall calculate the amount payable according to the local payment

base and proportion, confirm it as a liability, and include them in current profit or loss or related cost of asset.
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In addition to the basic pension insurance, the company has also established an enterprise annuity payment

system (supplementary endowment insurance) in accordance with the relevant policies of the national

enterprise annuity system. The company pays fees to the local social insurance institutions according to a

certain percentage of the total salary of employees, and the corresponding expenditures are charged to the

current profit or loss or the cost of the relevant assets.

(2) Defined benefit plan

Based on the formula determined by the expected cumulative welfare unit method, the company categorizes

the welfare benefits arising from the defined benefit plan to the period during which the employee provides

the service, which is included in the current profit or loss or the related asset cost.

The deficit or surplus resulting from the current value of the defined benefit plan minus the fair value of the

defined benefit plan assets is recognized as a net liability or net asset of the defined benefit plan. If there is a

surplus in the defined benefit plan, the company measures the net assets of the defined benefit plan with the

lower of the defined benefit plan's surplus and the upper limit of asset.

All defined benefit plan obligations, including obligations expected to be paid within twelve months after the

end of the annual reporting period for employees providing services, is discounted based on market yield rate

of treasury bond that matches the currency or high quality corporate bonds according to the balance sheet date

and period of the defined benefit plan.

Service costs of defined benefit plans and net interest of net assets or liability of defined benefit plans are

included in current profit or loss or the cost of related assets; changes in remeasurement of net liabilities or

net assets of defined beneficiary plans are included in other comprehensive measures, it will not be

transferred back to profit or loss in the subsequent accounting period. When the originally defined benefit

plan ends, the part originally included in other comprehensive income will be carried over to the undistributed

profit within the scope of equity.

At the settlement of the benefit plan, the difference between the present value of the defined benefit plan

obligation and the settlement price determined on the settlement date shall be used to confirm the settlement

gain or loss.

3、 Accounting treatment for dismissal benefits

When the company cannot withdraw the retirement benefits provided by the dissolution of the labor

relationship plan or the reduction proposal unilaterally, or confirm the costs or expenses related to the

reorganization of the dismissal benefits (the earlier of which), the company shall confirm the liablity from the

dismissal welfare benefits and include it in the current profit and loss.

3.10 Revenues

1、 General principles of revenue recognition for sales of goods:

The company has transferred the major risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the purchaser; The

company does not retain the right to continue management that is usually associated with ownership, nor does

it have effective control over the products that have been sold; The amount of income can be measured

reliably; he relevant economic benefits are likely to flow into the company; The relevant costs that have

occurred or will occur can be reliably measured.

(1) According to the contract or order, the product revenue is recognized when the ownership and

management rights are transferred. After delivery of goods and confirmed by customers, revenue shall be

recognized.
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2、 The basis for confirming the income from the transfer of the right to use assets

When the economic benefits associated with the transaction are likely to flow into the company and the

amount of income can be measured reliably, the amount of income from the transfer of the right to use the

assets is determined in the following situations:

(1) The amount of interest income is determined based on the time and actual interest rate of others using the

company's monetary funds.

(2) The amount of income from royalty shall be calculated and determined in accordance with the time and

method of charging specified in the relevant contract or agreement.

3、 The basis and method for confirming the income from labor services and construction contracts

On the balance sheet date, if the result of labor services can be reliably estimated, the income from labor

services shall be recognized by the percentage of completion method. The completion schedule of labor

service shall be determined by the proportion of cost incurred in total cost.

The total income from labor services shall be determined according to the received or receivable account or

agreement price, except for the unfair received or receivable account or agreement price. On the balance sheet

date, the income from labor services in the current period shall be recognized as: the total income from the

labor services multiplied by the percentage of completion minus the accumulated income recognized in the

previous accounting period；In the same way time, the labor cost of the current period shall be recognized as:

the estimated total cost multiplied by the completion percentage minus the accumulated recognized cost in

the previous accounting period.

On the balance sheet date, if the result of labor services can’t be reliably estimated, the income from labor

services shall be recognized as follows：

(1) If the labor cost incurred is expected to be compensated, the income of labor service shall be recognized

at the same amount, and the labor cost shall also be recognized at the same amount .

(2) If it is estimated that the labor cost incurred can’t be compensated, the labor cost incurred shall be

recognized in the current period, and the income from labor service shall not be recognized.

3.11 Government grants

1、 Classification

Government grants refer to the monetary or non-monetary assets obtained by the company from the

government for free. Government grants are classified into asset-related government grants and

income-related government grants.

The government grants related to assets refer to government grants obtained by the company that are used to

purchase or construct or otherwise form long-term assets. Government grants related to income refer to

government grants other than those related to assets.

The specific criteria for dividing the government subsidy into assets are: The government subsidy document

clearly stipulates that the subsidies used to purchase or construct or otherwise form long-term assets are

government grants related to the assets.

The specific criteria that the company classifies government grants as income-related are: Besides the

government grants clearly defined for the assets-related grants, others are recognized as income-related

government grants.

2、 Confirmation point

Should be confirmed and measured by the the actual amount received.

3、 Accounting treatments

Government grants related to assets shall offset the book value of the related assets or be recognized as
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deferred income. If it is recognized as deferred income, it shall be recorded in the current profit and loss

according to a reasonable and systematic method within the service life of the relevant assets (related to the

daily activities of the company, included in other income; if it is irrelevant to the daily activities of the

company, it shall be included in the non-operating income);

The government grants related to income, which are used to compensate for the related costs or losses of the

company in future periods, are recognized as deferred income, and are included in the current profit or loss

during the period for which the relevant costs, expenses or losses are recognized (related to the company’s

daily activities, included in other income; irrelevant to the company's daily activities, included in

non-operating income) or to offset related cost costs or losses; For grants used to compensate related costs or

losses the company has incurred, it is directly charged to the current profit and loss (related to the company's

daily activities, included in other income; irrelevant to the company's daily activities, included in

non-operating income) or to reduce the cost of related costs or losses.

The policy-based discounted loan interest obtained by the company shall be distinguished in the following

two situations and have accounting treatment separately:

a. The finance allocates the interest-subsidy funds to the loan bank. If the lending bank offers loans to the

company at a policy-based preferential interest rate, the company uses the actual amount of borrowings

received as the booking value of the loan, according to the loan principal and the policy. The borrowing costs

are calculated according to preferential interest rate the loan principal.

b. The government will directly distribute the discounted funds to the company, the company will offset the

relevant borrowing costs by the corresponding discount interest.

3.12 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

In recognition on deferred income tax assets by deductible temporary differences, the limit is amount of

taxable income that is likely to be obtained in the future to offset deductible temporary differences. For

deductible losses and tax credits that can be carried forward in subsequent years, the corresponding deferred

income tax assets is recognized on the limit of amount of future taxable income that is likely to be offset by

deductible losses and tax credit.

For taxable temporary differences, deferred income tax liabilities are recognized except in exceptional

circumstances.

The special circumstances of non-identification of deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax

liabilities include: initial recognition of goodwill; other transactions or events that do not affect accounting

profit or taxable income (or deductible losses) when incurred other than business combination.

When there is a legal right in net settlement, and the intention is to settle or obtain assets in net and repay

liabilities at the same time, the current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities are presented after

net offset.

When there is a legal right to settle the current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities in net, and

the deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are related to the income tax collccted by

same income tax authority on the same or various taxpayer entity, but during the future period when each

important deferred income tax asset and liability is reversed, the involved taxpayer intends to settle the

current income tax assets and liabilities, or acquire assets and pay off liabilities at the same time, deferred tax

assets and deferred income tax liabilities are presented as a net amount after offsetting.

3.13 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

1、 Changes in accounting policies

None.
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2、 Changes in accounting estimates

None.

4. Tax

(1) Main Tax Categories and Tax Rates of The Companies

Taxes Tax basis Tax rate

Value added tax Sale of goods or provide service 6%

Enterprise income tax Amount of taxable income 25%

Individual income tax Amount of taxable income
the company shall deduct and pay

it on behalf of the employee

(2) Preferential Tax Policy

During the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2024, the portion of annual taxable income amount of

a small low-profit enterprise which does not exceed RMB1 million shall be computed at a reduced rate of

25% as taxable income amount, and be subject to enterprise income tax at 20% tax rate，And pay 50% of the

calculated result; the portion of annual taxable income amount which exceeds RMB1 million but does not

exceed RMB3 million shall be computed at a reduced rate of 50% as taxable income amount, and be subject

to enterprise income tax at 20% tax rate.

5. Notes to the main items of financial statement

（Unless otherwise specified, the following monetary units shall be RMB）

1、 Cash and cash equivalents

Items

As at December 31, 2021 As at January 1, 2021

original

currency

Exchang

e Rate

RMB

equivalent

original

currency

Exchan

ge Rate
RMB equivalent

Cash at bank - - 5,073,175.69 - - 2,160,554.44

Including:RMB - - 4,980,545.25 - - 2,062,344.58

USD 14,528.67 6.38 92,630.44 15,051.55 6.52 98,209.86

Total - - 5,073,175.69 - - 2,160,554.44

2、 Accounts receivable

(1) Aging analysis

Aging

As at December 31, 2021

Balance

Proportion of the total

amount of accounts

receivable (%)

Proportion of

provision（%）
provision

Within 1 year 2,339,846.37 100.00 - -

Total 2,339,846.37 100.00 - -
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Aging As at January 1, 2021

Balance

Proportion of the total

amount of accounts

receivable (%)

Proportion of

provision（%）
provision

Within 1 year 3,857,190.57 99.39 - -

1 to 2 years 23,702.16 0.61 - -

Total 3,880,892.73 100.00 - -

(2) Main account receivable

Entities Amount
Proportion of the total amount

of accounts receivable %

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-Singapore 1,041,917.46 44.53

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-USA 512,784.74 21.92

NXP (China) Management Ltd. 329,713.00 14.09

Carrier Air Conditioning Sales &Service (Shanghai) Co.,

Ltd.
240,662.85 10.29

Clarios (Shanghai) Company Management Co., Ltd. 206,306.21 8.82

Total 2,331,384.26 99.64

3、 Advances to suppliers

(1) Aging analysis

Aging

As at December 31, 2021

Balance

Proportion of the total

amount of advances to

suppliers (%)

Proportion of

provision（%）
provision

Within 1 year 15,600.00 100.00 - -

Total 15,600.00 100.00 - -

Aging As at January 1, 2021

Balance

Proportion of the total

amount of advances to

suppliers (%)

Proportion of

provision（%）
provision

Within 1 year - - - -

Total - - - -
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4、 Other receivables

(1) Aging analysis

Aging As at December 31, 2021

Balance

Proportion of the total

amount of accounts

receivable (%)

Proportion of

provision（%）
provision

2 to 3 years 2,500.00 100.00 - -

Total 2,500.00 100.00 - -

Aging As at January 1, 2021

Balance

Proportion of the total

amount of accounts

receivable (%)

Proportion of

provision（%）
provision

1 to 2 years 2,500.00 100.00 - -

Total 2,500.00 100.00 - -

5、 Other current assets

Items As at December 31, 2021 As at January 1, 2021

Advance payment of income tax - 89,376.58

Total - 89,376.58

6、 Fixed assets-cost

(1) Original Value

Item
As at January 1,

2021

Increases

in 2021

Decreases

in 2021

As at December 31,

2021

Office equipment &

Electronics
79,140.61 - - 79,140.61

Total 79,140.61 - - 79,140.61

(2) Depreciation

Item
As at January 1,

2021

Increases

in 2021

Decreases

in 2021

As at December 31,

2021

Office equipment &

Electronics
30,988.03 19,203.60 - 50,191.63

Total 30,988.03 19,203.60 - 50,191.63
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(3) Net Value

Item
As at January 1,

2021

Increases

in 2021

Decreases

in 2021

As at December 31,

2021

Office equipment &

Electronics
48,152.58 (19,203.60) - 28,948.98

Total 48,152.58 (19,203.60) - 28,948.98

7、 Accrued payroll

Items
As at January 1,

2021
Increase Decrease

As at December 31,

2021

Wages payable 291,601.91 19,152,438.10 18,928,774.22 515,265.79

Total 291,601.91 19,152,438.10 18,928,774.22 515,265.79

8、 Taxes and surcharges payable

Items As at December 31, 2021 As at January 1, 2021

Value added tax 73,763.58 88,014.66

Individual income tax 252,907.46 235,924.23

City maintenance 5,357.79 4,942.98

Education surcharge payable 2,296.20 2,965.79

Local education surcharge payable 1,530.80 1,977.19

Total 335,855.83 333,824.85

9、 Other payables
(1) Aging analysis

Aging
As at December 31, 2021

Balance Proportion of the total amount of other payable (%)

Within 1 year 5,667,611.74 63.47

1 to 2 years 2,771,438.51 31.04

2 to 3 years 490,462.81 5.49

Total 8,929,513.06 100.00

Aging
As at January 1, 2021

Balance Proportion of the total amount of other payable (%)

Within 1 year 3,764,287.94 51.95

1 to 2 years 3,482,168.34 48.05

Total 7,246,456.28 100.00
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(2) Main Other Payables

Entities Amount
Proportion of the total

amount of other payable %

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED- India 4,601,556.39 51.53

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-Singapore 3,119,197.91 34.93

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-USA 133,445.82 1.49

Total 7,854,200.12 87.95

10、 Paid-in capital

Item

As at January 1,
2021

As at January
1, 2021

Increase
in 2021

Decrease
in 2021

As at
December 31,

2021

As at December
31, 2021

Registered

Capital (USD)

Registered

Capital (RMB)

Registered

Capital (USD)

Registered

Capital (RMB)

LARSEN & TOUBRO

INFOTECH LIMITED
$175,000.00 1,074,799.00 - - $175,000.00 1,074,799.00

Total $175,000.00 1,074,799.00 - - $175,000.00 1,074,799.00

The above paid in capital there are only $115,000.00 has been verified by Shanghai Jiangnan Accountant
Office Co., Ltd., and a report [nan'shi Yan Zi (2014) No. 014] has been issued on April 17, 2014

11、 Retained earnings

Item FY2021 FY2020

I.Last period undistributed profits before adjustments (1,348,873.50) (2,533,237.89)

II.Undistributed profit at the beginning of the year after adjustments - -

III.Net profit in current period (1,937,353.67) 1,184,364.39

IV.Distributed profit - -

V. Internal convert within Equity - -

VI.Closing undistributed profits (3,286,227.17) (1,348,873.50)

12、 Revenue

Item FY2021 FY2020

Consulting service 27,995,645.47 22,731,131.90

Total 27,995,645.47 22,731,131.90

13、 Operating cost

Item FY2021 FY2020

Subcontracting-onsite service fee 87,771.70 239,188.00

Total 87,771.70 239,188.00
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14、 Business tax and surcharges

Item FY2021 FY2020

City maintenance 68,813.47 68,022.62

Educational surtax 36,715.70 40,779.51

Local education surcharges 24,477.12 27,099.73

Stamp duty - 1,193.30

Total 130,006.29 137,095.16

6. Related parties and related parties transactions

(Unless otherwise specified, all the amounts are in CNY)

1、 Significant related party transactions

(1) Related party relationships

Name of entity Relationship with the Company

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-India Parent

L&T Technology Services Limited Controlled by the same ultimate party

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-Singapore Controlled by the same ultimate party

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-USA Controlled by the same ultimate party

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-UK Controlled by the same ultimate party

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-Australia Controlled by the same ultimate party

(2) Receivables and payables balances between related parties

Name of entity Item Amount

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-USA Accounts receivable 512,784.74

L&T Technology Services Limited Accounts receivable (99,459.08)

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-Singapore Accounts receivable 1,041,917.46

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-USA Other payables 133,445.82.

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED- India Other payables 4,601,556.39

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-UK Other payables 520.70

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED-Singapore Other payables 3,119,197.91

7. Event subsequent to the reporting period

There is no event subsequent to the reporting period.
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BOARD’S REPORT  

Dear Members,  

 

The Sole Director have pleasure in presenting the Annual Report and Audited Accounts for the year 

ended 31st March 2022. 

 

1. Financial Highlights:  

Particulars 
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 

EUR EUR 

Total Income 2,074,411.74 2,651,363.92 

Total Expenditure 2,065,161.30 2,737,719.41 

Operating Profit / (Loss) 9,250.44 (86,355.49) 

Add: Interest Income - - 

Less: Finance Costs 15,753.16 (17,465.96) 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax 25,003.60 (103,821.45) 

Less : Tax - - 

Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax 25,003.60 (103,821.45) 

Add: Balance b/f from previous year 58,436.61 162,258.06 

Balance available for disposal which 

directors appropriate as follows: 
- 

 

Dividend - - 

Transfer to Reserves - - 

Balance to be carried forward 83,440.21 58,436.61 

 

2. Capital & Finance:  
 
During the year under review, the Company did not allot any equity / preference shares.  

 

3. Capital Expenditure: 
   

As at 31st March 2022, there were no fixed tangible and intangible assets including leased 
assets. 

 

4. State of Company Affairs:  

 

The total income for the financial year under review was EUR 2,074,411.74 as against EUR 

2,651,363.92 for the previous financial year registering a decrease of 21.76%. The profit 

before tax and profit after tax was of EUR 25,003.60 for the financial year under review as 

against loss of EUR (103,821.45) for the previous financial year, registering an increase of 

124.08%. 

 



 

 

 

 

5. Dividend:  

 

The Director do not propose the payment of any dividend during the year. 

 

6. Reporting of Frauds: 

 

The Auditor’s of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against the Company 

by its officers or employees. 
 

7. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned during the year: 

 

There is no change in the composition of Board & Key Managerial Personnel during the FY  

2021-22.  

 

8. Financial Statements: 

 

The Auditor’s report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification, observation or 

adverse comment.  

 

9. Auditors: 

 

M/s LuqueVelasco auditores S.L. are the auditor of the Company. They will continue to be 

auditor of the Company for the ensuing financial year. 

 

10. Directors Responsibility Statement: 

 

The Sole Director of the Company confirms: 

 

a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b) The Director has selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true 

and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 

and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period; 

c) The Director has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the local statutes for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 



 

 

 

d) The Director has prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; 

e) The Director has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of 

all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and were operating 

effectively. 

 

11. Acknowledgement 

 

Your Director acknowledge the invaluable support extended by the government authorities 

in Spain and take this opportunity to thank them as well as the customers, supply chain 

partners, employees, Financial Institutions, Banks and all the various stakeholders for their 

continued co-operation and support to the Company.  

 

L&T Information Technology Spain SL 

                                                                                                      For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 

                     Mr. Sudhir Chaturvedi 

                                              Director 

  
Date : May 26, 2022 

 Place : UK      
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Balance Sheet for the year ended 31st march 2022 
(Expressed in euros) 
 

    

BALANCE SHEET - ASSETS    

Description Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

    

   NON CURRENT ASSETS 10 72.351,99 72.352,28 

         Deferred Tax Assets  72.351,99 72.352,28 

   CURRENT ASSETS                     620.903,31 641.558,17 

         Trade Debtor and other accounts receivable 4,6 459.510,53 311.091,05 

            Customers for sales and   409.997,05 298.657,39 

                Short-Term customers  409.997,05 12.433,66 

            Other Debtors  49.513,48 - 

      Cash and cash equivalents 8 161.392,78 330.467,12 

   TOTAL  ASSETS  693.255,30 713.910,45 

    

BALANCE SHEET - NET EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Description Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

    

   NET EQUITY  133.440,21 108.436,61 

      Net Equity  133.440,21 108.436,61 

         Share Capital 9 50.000,00 50.000,00 

            Share Capital  50.000,00 50.000,00 

         Reserves 9 394.976,87 394.976,87 

            Reserves  394.976,87 394.976,87 

        Retain earnings  -336.540,26 -232.718,81 

        Result for the period 3 25.003,60 -103.821,45 

    

   CURRENT LIABILITIES  559.815,09 605.473,84 

         Short term debts  - - 

            Other short term debts  - - 

         Current debt with Group entities 7,12 404.004,81 501.320,37 

         Other payables 4,7 155.810,28 169.667,77 

             Suppliers, Group companies  4.138,74 169.667,77 

               Short term suppliers, Group companies  4.138,74 - 

            Other creditors  151.671,54 169.667,77 

        Short term accruals  - -65.514,30 

   TOTAL NET EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  693.255,30 713.910,45 

 
The attached notes 1 to 17 are an integral part of these Annual Accounts. 

 
Mr. SUDHIR CHATURVEDI     
Id number: Y3650220L 
Signing as:   Sole Director 
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Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st march 2022 
(Expressed in euros) 
 
 
Descripción Notes 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

    

      Net Turnover 11 2.074.411,74 2.651.363,92 

      Purchases 11 -1.355.274,77 -1.683.396,23 

      PERSONNEL EXPENSES 11 -657.407,00 -846.107,67 

         Salaries and wages  -502.088,02 -672.488,12 

         Social Security payable by the company  -144.364,17 -163.660,73 

         Employee benefits expense  -10.954,81 -9.958,82 

      External Services 11 -52.479,53 -208.215,51 

   Operating result  9.250,44 -86.355,49 

      Financial expenses  -990,02 - 

         From debts with the group  -666,44 - 

         From debts with third parties  -323,58 - 

      Exchange losses  16.743,18 -17.465,96 

   Financial result  15.753,16 -17.465,96 

   Result before taxes  25.003,60 -103.821,45 

      Corporate income tax  - - 

   Result from continued operations 10 25.003,60 -103.821,45 

   Result from the period 3 25.003,60 -103.821,45 

    

 The attached notes 1 to 17 are an integral part of these Annual Accounts. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. SUDHIR CHATURVEDI     
Id number: Y3650220L 
Signing as:   Sole Director 
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1. Activity of the Company 

1.1. The details of the Company are as follows:  

VAT number: B87472072 
Company Name: L&T INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SPAIN, S.L. 

Address: Pº CASTELLANA 81 
Post Code: 28046 

City: MADRID 
Region: MADRID 

1.2. The company’s social object and main activities are defined as follows:  

Corporate Purpose 

The core business is to provide IT services, including application development, implementation, 
systems integration, application maintenance, testing and support services. LTI resources enable 
our clients to improve the effectiveness of their business and technology operations and deliver 
value to their customers, employees, and shareholders. 

All those activities for which the law requires special requirements that does not meet the 
Company are excluded. If the laws demand it for the exercise of any of the activities a 
professional qualification, authorization or registration in special registers, shall be exercised by 
the person holding that title or may not be initiated until have been met administrative 
requirements. 

2. Basis of presentation of the annual accounts 

2.1. Faithful image: 
The abbreviated annual accounts, composed of the balance sheet, the profit and loss account and 
the report composed of notes 1 to 17, have been prepared from the accounting records, having 
applied the legal provisions in force in accounting matters, specifically, the General Accounting 
Plan approved by Royal Decree 1514/20 07, of 16 November 2007, and its amendments 
approved by Royal Decree 1159/2010, of 17 September, by Royal Decree 602/2016, of 2 
December, and by Royal Decree 1/2021, of 12 January, in order to show the faithful image of the 
patrimony, of the financial situation, of the results. 
All figures in the report are expressed in euros. 
The abbreviated annual accounts formulated by the directors will be submitted for approval by 
the General Shareholders' Meeting, and it is estimated that they will be approved without any 
modification. 

2.2. Accounting principles: 

The abbreviated annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with the mandatory 
accounting principles. There is no accounting principle that, its effect being significant, has 
ceased to apply. 

2.3. Critical aspects for valuations and estimates of uncertainty: 

a) There are no changes in any accounting estimate that are significant and could affect the current 
year 
or future years. 

b) The company is not aware of uncertainties that may bring doubts about the possibility of the 
company to continue operating normally. 

2.4. Comparison of information: 

The period closed on 31st march 2022 is comparable to the previous period closed on 31st march 
2021. 
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Royal Decree 1/2021, of 12 January, has modified the NRVª 9 of financial instruments and the 
NRVª 14 of income from sales and provision of services of the General Accounting Plan approved 
by Royal Decree 1514/2007, of 16 November 2007. The Second and Third Transitional Provisions 
of said Royal Decree establish the transitional rules of registration and valuation, to be applied on 
the date of first application, for financial instruments and the Fifth Transitory Provision, the 
transitional rules of registration and valuation to income from sales and provision of services. 
These provisions, as an exception to the general criterion established by the NRV 22ª of changes 
in accounting criteria, errors and accounting estimates allow not to re-express the comparative 
figures presented in these annual accounts. That is why, for the purposes of comparability of the 
figures, the impacts of application for the first time of these modifications must be considered. 

2.5. Items reflected in two or more classifications 

No items have been observed as being registered in two or more balance sheet classifications.  

2.6. Changes in accounting policies 

There have been no significant changes in accounting criteria compared to the criteria applied in 
previous year. 

2.7. Correction of errors 

When the attached annual accounts were prepared no significant errors were detected.  

2.8. Running company 

There is no uncertainties regarding the normal activity of the Company which could imply a breach 
of the going concern principle. 

 

3. Distribution of the result 

3.1. The proposal for the distribution of results that the directors submit for the approval of the 
General Shareholders' Meeting is as follows: 

 
DISTRIBUTION BASE 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

Result from P&L account 25.003,60 -103.821,45 
Remnant 0,00 0,00 
Voluntary Reserves 0,00 0,00 
Other reserves 0,00 0,00 
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION BASE 25.003,60 -103.821,45 

 

APPLICATION  31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

Legal reserve 0,00 0,00 
Especial reserve 0,00 0,00 
Voluntary reserve 0,00 0,00 
Dividends 0,00 0,00 
Carried forward losses 25.003,60 -103.821,45 
Remnant and other applications 0,00 0,00 
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION BASE 25.003,60 -103.821,45 

 

3.2. Distribution of interim dividends 

No distribution of dividends charged to the results of the year has been decided. 
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4. Accounting and valuation policies 

The main accounting and valuation policies used to prepare the annual accounts are as follows: 

4.1. Financial instruments 

a) The company has acknowledged a financial instrument on its balance sheet when it has become 
a part of the contract or legal business in accordance with the provisions of the same.  
Instruments of equity of other companies or contractual rights to receive cash or another 
financial asset have been considered as financial assets consist of cash. Contractual rights to 
exchange assets or financial liabilities with others in potentially favourable conditions have 
also been. 

 

For valuation purposes, the financial assets of the Company are classified as follows: 

-Financial assets at amortized cost: this category of financial assets includes on the one 
hand, trade receivables, arising from the sale of goods and provision of services for trade 
operations of the company, and on the other hand, other financial assets not being equity 
instruments or derivatives, they have no commercial origin, and their charges are fixed or 
determinable amount. Financial assets included in this category are initially valued at cost, 
which equals the fair value of the consideration paid plus transaction costs. 

 

b) The financial instruments are classified as financial liabilities, when they have been for the 
company an obligation contractual, direct or indirect, to deliver cash or another financial asset, 
or of exchanging assets or financial liabilities with others in potentially unfavourable 
conditions, or that gives the holder the right to demand from the issuer their rescue on a date 
and for a specified amount.  

The financial liabilities, for the purposes of its assessment, been classified in the following 
categories: 

-Financial liabilities at amortized cost: they have been included as such, the amounts owed 
by commercial operations, which originated in the purchase of goods and services by the 
company trafficking operations, and debits by non-commercial operations, which not being 
derivative instruments, do not have sales origin. These financial liabilities have been valued 
initially at value reasonable, and subsequently, at their amortized cost. 

4.2. Corporation Tax 

In general, it recognized a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences, unless these 
have arisen from the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial recognition of an asset or liability 
in a transaction that is not a combination of business and also affects neither the accounting profit 
nor taxable income or investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint always business and when 
the investor has been able to control the timing of the reversal of the difference and also have been 
likely that such difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets, in accordance with the principle of prudence, have been recognized as such in 
so far as it has been likely that the company has disposed of future taxable profits that allow the 
application of these assets. If the above condition is met, generally it has been considered a deferred 
tax asset if: there have been deductible temporary differences, rights to offset in subsequent years, 
tax losses and deductions and other tax benefits not used that have been pending fiscally apply. 

Assets and deferred tax liabilities are valued as the expected rates of tax at the time of reversal, as 
the legislation has been in force or approved and pending publication at the close of the year, and 
according to the form that is planned rationally recover or settle the asset or liability. 

4.3. Income and expenses 

Revenue is recognized as a result of an increase in the resources of the company, and where the 
amount has been reliably determined. Expenses have been recognized as a result of dwindling 
resources of the company, and where the amount has also been able to assess or estimate reliably. 
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Revenues from services are recognized when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated 
reliably, considering the percentage of completion at the year-end date. Only been posted income 
from the provision of services with the following conditions: when the amount of revenue has been 
reliably measured, provided the company receives profits or income from the transaction, and this 
transaction has been valued at close exercise reliably, and finally when the costs incurred in the 
transaction and the remaining to be incurred have been measured reliably. 

4.4. Provisions and contingencies  

The company has recognized as provisions liabilities that fulfil the definition and criteria for 
accounting records contained in the conceptual framework of accounting, have been indeterminate 
with respect to their amount or the date they will be cancelled. Provisions have been determined 
by a legal, contractual provision or for an obligation implied or tacit.  

Provisions have been valued at the date of closure of the exercise by the present value of the best 
possible estimate of the amount needed to cancel or transfer to a third party the obligation, 
registering settings that have emerged for the update of the provision as a financial expense as they 
have been earning. In the case of provisions with maturity exceeding the year not carried out any 
type of discount. 

 

5. Tangible and Intangible Assets and Real Estate investments 

5.1. Changes in tangible, intangible Assets and Real Estate investments 

No tangible or intangible assets have been registered in the Company during the financial year 
2021-2022. 

 
 

6. Financial Assets 

6.1. Changes in Financial assets  

The movements in each category of financial assets following the accounting and valuation policies 
established in point 4.1 above (except for investments in group companies) can be summarized in the 
following table: 

a) Long Term financial assets except for investment in equity of group and associated entities: 
nothing has been registered during 2021-2022. 

b) Short Term financial assets except for investment in equity of group and associated entities: 
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31/03/2022 

Equity instruments 
Debt Based 
instruments 

Credits, derivatives 
and other 

TOTAL 

Trade and other 
receivables 0,00 0,00 442.233,31 442.233,31 

Trade receivables 0,00 0,00 409.997,05 409.997,05 

Other receivables 0,00 0,00 32.236,26 32.236,26 

Cash and cash equivalents 0,00 0,00 161.392,78 161.392,78 

TOTAL 0,00 0,00 603.626,09 603.626,09 

 

 31/03/2021 
 

Equity instruments 
Debt Based 
instruments 

Credits, derivatives 
and other 

TOTAL 

Trade and other 
receivables 0,00 0,00 311.091,05 311.091,05 

Trade receivables 0,00 0,00 311.091,05 311.091,05 

Other receivables 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 

Cash and cash equivalents 0,00 0,00 330.467,12 330.467,12 

TOTAL 0,00 0,00 641.558,17 641.558,17 

 

Credits with Public Administrations are not included in this classification because they are not considered 
financial instruments. 

 
 

7. Financial Liabilities 

7.1. Changes in Financial Liabilities. 

The movements in each of the financial liabilities categories following the accounting and 
valuation policies described in point 4.1 of these Notes to the Annual Accounts are summarized 
as follows: 

a) Long Term financial liabilities: no long-term financial liabilities have been registered. 
 

  

b) Short Term financial liabilities: 
 

 
31/03/2022 

Debts with credit 
entities 

Bonds and others 
Derivatives and 

others 
TOTAL 

Debts with group and associate comp. 0,00 0,00 404.004,81 404.004,81 

Other payables 0,00 0,00 57.094,38 57.094,38 

Suppliers, Group companies 0,00 0,00 4.138,74 4.138,74 

Other creditors 0,00 0,00 52.955,64 52.955,64 

TOTAL 0,00 0,00 461.099,19 461.099,19 
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31/03/2021 

Debts with credit 
entities 

Bonds and others 
Derivatives and 

others 
TOTAL 

Debts with group and associate comp. 0,00 0,00 501.320,37 501.320,37 

Trade and other payables 0,00 0,00 71.473,29 71.473,29 

Suppliers 0,00 0,00 0,00 0,00 

Other creditors 0,00 0,00 71.473,29 71.473,29 

TOTAL 0,00 0,00 572.793,66 572.793,66 

 

Credits with Public Administrations are not included in this classification because they are not considered 
financial instruments. 

 

8. Cash and Cash equivalents. 

At the closing of period 2021-2022 the balance of cash and cash equivalents amounts to 161.392,78 € 
corresponding to the bank account with which the company operates. 
 

9. Net Equity and Shareholders’ Funds 

9.1.  Share Capital 
 
At the closing of period 2021-2022 the share capital of the Company amounts to 50.000€ divided in 50.000 
shares of 1 Euro face value each. They are correlative numbered from 1 to 50.000, both included, all the 
shares are fully subscribed and paid.  
 
The sole shareholder at the closing of the period is the Company Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited.  
 
 

9.2   Legal Reserve 
 
According to the Companies Act Capital, a figure must be equal to 10% of annual profits to the legal reserve 
until it reaches at least 20% of the share capital. The legal reserve can be used to increase capital in the part of 
the balance exceeding 10% of the increased capital. Except as mentioned above, while not exceeding 20% of 
capital, it can only be used to offset losses, provided that sufficient other reserves available for this purpose. 
 

10. Tax situation 

10.1  Corporation Tax: 

The Company files an annual return for corporate income tax purposes. The profits, determined in 
accordance with tax legislation, are subject to a tax of 25% on the taxable base. Certain deductions 
may be made from the resulting tax liability. 

Due to the different treatment permitted by tax legislation for certain transactions, the accounting 
profit differs from taxable income. The following is a reconciliation between the accounting profit and 



L&T INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SPAIN, S.L.  Period: 2021-2022 
                                     

 

 Page 8 
 
 
 

 

the taxable profit that the Company expects to declare after the appropriate approval of the annual 
accounts: 

   

31/03/2022 

Concept Amount 

Proffit & Loss balance 25.003,60 

Income tax expense 0,00 

Permanent Adjustments 757,65 

Temporary Adjustments -32.041,53 

Tax loss carry forwards applied in 
current period 

0,00 

Taxable base (Tax result) -6.280,28 

Tax rate 25,00% 

Tax amount 0,00 

Instalments and withheld amounts 0,00 

Amount Payable 0,00 

 

31/03/2021 

Concept Amount 

Proffit & Loss balance -103.821,45 

Income tax expense 0,00 

Permanent Adjustments 0,00 

Temporary Adjustments 0,00 

Tax loss carry forwards applied in current period 0,00 

Taxable base (Tax result) -103.821,45 

Tax rate 25,00% 

Tax amount 0,00 

Instalments and withheld amounts 0,00 

Amount Payable 0,00 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities: 

As of march 31, 2022 and 2021, the deferred tax asset is composed of: 

 

Concepto Base Quota 

Negative tax bases 2017-2018 96.237,16 €  24.059.29€ 

Negative tax bases 2018-2019 173.144,49 € 43.286.12 € 

Other concepts 20.026,31€ 5.006,58 € 

TOTAL: 289.407,96€ 72.351,99 € 

 

Tax Loss carry forwards: 

The Company has negative tax bases pending compensation as mentioned below: 
 

TAX LOSSES Generated Compensated 
Pending to 
compensate 

2017-2018 96.237,16 € 0,00 € 96.237,16 € 

2018-2019 173.144,49 € 0,00 € 173.144,49 € 

2019-2020 24.954,03 € 0,00 € 24.954,03 € 

2020-2021 6.280,28 € 0,00 € 6.280,28 € 

TOTAL: 300.615,96 € 0,00 € 300.615,96 € 

 
 

10.2  Other balances with Public Administrations 

The information related to the balances with Public Administrations at the closing dates are as follows: 

 

31/03/2022 

Tax 
Debit 

Balance 
Credit 

Balance 

VAT 17.277,22 74.499,92 

Social Security 0,00 14.121,93 

Deferred Tax 72.351,99 0,00 

Withholdings 0,00 10.094,05 

TOTAL 89.629,21 98.715,90 

 
31/03/2021 

Tax 
Debit 

Balance 
Credit 

Balance 

VAT 0,00 72.566,96 

Social Security 0,00 14.227,97 

Deferred Tax 72.352,28 0,00 

Withholdings 0,00 11.399,55 

TOTAL 72.352,28 98.194,48 
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Years pending verification and inspection actions: 
 
As established by current legislation, taxes cannot be considered definitively settled until the returns 
submitted have been inspected by the tax authorities or the four-year statute of limitations has elapsed. 
At the end of the 2021-2022 financial year, the Company has the 2016-2017 and subsequent financial 
years open for inspection for Corporation Tax and the 2017-2018 financial years for the other 
applicable taxes. 
 
The Directors of the Company consider that the liquidations of the aforementioned taxes have been 
properly carried out, therefore, even in the event of discrepancies in the current regulatory 
interpretation due to the tax treatment granted to the operations, the eventual resulting liabilities, in 
the event if materialized, they would not significantly affect the attached annual accounts. 

11. Income and expenses  

The movements during the current and previous periods in the income and expenses accounts are 
summarised below: 

 
Detail of the profit and loss account 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

Turnover for the period 2.074.411,74 2.651.363,92 

1. Services rendered by related parties -1.355.274,77 -1.683.396,23 

2. Raw materials consumption 0,00 0,00 

  a) Purchases 0,00 0,00 

  b) Stock variation 0,00 0,00 

3. Other operating expenses -52.479,53 -205.215,51 

  a) Losses and impairments corresponding to trade 0,00 0,00 

  b) Other expenses -52.479,53 -208.215,51 

4. Personnel expenses -657.407,00 -846.107,67 

5. Other results 0,00 0,00 

 

12. Operations with related parties 

The detail of the transactions with related parties during the period 2021-2022 is as follows:  

 

Entity Services rendered Amount 
L&T Infotech Limited Purchase of services -1.311.128,00 

L&T Infotech Limited 
Overheads charged by 
parent 

-9.154,00 

L&T Infotech Limited 
Overheads charged to 
parent 

514.466,00 

L&T Infotech Subsidiary Interest paid -666,00 

L&T Infotech Subsidiary 
Overheads charged by other 
subsidiaries 

-43.806,00 

L&T Infotech Subsidiary 
Overheads charged by other 
subsidiaries 

11.628,00 

TOTAL  -838.660,00 
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The balances as at 31st march 2022 with related parties is the following:  

 

Entity Debit Balance 
Credit 

Balance 
L&T Infotech Limited 0,00 404.004,81 

L&T Infotech Subsidiary 0,00 4.138,74 

TOTAL 0,00 408.143,55 

 

During the period the Sole Director of the company has not received any remuneration. No other obligations 
towards the Sole Director have been accrued.  

In compliance with articles 229 of Spanish Corporate Law, passed and approved under Royal Legislative 
Decree1/2010 on 2 July, 2010, the Company makes full disclosure of the information it has received 
regarding the direct or indirect holdings of members of the Board of Directors of the controlling company 
in other companies whose stated activities are related or similar to those of the stated purpose of the 
Controlling Company or Group. The following list includes names, positions held and name of company. 

 

 

Passport Director  Entity % Position 

539090656 Sudhir Chaturvedi 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India  

(Parent Company) 
0,07%  

Executive 
Director 

 

13. Other Information  

The average number of employees during the period and divided by category is as follows:  
 

Personnel 31/03/2022 
 

31/03/2021 

Qualifed personnel 10 10 

Average 10 10 

 
 

14. Environmental and Green House Gas Emissions Rights Information 

The Company does not have any responsibilities, expenses, assets nor provisions of environmental nature 
which could be significant in relation to equity, financial situation and results of the Company. The Board 
of Directors consider that there are no contingencies related to the protection and improvement of the 
environment. 
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15. Information related to the deferral of payments to suppliers.  Third additional 
provision of Act 15/2010 of July 5th “Duty of Disclosure of information”  

 
In compliance with the provisions of Law 15/2010 of combating late payment to suppliers, developed by 
the ICAC, it is reported commercial operations, the legal maximum payment period is, in each case 
corresponding to depending on the nature of the good or service received by the company in accordance 
with the provisions of the law 3/2004 of 29 December, establishing measures to combat late payment in 
commercial transactions, and amended by law 15/2010 of 6 July. 
  
Average payment period to suppliers: 

 

 2022-2021 2020-2021 

Days 30 30 

 

16. Post Balance Sheet Events  

There have not been significant events at the date of preparation of these annual accounts, in addition to 
those mentioned above, that could have a significant effect on them. 

17. Additional explanation regarding the English translation 

These annual accounts are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
Spain, which may not conform to generally accepted accounting principles in other countries. 
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18. Signatures 

In London, UK, as at 26/05/2022, giving your consent by signing: 
 
 
 
 

Mr.. SUDHIR CHATURVEDI     
Id number: Y3650220L 
Signing as:   Sole Director 
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L&T Infotech, S. de R.L. de C.V.  
(la “Sociedad”) 

 
Informe del Gerente Único a los socios de la 
Sociedad. 

L&T Infotech, S. de R.L. de C.V. 
(the “Company”) 

 
Report of the Sole Manager to the partners of 
the Company  
 

En cumplimiento a lo dispuesto en el Artículo 42 
de los estatutos sociales, me permito informar a los 
socios de la Sociedad, los aspectos relevantes 
respecto a la marcha de la Sociedad, durante el 
periodo comprendido del 1 de enero al 31 de 
diciembre de 2021. 
 
Operaciones relevantes: 
 
La Sociedad continúa prestando servicios a su 
cliente más importante. De igual manera, la 
Sociedad ha ampliado su portafolio de proyectos. 
 
Información Financiera 
 
- Activo  
Los activos de la Sociedad ascienden a 
$40,646,854.00 M.N. (cuarenta millones 
seiscientos cuarenta y seis mil ochocientos 
cincuenta y cuatro Pesos 00/100 Moneda 
Nacional). 
 
- Pasivo 
El Pasivo registró un importe de $33,060,063.00 
M.N. (treinta y tres millones sesenta mil sesenta y 
tres Pesos 00/100 Moneda Nacional). 
 
 
- Capital 
Al 31 de diciembre de 2021, el capital contable 
alcanzó la cantidad de $7,586,791.00 M.N. (siete 
millones quinientos ochenta y seis mil setecientos 
noventa y uno Pesos 00/100, Moneda Nacional). 
 
 
- Resultados 
La Sociedad obtuvo una utilidad por la cantidad de 
$5,285,169.00 M.N. (cinco millones doscientos 
ochenta y cinco mil ciento sesenta y nueve Pesos 
00/100, Moneda Nacional). 
 
 
- Ingresos 

In compliance with Article 42 of the corporate by-
laws, I hereby inform the partners of the Company, 
the relevant aspects regarding the operations of the 
Company during the period comprised from 
January 1st to December 31st, 2021. 
 
 
Relevant transactions: 
 
The Company continued servicing its biggest client 
and also added more projects to its portfolio. 
 
 
Financial Information 
 
- Assets  
The Company’s assets amount to $40,646,854.00 
Pesos (forty million six hundred forty-six thousand 
eight hundred fifty-four Pesos 00/100, legal 
currency in the United Mexican States). 
 
 
- Liabilities 
The Company’s liabilities amount to 
$33,060,063.00 Pesos (thirty-three million sixty 
thousand sixty-three Pesos 00/100, legal currency 
in the United Mexican States). 
 
- Equity 
As to December 31, 2021, the Company’s equity 
reached the amount of $7,586,791.00 Pesos (seven 
million five hundred eighty-six thousand seven 
hundred ninety-one Pesos 0/100, legal currency in 
the United Mexican States). 
 
- Results 
The Company obtained a profit in the amount of 
$5,285,169.00 Pesos (five million two hundred 
eighty-five thousand one hundred sixty-nine Pesos 
00/100, legal currency in the United Mexican 
States). 
 
- Income 
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El total de los ingresos en el periodo fue de 
$138,784,010.00 M.N. (ciento treinta y ocho 
millones setecientos ochenta y cuatro mil diez 
Pesos 00/100 Moneda Nacional). 
 
 
- Gastos 
Se realizaron gastos de operación por 
$129,285,141.00 M.N. (ciento veintinueve 
millones doscientos ochenta y cinco mil ciento 
cuarenta y un Pesos 00/100, Moneda Nacional). 
 
 
Los estados financieros de la Sociedad forman 
parte de este informe y quedan a disposición de los 
socios de la Sociedad. 
 
Finalmente, de conformidad con lo previsto en la 
fracción XIX del artículo 76 de la Ley del Impuesto 
sobre la Renta, por este medio hacemos constar el 
cumplimiento de la Sociedad a sus obligaciones 
fiscales por el ejercicio social concluido el 31 de 
diciembre de 2021. 
 

The total income was the amount of 
$138,784,010.00 Pesos (one hundred thirty-eight 
million seven hundred eighty-four thousand ten 
Pesos 00/100, legal currency in the United Mexican 
States). 
 
- Expenses 
The operation expenses amount to 
$129,285,141.00 Pesos (one hundred twenty nine 
million two hundred eighty five thousand one 
hundred forty one Pesos 00/100, legal currency in 
the United Mexican States). 
 
The financial statements of the Company are part 
of this report and are available to the Company’s 
partners. 
 
Finally, pursuant to paragraph XIX of section 76 of 
the Income Tax Law, we hereby attest the 
compliance by the Company to its tax liabilities for 
the fiscal year ended on December 31, 2021. 
 
 
 

 
 

___________________________________ 
Alekh Gupta  

Gerente Único / Sole Manager 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Stockholders of: 
L&T INFOTECH, S. DE R.L. DE C.V.  
(Subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited) 
 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of L&T Infotech, S. de R.L. de C.V. (the 
Company) comprising the statement of financial position as of December 31, 2021, and the 
statements of comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the 
period ended on December 31 as well as a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of L&T Infotech, S. de R.L. de C.V. as of December 31, 2021, as well as its result 
and cash flow for the year then ended, in accordance with Mexican Financial Reporting Standards 
(FRS). 
 
Basis of opinion  
 
We have conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISA). Our 
responsibilities under these standards are described in the section ‘Responsibilities of the auditor 
for the audit of the financial statements’ of this report. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained provides a sufficient and adequate basis for our opinion. 
 
Independence 
 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of financial statements in accordance with the Code of Professional Ethics issued by 
the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants and have complied with our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
 
Management’s responsibility in regards to the financial statements 
 
The Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
accompanying financial statements in accordance with the Mexican FRS and for such internal 
control that the management determines necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Responsibility of the Management and those in charge of the Company's governance of the 
financial statements. 
 
The Company's Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
accompanying financial statements in accordance with Mexican FRS and internal control that the 
Management considers necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements free of material 
misstatement due to fraud or error. 
 
In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company's Management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, revealing, where appropriate, the 
issues relating to the Company in operation and using the accounting bases of Company in 
operation unless the Administration intends to liquidate the Company or cease operations, or does 
not have the most realistic alternative to doing so. 
 
Those in charge of the governance of the Company are responsible for overseeing the Company's 
financial reporting process. 
 
Responsibilities of the auditor on the audit of the financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether derived from fraud or error and to issue the 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
 
Reasonable security is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. In corrections 
may arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or as a whole, they can 
reasonably be expected to affect the economic decisions that users make on the basis of these 
financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, the auditor exercises professional judgment and 
maintains professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether for 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures that responded to those risks, and we obtained 
audit evidence sufficient and appropriate to provide the basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is greater than that resulting from an error 
since fraud involves collusion, falsification, intentional omission, distortion, or internal control 
override. 
 
• Obtain knowledge of internal control relevant to the audit, in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate to the circumstances and not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. 
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management. 
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the Management of operating accounting bases 
and, based on the evidence obtained, if there is a material uncertainty regarding events or 
conditions that could give rise to significant doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a 
running company. If we conclude that there is material uncertainty, we are called upon to draw 
attention in our auditor's report on the respective disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosure is insufficient, to modify our opinion. Our findings are based on the audit evidence 
obtained to date from our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to be a running business. 
 
• We evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of financial statements, including 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements present the underlying transactions and events 
and achieve a fair presentation. 
 
We communicate with Company’s Management regarding, inter alia, the expected scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit results, including any significant weaknesses in internal 
control that we identified during our audit. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Audit Partner 
 
Mexico City, March 30, 2022 
 

 

Liliana Miriam Blancas Estrada, CPA. 
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L&T INFOTECH, S. DE R.L. DE C.V. 
(Subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited) 

 
Statements of Financial Position 

As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020  
 

(Figures expressed in Mexican pesos) 
 

      2021  2020 
Assets     
Current:     
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2.4)  $              7,603,564  $           5,113,408 
Trade receivables (Note 2.5 and 3)    27,614,608  12,351,057 
Advance taxes (Note 2.6)   180   259,248 
Other current assets    1,317,135    104,621 
     
Total current assets          36,535,487   17,828,334 
   

 

 

Computer equipment (Note 2.7)  1,888,308  184,800 

 
    

Income tax deferred (Note 2.10 and 5.1)  2,223,059  1,503,538 
   

 

 

Total assets  $            40,646,854    $         19,516,672 
 

    

Liability and Stockholders’ equity      
 

    

Short-Term Liabilities:     
Suppliers and other payables     $            3,424,034    $         1,715,013  
Related parties (Note 3)    15,312,454     9,046,049  
Other current liabilities     13,294,425      5,904,181 
Payable for Employee participation in profits     1,029,150     549,807 
Total short-term liabilities  33,060,063   17,215,050 
 

    

Stockholders’ equity      
 

    

Capital stock (Note 2.12 and 4.1)  3,000  3,000 
Retained earnings   2,298,622   83,779 
Comprehensive (loss) income     5,285,169  2,214,843 
 

    

Total stockholders’ equity  7,586,791  2,301,622 
 

    

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $           40,646,854  $         19,516,672 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

 
Alekh Gupta   

 
Sole Manager   
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L&T INFOTECH, S. DE R.L. DE C.V. 

(Subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited) 
 
 

 Statements of Comprehensive Income 
For the period ended on December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020 

 
(Figures expressed in Mexican pesos) 

 
 
 

  2021  2020 
 

    

Services revenue (Note 2.13)  $    138,784,010  $    64,786,708 
     

Employee benefit expenses        122,590,219         53,763,106  
General administrative & selling expenses            6,694,922             4,012,922  
Operating (loss) profit            9,498,869            7,010,680 
 

    
     

Comprehensive financing result:     
Interest (income) expense – Net            184,065           612,430 
Foreign exchange (gain) loss– Net         1,541,595        2,833,864 
 

    

          1,725,660         3,446,294 
 

    

 
Profit (Loss) before tax           7,773,209 

               
3,564,386 

     

 
Income tax (Note 2.10 and 5)  

                         
2,488,040 

 
        1,349,543 

     

Comprehensive Income (loss)                                     $        5,285,169       $        2,214,843     
     

 
 

The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
  

    
Alekh Gupta   

Sole Manager   
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L&T INFOTECH, S. DE R.L. DE C.V. 
(Subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited) 

 
 

Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity 
for the period ended on December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020 

 
(Figures expressed in Mexican pesos)  

 
        Total 
    Capital Cumulative stockholders’ 
  stock        Profits equity 
        

Balances as of December 31, 2019   $       3,000  $        83,779 $      86,779  
    
Comprehensive income of 2020   $    2,214,843 $ 2,214,843 
     
Balances as of December 31, 2020   $       3,000  $    2,298,622 $ 2,301,622 
    
Comprehensive income of 2021   $    5,285,169 $ 5,285,169 
    
     

Balances as of December 31, 2021   $       3,000  $    7,583,791 $ 7,586,791 

     
 

 
                                   The attached notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
 
 
 
 

    
Alekh Gupta   

Sole Manager   
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L&T INFOTECH, S. DE R.L. DE C.V. 
(Subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited) 

 
Statements of Cash Flow  

For the period ended on December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020 
 
 

(Figures expressed in Mexican pesos) 
 
 

 
       2021          2020 

 
   

Profit (Loss) after income tax $            5,285,169  $            3,564,386 

 
   

Operating Activities:    

Decrease (Increase) in Trade receivables 
              

(15,256,480) 
               3,601,529 

Decrease (Increase) in Advance taxes 259,068  (81,316) 
Decrease (Increase) in Other current assets (1,154,027)  4,872 
Depreciation and amortization                    307,062                      22,597 

Increase in Income tax-deferred 
                                                                 

(719,521) 
                                                                  

(335,416) 
Increase in Suppliers and other payables accounts 1,650,533  847,035 
Increase in payables to Related parties 13,109,025  2,016,998 
Increase in Other current liabilities               7,383,174                   493,982 
Increase in payable for Employee participation in profits 479,343  51,362 
    
Net cash from operating activities 11,343,346  10,186,029 

 
   

Investment Activities:    
Acquisition of fixed assets  (2,010,570)  (170,000) 
Net cash flow from investing activities.            (2,010,570)  (170,000) 
    
Financing Activities:    

Loan payment with related parties 
                              

(6,842,619)    
             

(6,325,313) 
Loans obtained with related parties -  - 
Net cash flows from financing activities (6,842,619)  (6,325,313) 
 
Increase  in cash and cash equivalents 

 
2,490,157 

  
3,690,716 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 5,113,407  1,422,692 
    
Cash and cash equivalents at year end  $            7,603,564  $           5,113,408 
    

 
 
 
 

    
Alekh Gupta   

Sole Manager   
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L&T INFOTECH, S. DE R.L. DE C.V. 
(Subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited) 

 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2021, and December 31, 2020 

 
(Figures in Mexican pesos) 

 
Note 1. History and activity of the Company 
 
L&T Infotech, S. de R.L. de C.V., (the Company) is a subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited. It was 
incorporated on March 1, 2017, under Mexican law, with registered office at Bosque de Ciruelos No. 180 PP 
101, Colonia Bosques de las Lomas, Mexico City. 
 
The company's aim is to provide consulting services and solutions related to information technology, including 
without limitation, automatic data processing, information technology, analytics and information models, cloud 
services, security and infrastructure services, open source technology, intelligent devices, application 
administrators, execution system developers, Oracle and SAP database, systems and business integration, 
cloud applications, geographic information systems as well as process improvement and business model 
design.   
 
Note 2. Basis for preparation and summary of significant accounting policies 
 
The financial statements as of December 31, 2021, have been prepared in compliance with the Mexican 
Financial Reporting Standards (MFRS), to expose a fair presentation of the Company’s financial position.  
 
The MFRS (NIF) state that the International Financial Reporting Standard, the International Accounting 
Standards (NIC), the International Financial Reporting Interpretations and the Interpretation Committee 
are a supplementary part of the MFRS when the absence of the MFRS requires it. Accordingly, the 
Company, with the purpose of recognizing, valuing, and disclosing its own particular transactions, applies 
the following supplementary NIC-18 “Ordinary activities income” effective as of January 1, 1995. (See note 
2.11)  
 
Previous year’s figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever applicable to facilitate comparability. 
 
The following significant accounting policies are summarized, which have been applied consistently in the 
years presented, unless otherwise specified. 
 
2.1 Recording, functional and reporting currency 
 
Since the recording, functional and reporting currencies of the Company are the Mexican Pesos, it was 
not necessary to make any conversion process. 
 
2.2 Inflationary effects  
 

Under the provisions of NIF B-10 "Effects of inflation", from January 1, 2008, the Mexican 
economy is in a non-inflationary environment maintaining a cumulative inflation for the last three 
years below 26% (threshold to define that an economy should be considered as inflationary); 
therefore, from that date recognizing the effects of inflation on financial information was 
suspended. Consequently, the figures as of December 31, 2021, of the accompanying financial 
statements are presented in historical pesos. 
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The inflation rates are presented as follows: 
 

 31 December 

 2021 2020 

   (%)           (%)         
Year 7.36 3.15 
Accumulated in the last three years 13.34 10.81 
Accumulated without including current year  5.98 7.66 
 
 
2.3 Use of estimates  
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the MFRS requires accounting estimates. In 
addition, those rules require that management exercises professional judgment to define the accounting 
policies that will apply to the Company. Recognized accounting estimates will likely differ from actual 
results or events. 
 
 
2.4 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposits. 
 
 
2.5 Clients 
 
Accounts receivable from clients represent amounts due by them and are generated by services provided 
in the normal course of operations of the Company. When the collection is expected in a period of one 
year or less from the closing date, they are presented as current assets. If the above does not comply, 
they are presented as non-current assets. 
 
 
2.6 Tax Payable 
 
Taxes payable represent the amounts payable by the Company generated by the income tax caused in 
the year. 
 
The balance as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, of taxes payables, is as follows: 
 

  2021 2020 

Provisional payments     
Annual income tax  $   148,255 $ 340,508 
      
Total payable taxes  $   148,255  $ 340,508 

 
 
2.7 Computer equipment 
  
Computer equipment is recorded at its historical cost.  Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line 
method on the acquisition cost. The shelf life for calculating depreciation of computer equipment is 3.3 
years at a rate of 30% annual depreciation. 
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2.8 Suppliers and other payable accounts  
 
This part includes obligations with suppliers and other accounts payable for purchases of goods or 
services acquired in the normal course of the Company’s operations. When the Company expects to pay 
them over a period of one year or less from the date of closing, they are presented in current liabilities. If 
the above does not comply, they are presented as non-current liabilities. 
 
2.9 Provisions  
 
Provisions for liabilities represent obligations for past events where the outflow of economic resources is 
more likely than not. These provisions have been recorded based on the management’s best estimation. 
 
2.10 Income Tax incurred and deferred 
 
The income tax incurred in the year is presented as a net short-term liability of the advance payments 
made during the year.  
 
The income tax incurred and deferred, are recognized as expenses (or reduction of expenses) in the 
comprehensive result of the period.  
 
The deferred income tax is determined based on the method of assets and liabilities with comprehensive 
approach, which consists in recognizing a deferred income tax for all the temporary differences between 
the accounting and tax values of assets and liabilities expected to materialize in the future, at the rates 
issued and established in the tax provisions in force at the date of the financial statements (See note 5). 
 
2.11 Exchange differences 
 
Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded at record currency applying the exchange rates 
prevailing on the dates they are entered into and/or settled. Assets and liabilities denominated in such 
currencies are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the statement of the financial 
position. Exchange gain or loss arising from fluctuations in the exchange rates between the transaction 
and settlement dates, or valuation at the period closing are recognized in the income as a component of 
the Financing Comprehensive Income (RIF). 
 
As of December 31, 2021, and December 31, 20, the currency assets and liabilities expressed in US$ 
dollars generated a financial position as follows: 
 

 2021 2020 
   

Assets       US$ 861,963        US$  513,980  
Liabilities              (822,155)             ( 386,495) 
Position in foreign currency        US $ 39,808        US$ 127,485 

 
 
The exchange rate used for the valuation of assets and liabilities in foreign currency as of December 31, 
2021, was $20.5835 pesos per US$ dollar and December 31, 2020, was $19.9487 pesos per US$ dollar. 
 
 
2.12 Stockholders’ equity 
 
The capital stock, legal reserve and retained earnings are expressed at historical cost. (See Note 4). 
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2.13 Revenue Recognition  
 
Income derived from the sale of services in the normal course of the Company's operations is recognized 
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Income is presented net of value added tax, 
rebates and discounts. 
  
Considering the nature of the services sold by the Company, such as providing consulting services and 
solutions related to information technology, revenue is recognized when the services are provided and the 
customer has accepted the services in accordance with the sales contract, or when the Company has 
objective evidence that all acceptance criteria have been met. 
  
An account receivable is recognized when services are provided, as this is the time when the 
consideration is unconditional, as only the passage of time is required before payment is due. 
 
 
2.14 Comprehensive income 
 
The comprehensive income comprises the net income or loss which is reflected in stockholders´ equity 
and it does not constitute equity’s contributions, reductions or distributions.  
 
 
Note 3. Balances and transactions with related parties 
 
The balances with related parties are as follows: 
 
Figures in Mexican pesos 2021 2020 
   
Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited, India (A) – payable  $      ( 15,312,454) $        ( 2,203,430) 
L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc - payable            -            (6,842,619) 
 
Total related parties – payable 

           
$       (15,312,454) 

           
$        (9,046,049) 

   
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited USA (B) – receivable 
 

          16,067,776              8,823,344 

Total related parties - receivable            16,067,776              8,823,344 
   
Total related parties – net payable     $           755,322    $       (  222,705) 
   
 

(A) 2021: Corresponds to services received by the Company. 
(B) Corresponds to the receivable and payable for the transfer of income and costs from Larsen and 

Toubro Infotech Limited USA as of December 31, 2021 (Receivable of $16,884,290 vs Payable of 
$816,514) and as of December 31, 2020 (Receivable of $21,455,495 vs. Payable of 
$12,632,151). 
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The transactions held with related parties were as follows: 
 
  2021 2020 
Income:    
    

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, USA Sale of services $103,825,954 $    47,912,187 
    

 
Costs and Expenses: 

   
    

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, USA Consulting 
management 
services 

  
$131,870 

  
  - 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India Onsite Software 
Development 
Services 

 
$24,235,100 

 
3,604,052 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India Marketing 
Support 
Services 

 
$1,424,935 

 
2,807,420 

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, India  Expenses 
reimbursements 

 
7,401 

 
32,987 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc. Accrued Interest 124,621 598,595 
 
 
 
Note 4. Stockholders’ Equity 
 
 
4.1 Capital stock 
 
As of 31 December 2021, the variable capital stock is as follows: 
 

Stockholder Capital  Percentage 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited $               2,970  99% 
L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc.                       30    1% 
Total Capital Stock $               3,000 100% 
 
 
4.2 Legal reserve 
 
According to the General Law of Commercial Companies, 5% of the net income of each year must be 
separated to form the legal reserve, until it is equal to one-fifth of the amount of paid-in capital stock. Such 
legal reserve may be capitalized unless the company dissolves and must be reconstituted when it is 
reduced due to any reason. Currently this reserve is included in the retained earnings. 
 
 
4.3 Contributed capital account (CUCA) and Net tax account (CUFIN) 
 
Distributed profits exceeding CUFIN and CUFINRE accounts (Net Tax Account and Net Tax Account 
Reinvested) are subject to income tax in accordance with the prevailing rate at the time of distribution. 
 
The tax incurred from dividends paid will be payable by the Company and may be credited against income 
tax for the year or the following two years. Dividends paid from previously taxed profits are not subject to 
income tax withholding or additional tax payment. 
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According to the current Income Tax Law, dividends arising from CUFIN 2014 (profits generated from the 
year 2014) are subject to an additional tax of 10 percent; when paid to a natural person residing in Mexico 
or an alien, either natural or legal person, which must be withheld and paid by the Company, if the 
dividend comes from CUFIN 2013 it will not be subject to this new tax. When the two mentioned CUFIN 
accounts are not carried separately or when they do not identify the profits mentioned, it is understood that 
they were generated as of 2014. 
 
The balance as of December 31, 2021, and as of December 31, 2020, from the contributed capital 
account (CUCA) and the net tax profit account is as follows: 
 

 2021 2020 
CUCA $               3,715 $             3,460 
CUFIN            4,086,142       (2,904 ,596) 
 
Note 5.  Income Tax 
 
The provision for income tax (ISR) in 2021 and 2020 is analyzed as follows: 
 
 2021   2020 
ISR incurred $        3,289,000       $        1,684,960       
ISR deferred             (719,521)            (335,417) 
Income taxes according to the statement of 
comprehensive income 

 
 $  2,569,480 

 
 $ 1,349,543 

 
 
5.1 Income Tax (ISR) Incurred and Deferred 
 
On October 2013 the Senators and Representatives Chambers approved the issuance of a new Income 
Tax Law (LISR) which came into force on January 1, 2014, repealing the LISR published on January 1, 
2002. The new Income Tax Law picked the essence of the previous Law, however, made significant 
changes, among which we can highlight the following:  
 

• It limits deductions on contributions to pension funds and exempt salaries, car leasing, 
consumption in restaurants and in social security contributions; it also eliminates the immediate 
deduction in fixed assets. 

• It changes the procedure to determine the tax base for Employee Profit Sharing (PTU) 
participation. 

• It establishes a rate for the year 2014 and subsequent years of 30%. 
 
As of December 31, 2021, the Company generated a taxable profit of $ 10,963,332 Taxable income differs 
from the accounting, mainly due to items that accumulate over time and deduct differently for accounting 
and tax purposes, by recognizing the effects of inflation for tax purposes, as well as such items only affect 
the accounting or tax results. 
 
As of December 31, 2020, the Company generated a taxable profit of $ 5,616,534. 
 
As of December 31, 2021, the main temporary differences, which recognized the deferred income tax, 
were about payroll provisions like leave encashment, vacation premium, medical insurance, travel & 
conveyance reimbursements, payroll taxes, profit sharing payable to employees, professional fees 
provision for income tax return, audit support fee, transfer pricing study, consultancy, audit fees, payroll 
fees, subcontracting & placement fee provisions disallowed for $ 7,410,796 
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”Note 6. Labor obligations 
 
With respect to NIF D-3, the company determines the estimation of the labor obligations to employees 
considering the calculation of four settlements per year, based on the fact that it is of recent creation and 
does not have a high risk in this regard. 
 
Note 7. Ongoing Business. 
 
On March 24, 2022, the management of the company has determined that the operation of the company 
shall be continued. The management expects contracts for new projects 
 
Note 8. New Pronouncements 
 
A series of Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) (or NIF, for their acronym in Spanish) that the CINIF 
issued during December 2020 and 2019 are described below, which will enter into force in 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. It is considered that said NIF will not have a significant impact on the financial information 
presented by the Company.  
 
2022 

The Improvements to the FRS are classified into two sections: 
 
a. Section I: These are modifications to the FRS that, in accordance with FRS B-1, Accounting changes 
and corrections of errors, generate accounting changes in valuation, presentation or disclosure in the 
financial statements of the entities. 
 
b. Section II: They are modifications to the NIF to make precisions to them that help to establish a clearer 
and more understandable regulatory approach; Because they are precisions, they do not generate 
accounting changes in the financial statements of the entities. 
 
The most relevant changes that will come into force as of January 1, 2022, will be the following: 
 
Section I 
 
NIF B-7, Business Acquisitions: Establishes the treatment that must be given to business acquisitions 
between entities under common control, a situation that was not contemplated until now. 
 
NIF B-15, Conversion of foreign currencies: The exception for conversion to the functional currency is 
included in the standard, which was previously contained in INIF 15. 
 
NIF D-3, Employee Benefits: The treatment that should be given to the participation of workers in the utility 
is added, with the entry into force of the Reform on labor subcontracting, which was included in RT-53 . 
 
NIF B-1, Accounting changes and error corrections: The CINIF considered that NIF B-1 should be 
modified to eliminate the requirement to disclose pro forma information when there is a change in the 
structure of the economic entity. 
 
 NIF B-10, Effects of inflation: This NIF requires certain disclosures when the entity operates in a non-
inflationary economic environment; however, the CINIF has concluded that such disclosures should be 
conditioned to relevant situations, for example, when it is seen that inflation is increasing and could lead to 
a change in the inflationary environment. 
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NIF B-17, Determination of fair value: The CINIF considers it convenient to eliminate the disclosure 
requirement for a change in an accounting estimate, for revisions that come from a change in a valuation 
technique of NIF B-1, as it is considered to be of little relevance.  
 
NIF C-6, Properties, plant and equipment: This NIF requires the disclosure of the time in which it is 
planned to carry out the constructions in progress, when there are approved plans for them. Since IFRS 
does not provide for a similar disclosure, such requirement will be removed. 
 
Section II 
 
 NIF B-3, Statement of Comprehensive Income, NIF B-10, Effects of Inflation and NIF B-15, Foreign 
Currency Conversion: The accounting treatment of the Investment Units is eliminated. In addition, 
modifications will be made to certain NIFs to more widely cover the accounting treatment of UDIs and to 
be able to repeal Circular 54. 
 
NIF B-6, Statement of financial position: The items contained in the standards issued in recent years are 
added. 
 
NIF C-3, Accounts receivable, NIF C-16, Impairment of financial instruments receivable and NIF B-6 
Statement of financial position: The reference to commercial accounts receivable is eliminated, leaving 
only accounts receivable. 
 
NIF B-1, Accounting changes and correction of errors: Impracticality of presenting accounting changes, 
corrections of errors or reclassifications retrospectively. 
 
NIF B-17, Determination of fair value: The CINIF considered it appropriate to update the list of particular 
NIFs, where fair value is discussed. 
 
Glossary: The terms of Purchase Method and Book Value Method are added and changes are made to 
the terms of Business Acquisitions and Compensation. 
 
The initial adoption of this standard should be done prospectively. 
 
Note 9. Approval of financial statements 
 
On March 30, 2022, Alekh Gupta, Sole Manager, authorized the issuance of these financial statements 
and their corresponding notes as of December 31, 2021. 
 
 
 

 
 

*  *  *  *  * 

  
 

  
Alekh Gupta    

Sole Manager     
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-545 968,32
0,00

-3 047 386,92 -1 434 230,80

note 3,4,6

note 16

note 15



B105331 2004 2227 391

0,000,00

0,00 0,00

0,00 0,00

0,00 0,00

0,000,00

0,000,00

124 845,14118 454,14

49 011,5853 861,89

75 833,5664 592,25

0,000,00

0,000,00

-141 386,86-119 998,75

-3 892,140,00

-137 494,72-119 998,75note 13

-288 274,78-217 600,36

-15 648 347,191 137 817,08

-2 245,00-16 050,00

-15 650 592,191 121 767,08



SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
ASSETS as at 31/12/2021

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B105331

Matricule: 2004 2227 391 

A

B

C

D

E

Subscribed capital unpaid 

Formation expenses

Fixed assets

Current assets

Prepayments

I

II

I

II

III

I

II

III

IV

Subscribed capital not called

Subscribed capital called but unpaid

Intangible assets

Tangible assets

Financial assets

Stocks

Debtors

Investments

Cash at bank and in hand

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

Costs of development

Concessions, patents, licences, trade marks and similar rights and assets, if they were

Goodwill, to the extent that it was acquired for valuable consideration

Payments on account and intangible assets under development

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery 

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment

Payments on account and tangible assets in the course of construction

Shares in affiliated undertakings

Loans to affiliated undertakings

Participating interests

Loans to undertakings with which the undertaking is linked by virtue of participating inte

Investments held as fixed assets

Other loans

Raw materials and consumables

Work in progress

Finished goods and goods for resale

Payments on account

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings

Amounts owed by undertakings with which the undertaking is linked by virtue of participati

Other debtors

Shares in affiliated undertakings

Own shares

Other investments

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

acquired for valuable consideration and need not be shown under C.I.3

created by the undertaking itself

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

  197 675.00

1 114 523.71

        0.00

        0.00

  216 976.33

  501 925.59

        0.00

  346 266.38

   29 796.97

2 167 901.32

3 985 114.70

6 886 659.34

        0.00

1 049 722.75

        0.00

  125 741.00

1 646 399.17

  672 045.00

        0.00

  217 560.75

  501 922.98

        0.00

  369 347.99

    5 858.10

1 314 738.48

4 011 040.91

4 809 669.34

        0.00

  710 571.89

        0.00

TOTAL ASSETS

        0.00

3 262 866.59
2 197 698.29

2 197 698.29

  216 976.33

  848 191.97

13 036 020.50
        0.00

11 921 496.79

        0.00

16 496 562.09

        0.00

3 081 473.30
1 992 641.58

1 320 596.58

  217 560.75

  871 270.97

11 177 681.31
        0.00

9 531 282.14

        0.00

14 384 895.61

SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
ASSETS as at 31/12/2021

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B105331

Matricule: 2004 2227 391 



SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
Detail for ASSETS

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

C/I/2/a)

C/I/2/b)

C/I/4

C/II/3

C/III/1

C/III/6

D/II/1/a)

D/II/2/a)

Fixed assets

Current assets

Intangible assets

Concessions, patents, licences, trade marks and similar rights and assets, if they were

acquired for valuable consideration and need not be shown under C.I.3

created by the undertaking itself

Payments on account and intangible assets under development

Tangible assets

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment

Financial assets

Shares in affiliated undertakings

Other loans

Debtors

Trade debtors

becoming due and payable within one year

Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings

becoming due and payable within one year

   29 796.97

2 167 901.32

        0.00

  216 976.33

  501 925.59

  346 266.38

3 985 114.70

6 886 659.34

    5 858.10

1 314 738.48

  672 045.00

  217 560.75

  501 922.98

  369 347.99

4 011 040.91

4 809 669.34

212130000

212130009

212230100

212230109

212230200

212230209

212230300

212241000

214200000

223400000

223400009

223800000

223800009

231010000

231030000

231040000

231050000

236210000

401100000

401300000

401400000

401900000

441130000

411111000

411120000

411122000

411123000

411124000

411183000

Software licences

IT licences (software and software packages)

Software and software package - created by the undertaking itself (Produced inta

Software and software package - created by the undertaking itself (Produced inta

Software and software package (SAAS V2) - created by the undertaking itself (Pro

Software and software package (SAAS V2) - created by the undertaking itself (Pro

Software and software package (SAAS V3) - created by the undertaking itself (Pro

Brand "Syncordis"

Concessions, patents, licences, trademarks and similar rights and assets

Furniture and hardware

Furniture - value adjustment

Other fixtures

Other facilities - value adjustment

Shares in affiliated undertakings - Syncordis France S.à r.l.

Shares in affiliated undertakings - Syncordis Ltd (UK)

Shares in affiliated undertakings - SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.

Shares in affiliated undertakings - NIESLEN + PARTNER Co., Ltd (Bangkok)

Guarantees

Customers

Doubtful or disputed customers

Customers - Unbilled sales

Value adjustments

Suppliers with a debit balance

Sales of goods and services to affiliated undertakings

Loans and advances

Advances Syncordis Ltd (UK)

Advances SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.

Advances Syncordis France S.à r.l.

Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings - C/C SYNCORDIS PSF S.A. - Tax unity

   53 364.00

  -23 567.03

1 579 820.59

 -557 946.31

  668 145.00

 -100 221.75

  577 203.79

      900.00

        0.00

  843 692.36

 -629 716.06

   33 207.61

  -30 207.58

  100 623.60

    1 299.38

  400 000.00

        2.61

  346 266.38

2 337 221.35

   83 538.00

1 579 488.49

  -71 400.00

   56 266.86

2 115 745.51

        0.00

3 394 399.52

  299 995.28

1 073 087.78

    3 431.25

   23 750.00

  -17 891.90

1 579 820.59

 -265 982.11

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

      900.00

  672 045.00

  696 169.60

 -484 608.88

   33 207.61

  -27 207.58

  100 623.60

    1 299.38

  400 000.00

        0.00

  369 347.99

3 181 724.17

   83 538.00

  817 178.74

  -71 400.00

        0.00

1 053 699.56

    4 050.00

2 888 876.70

  104 807.38

  754 804.45

    3 431.25

SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
Detail for ASSETS

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020



SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
Detail for ASSETS

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

D/II/4/a)

D/IV

E/ Prepayments

Other debtors

becoming due and payable within one year

Cash at bank and in hand

1 049 722.75

1 114 523.71

  197 675.00

  710 571.89

1 646 399.17

  125 741.00

421110000

421410019

421410020

421410021

421420019

421420020

421420021

421611100

421613010

421711000

421880100

421880200

513100004

513101000

513101100

513101300

513101400

513101600

513101700

513101900

513103000

513107000

513120000

513130000

517100000

481000000

Advances and down payments 

Advances IRC 2019

Avances IRC 2020

Avances IRC 2021

Advances ICC 2019

Advances ICC 2020

Advances ICC 2021

Input VAT on UE purchases or sales

VAT receiable - Nielsen + Partner S.A. (Luxembourg) - Merger

Mutualité des employeurs

Lunch vouchers - Nielsen + Partner S.A. (Luxembourg) - Merger

Guarantees - Nielsen + Partner S.A. (Luxembourg) - Merger

ING LU95 0142 2397 0711 0000

BCEE C/C LU24 0019 2355 2609 5000 (EUR)

VISA LU39 0141 7397 0718 0000

VISA LU32 0141 6397 0711 0000

ING LU38 0141 1397 0710 3030 (GBP)

VISA LU82 0141 8397 0711 2000

VISA Denis MULLER LU10 0141 9397 0711 3000

ING LU59 0141 7397 0710 3010 (USD)

ING LU64 0141 9397 0710 000

VISA LU76 0141 1397 0712 0000

BCEE C/C LU23 0019 5855 3829 6000 (GBP)

BCEE C/C LU06 0019 5855 5396 2000 (USD)

Internal transfers : debit balance

Deferred charges (on one or more financial years)

   -2 500.78

  326 700.00

  167 325.00

  223 100.00

  124 098.00

   71 931.00

   95 908.00

   -1 590.78

      587.59

   36 606.82

    2 372.40

    5 185.50

        0.00

  634 532.73

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

    1 007.23

  478 983.75

        0.00

  197 675.00

    6 856.61

  326 700.00

  167 325.00

        0.00

  124 098.00

   71 931.00

        0.00

    1 540.33

        0.00

   12 120.95

        0.00

        0.00

    8 395.90

1 111 897.89

     -163.00

     -337.95

      -19.16

     -311.31

     -361.85

     -147.16

  339 918.67

   -5 535.77

      970.52

  164 192.36

   27 900.03

  125 741.00

SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
Detail for ASSETS

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020



SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES as at 31/12/2021

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B105331

Matricule: 2004 2227 391 

A

B

C

D

Capital and reserves

Provisions

Creditors

Deferred income

I

II

III

IV

V

VI

VII

VIII

Subscribed capital

Share premium account

Revaluation reserve

Reserves

Profit or loss brought forward

Profit or loss for the financial year

Interim dividends

Capital investment subsidies

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Legal reserve

Reserve for own shares

Reserves provided for by the articles of association

Other reserves, including the fair value reserve

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

Provisions for taxation

Other provisions

Debenture loans

Amounts owed to credit institutions

Payments received on account of orders in so far as they are not shown separately as deduc

Trade creditors

Bills of exchange payable

Amounts owed to affiliated undertakings

Amounts owed to undertakings with which the undertaking is linked by virtue of participati

Other creditors

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

c)

other available reserves

other non available reserves

Convertible loans

Non convertible loans 

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

Tax authorities

Social security authorities

Other creditors

i)

ii)

i)

ii)

i

ii

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

  575 035.00

   55 392.00

1 652 591.33

2 018 752.64

1 121 767.08

        0.00

    5 539.20

        0.00

2 844 974.21

  228 050.00

    6 772.60

2 199 976.27

  626 542.81

3 499 726.32

1 407 546.22

  208 053.55

   45 842.86

        0.00

1 315 970.00

   34 800.00

   89 823.60

2 062 496.26

  226 326.45

        0.00

    3 480.00

        0.00

1 817 305.77

  228 050.00

        0.00

1 967 173.06

  196 477.53

4 316 803.67

  806 396.98

1 265 857.69

   23 717.66

   30 216.94

TOTAL CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

5 082 092.25

  233 589.20

2 844 974.21

7 994 460.63

16 496 562.09

2 644 976.31

  231 530.00

1 817 305.77

8 606 643.53

14 384 895.61

SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES as at 31/12/2021

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B105331

Matricule: 2004 2227 391 



SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

A/I

A/II

A/IV/1

A/IV/4/b)

A/V

A/VI

B//3

C//2/a)

C//2/b)

C//4/a)

C//6/a)

Capital and reserves

Provisions

Creditors

Subscribed capital

Share premium account

Reserves

Legal reserve

Other reserves, including the fair value reserve

other non available reserves

Profit or loss brought forward

Profit or loss for the financial year

Other provisions

Amounts owed to credit institutions

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

Trade creditors

becoming due and payable within one year

Amounts owed to affiliated undertakings

becoming due and payable within one year

   55 392.00

1 652 591.33

    5 539.20

  228 050.00

2 018 752.64

1 121 767.08

2 844 974.21

    6 772.60

2 199 976.27

  626 542.81

3 499 726.32

   34 800.00

   89 823.60

    3 480.00

  228 050.00

2 062 496.26

  226 326.45

1 817 305.77

        0.00

1 967 173.06

  196 477.53

4 316 803.67

101000000

111000000

112100000

131000000

138210000

141200000

142000000

188100300

188110000

188120000

188122000

194110000

194120000

194130000

194140000

194201000

194210100

194210200

401500000

441110000

441120000

451111000

451122000

Subscribed capital 

Share premium

Merger premiums - Nielsen + Partner S.A. (Luxembourg) - Merger

Legal reserve

Reserve for net wealth tax (NWT)

Results brought forward (assigned)

Result for the financial year

Accrual - Pécule simple BE

Provisions pour congés

Provisions pour primes

Fidelity bonus - Second Part

VISA BCEE 4940 3619 0301 7029 (DESJONQUERES Guillaume)

VISA BCEE 4940 3619 0923 0899 (PLANCQ Laurence)

VISA BCEE 4940 3619 0467 5296 (BERTO David)

VISA BCEE 4940 3619 0108 2355 (SERVAIS Pierre)

HSBC LU09 3740 1010 1481 9030

HSBC LU09 3740 1010 1481 9030

HSBC LU25 3740 1010 1481 9130 (GBP)

Customers with a credit balance

Suppliers

Suppliers - invoices not yet received

Sales of goods and services from affiliated undertakings

Loan Nielsen + Partner GmbH (Germany)

   55 392.00

   89 823.60

1 562 767.73

    5 539.20

  228 050.00

2 018 752.64

1 121 767.08

   25 268.77

  259 743.44

1 666 550.00

  893 412.00

    5 485.55

      296.86

      581.60

      408.59

1 228 484.95

        0.00

  971 491.32

  210 676.03

  293 250.50

  122 616.28

3 499 723.71

        2.61

   34 800.00

   89 823.60

        0.00

    3 480.00

  228 050.00

2 062 496.26

  226 326.45

    1 003.68

  253 302.09

1 563 000.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

1 485 456.10

  481 716.96

        0.00

   92 183.53

  104 294.00

4 316 803.67

        0.00

SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020



SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

C//8/a)

C//8/b)

C//8/c)/i

C//8/c)/ii

D/ Deferred income

Other creditors

Tax authorities

Social security authorities

Other creditors

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

1 407 546.22

  208 053.55

   45 842.86

        0.00

  575 035.00

  806 396.98

1 265 857.69

   23 717.66

   30 216.94

1 315 970.00

461211018

461211019

461211020

461211021

461221020

461221021

461221103

461231000

461240000

461240100

461411000

461411100

461412000

462100000

462200100

471200000

471410000

471410100

471430000

471480100

471800000

471811000

471812000

472820000

482000000

Corporate Income Tax (IRC) 2018 - provision

Corporate Income Tax (IRC) 2019 - provision

Corporate Income Tax (IRC) 2020 - provision

Corporate Income Tax (IRC) 2021 - provision

Municipal Income Tax (ICC) 2020 - provision

Municipal Income Tax (ICC) 2021 - provision

Municipal Income Tax (ICC) 2020 - SYNCORDIS PSF SA - Tax unity - provision

NWT - Tax accrual

Withholding tax on wages and salaries

Withholding tax on rem. & wages BE

VAT received

Ouput VAT on UE purchases or sales

VAT payable

Social Security office (CCSS)

Social security office ONSS BE

Amounts payable to partners and shareholders (others than from affiliated undert

Personnel - Rémunérations dues

Staff remuneration payable BE

Staff - Oppositions, seizures

Other staff payables - Pécule simple BE

Other miscellaneous debts

Employess expenses

Employees' expenses to be paid

ADEM - Chômage partiel - Other subsidies to promote employment

Deferred income (on one or more financial years)

        0.00

        0.00

  126 119.80

  111 000.00

        0.01

   86 200.00

  -18 096.75

   16 050.00

  165 539.50

   29 765.89

    1 590.77

   -1 590.78

  890 967.78

  201 882.22

    6 171.33

        0.00

   22 071.64

   -1 626.85

       26.60

   13 589.13

    6 800.00

      -27.00

    5 009.34

        0.00

  575 035.00

   38 117.39

   40 901.44

        0.01

        0.00

        0.01

        0.00

    3 431.25

        0.00

  126 883.95

    2 467.69

        0.00

    1 540.33

  593 054.91

1 263 612.76

    2 244.93

      417.00

    4 649.02

    2 502.38

        0.00

        0.00

    6 800.00

    2 382.68

    6 966.58

   30 216.94

1 315 970.00

SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020



SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B105331

Matricule: 2004 2227 391 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Net turnover

Variation in stocks of finished goods and in work in progress

Work performed by the undertaking for its own purposes and capitalised

Other operating income

Raw materials and consumables and other external expenses

Staff costs

Value adjustments

Other operating expenses

Income from participating interests

Income from other investments and loans forming part of the fixed assets

Other interest receivable and smilar income

Share of profit or loss of undertakings accounted for under the equity method

Value adjustments in respect of financial assets and of investments held as current assets

Interest payable and similar expenses

Tax on profit or loss

Profit or loss after taxation

Other taxes not shown under items 1 to 16

Profit or loss for the financial year

a)

b)

a)

b)

c)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

Raw materials and consumables

Other external expenses

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Other staff costs

in respect of formation expenses and of tangible and intangible fixed asset

in respect of current assets

derived from affiliated undertakings

other income from participating interests

derived from affiliated undertakings

other income not included under a)

derived from affiliated undertakings

other interest and similar income

concerning affiliated undertakings

other interest and similar expenses

i)

ii)

relating to pensions

other social security costs

25 403 429.70

  573 303.79

2 240 825.94

-3 047 386.92

        0.00

 -217 600.36

1 137 817.08

  -16 050.00

1 121 767.08

        0.00

-8 221 988.20

-13 551 814.66

        0.00

 -545 968.32

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

   53 861.89

   64 592.25

        0.00

 -119 998.75

-1 450 588.00

  -42 851.28

20 222 030.93

  716 647.00

1 702 149.90

-1 286 713.29

        0.00

   -3 431.27

  305 345.28

  -79 018.83

  226 326.45

        0.00

-7 959 732.00

-11 426 377.07

        0.00

 -315 065.35

   19 687.18

        0.00

    1 322.73

   49 011.58

   74 510.83

   -3 892.14

 -136 303.10

-1 343 183.70

   -5 316.95

SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B105331

Matricule: 2004 2227 391 



SYNCORDIS S.A.  EUR
Detail for PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

//1

//3

//4

//5/b)

Net turnover

Work performed by the undertaking for its own purposes and capitalised

Other operating income

Raw materials and consumables and other external expenses

Other external expenses

25 403 429.70

  573 303.79

2 240 825.94

-8 221 988.20

20 222 030.93

  716 647.00

1 702 149.90

-7 959 732.00

703300000

703300100

703301000

703301100

703302000

703302100

703302200

703303000

703303100

703304000

703304100

703305100

703306000

703306100

703307000

703307100

703308100

703309110

703310000

703311100

703311200

703319000

703319200

703320000

721230100

721230200

744220000

745410000

745800000

748800000

748800100

748803000

748810000

748830000

749210100

749220000

611112451

611120000

611121000

611121200

611121210

611121450

611121460

611121470

611122000

611123000

Sales of services not mentioned above

Services - Credit note to be issued

Services to Syncordis France SARL

Management/Back Office costs charged to Syncordis France SARL

Services to Syncordis PSF S.A.

Warrants sale to Syncordis Support Services S.A.

Management/Back Office costs charged to Syncordis PSF S.A.

Services to Syncordis Ltd (UK)

Management/Back Office costs charged to Syncordis Ltd UK

Services to Nielsen & Partner (DE)

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen & Partner (DE)

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen & Partner (AU)

Services to Nielsen + Partner Pte Ltd - Singapore

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen + Partner Pte Ltd - Singapore

Services to Nielsen + Partner  Unternehmensberater AG (Switzerland) - customer

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen + Partner Unternehmensberater AG

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen & Partner (Luxembourg)

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen & Partner (Bangkok)

Trade debtors - sales invoice accruals

Trade debtors - sales invoice defered

Resumption on differed sales income

Services to LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH LIMITED Saudi Arabi (Customer)

Services to Larsen & Tourbo Infotech (Singapore)

Resomption on sales invoice accruals

Software and software package - created by the undertaking itself (Produced inta

Software and software package - created by the undertaking itself (Produced inta

Disposal proceeds of tangible fixed assets

Other subsidies to promote employment - ADEM

Other subsidies for operating activities

Miscellaneous operating income

Other sundry operating income BE

Other sundry operating income - SYNCORDIS PSF S.A. - Tax unity

Other operating income

Other sundry extraordinary income

Reverse on Accrual "Pécule simple BE"

Reprises de provisions pour primes

Rental charges for 3, Rue des Foyers L-1537 Luxbg (Liliane PEIFFER-LUCAS)

Rent 5, Rue des Primeurs L-2361 Luxembourg

Charges 5, Rue des Primeurs L-2361 Luxembourg

Location appartement 19, Rue des Champs L-7480 TUNTANGE

Charges appartement 19, Rue des Champs L-7480 TUNTANGE

Rent for 3, Rue des Foyers L-1537 Luxbg (Liliane PEIFFER-LUCAS)

Rent Meeting room (BE)

Rent BE (Tribes Brussels Avenue Marnix)

Parking int. 5, Rue des Primeurs L-2361 Luxembourg

Parking ext. 5, Rue des Primeurs L-2361 Luxembourg

21 891 528.99

  400 000.00

        0.00

  150 745.12

  243 414.73

        0.00

   40 755.72

  138 748.11

  101 711.39

  266 538.60

  119 574.48

   29 373.84

   10 121.80

  164 337.35

  209 811.80

   84 271.92

        0.00

   11 134.92

  994 861.88

 -337 520.00

1 093 671.00

   23 554.18

        0.00

 -233 206.13

  566 515.50

    6 788.29

    2 306.81

   18 778.00

   14 717.37

  235 075.88

    6 171.92

        0.00

  140 672.97

       24.57

    6 776.33

1 816 302.09

     -400.00

 -473 272.08

  -98 226.00

        0.00

      -60.50

   -9 180.00

     -550.29

   -3 366.49

  -67 020.36

  -18 113.63

19 868 223.77

  136 720.25

   57 657.67

  125 948.09

  106 041.60

   60 591.94

   39 872.60

   87 293.22

   74 017.61

   35 390.38

  115 791.16

   26 903.18

        0.00

  157 192.10

        0.00

   78 781.77

  127 729.80

   11 197.28

  601 991.34

-1 223 221.99

   15 417.00

        0.00

  153 266.06

 -434 773.90

  440 703.00

  275 944.00

    1 153.89

   31 717.82

    6 824.59

  430 787.81

      191.35

    3 431.25

  149 043.19

        0.00

        0.00

1 079 000.00

        0.00

 -267 529.56

 -105 757.29

   -2 800.00

     -791.80

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

  -46 560.00

  -11 700.00
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611124000

611126000

611126100

611126300

611128000

611128100

611230000

611230029

611230034

611230035

611230036

611230038

611230040

611230041

611230042

611230043

611230044

611230045

611230046

611230048

611230049

611230050

611230051

611230052

611230053

611230054

611230055

611230056

611230058

611230060

611230061

611230062

611230063

611230064

611230065

611230066

611230067

611230068

611230069

611230070

611230071

611230072

611230073

611230074

611230075

612100000

612110000

612120000

612130000

612140000

612141000

612142000

612144000

612150000

612160009

Salle IT, 5, Rue des Primeurs L-2361 Luxembourg

Rent for 105, Route d'Arlon L-8009 Strassen

Rental charges for offices 105, Route d'Arlon L-8009 Strassen

Parking 105, Rte d'Arlon L-8009 Strassen

Rent for Bd Charles Simonis (Jung)

Rental charges Bd Charles Simonis (Jung)

Rolling stock

Leasing BN5458

Leasing UU 9178

Leasing AY4000 - Volvo XC60 2.4 D5 4WD - Heindrichs Dominique

Leasing RU6444

Leasing UV8700

Leasing PU7238

Leasing JT6028

Leasing TN8604

Leasing VN4769

Leasing WM5202

SK4896 - BMW - 320d (F30) 2.0d 190pk/cv 4p xDrive Aut

Leasing LJ4194 - Audi Q5 Design 2.0TDi 190pk/cv 5p Quattro S - PLLA

LJ4796 - Audi Q5 Sport 2.0TDi 190pk/cv 5p Quattro S-T

Leasing FE8796 - BMW 520d (G30) 2.0d 190pk/cv 4p - SLST

Leasing JC4355

Leasing UC8043 - Mini - Cabrio (F57) JCW 2.0i 231pk/cv 2p Aut. - HOPI

Leasing HT7742

Leasing ZK6512 - Audi Q5 Sport 40 2.0TDi 190pk/cv 5p Quattro - THFR

Leasing GN5690 - BMW X2 (F39) 20i sDrive 2.0i 192pk/cv 5p Au - MAVI

Leasing CQ8545 - Q2 Design 35 2.0TDi 150pk/cv 5p Quattro - WILU

Leasing DQ9538

Leasing RK5985

Leasing ZV6571

Leasing TW6768 - AUDI A5 SPORTBACK DIESEL - 2017 40 TD - VALA

Leasing FN6168

Leasing TW6600

Leasing BZ4646 - BMW 3 - 2019 330eA PHEV - PILA

Leasing UU9178

Leasing WU8041

Leasing ZU5410 (ALD) - LUJO - JAGUAR E PACE  - ESSENCE - ZU5410 - Investissement

1WVR021 - 124 CO2 g/km- Skoda Karoq 1.0 TSI Ambition 85kW/115pk - Maxime Guy Thi

1WCN834 - 115 CO2 (g/Km) - Volvo S90 D3 Geartronic 90th Anniversary - Luca Ciarn

1WER485 - 114 CO2 (g/Km) - Audi A3 Sportback 1.0 30 TFSi 85kW 85kW/ - Emeric Van

Leasing HM5708

Leasing VP5410

Leasing DL7842 - CO2 (g/Km) - BMW X1 1.5 XDRIVE25E (162KW) - GAMO

Leasing NN4985

Leasing HM5155 - HELA - BMW X5 xDrive 30d (210 kW)

General subcontracting (not included in the production of goods and services)

General subcontracting - Trade payable - purchase invoice accruals

General subcontracting - Syncordis India Private Limited

General subcontracting - Syncordis Limited (UK)

General subcontracting - Syncordis PSF S.A.

General subcontracting - Syncordis PSF S.A. - Credit Note to be issued

Management/Back Office costs charged from Syncordis PSF S.A.

COO costs

General subcontracting - Syncordis France S.à r.l.

General subcontracting - Larsen and Tourbo entities - provision

   -1 207.57

       33.39

   -2 818.40

        0.00

  -20 400.00

   -2 160.00

   -1 371.89

   -5 313.19

   -3 712.61

   -5 367.08

        0.00

   -4 716.57

   -2 110.65

   -4 095.80

   -6 025.39

     -126.30

        0.00

   -8 186.56

  -13 917.57

   -8 450.02

  -10 010.13

  -12 856.09

   -8 264.79

   -8 670.73

  -11 284.13

   -7 540.13

  -11 310.13

   -1 538.54

     -889.20

  -12 545.01

   -9 478.42

        0.00

   -9 814.99

   -9 466.69

        1.83

   -1 432.99

     -748.78

   -5 700.59

  -10 347.08

   -5 807.92

  -10 971.66

   -9 421.67

   -6 880.11

   -3 017.31

   -3 190.64

-1 281 682.97

   92 177.32

        0.00

 -182 111.83

-1 079 116.28

        0.00

 -563 321.88

 -185 678.30

 -251 074.79

 -107 890.60

     -600.00

 -160 806.44

   -6 580.86

   -1 980.00

  -20 400.00

   -2 160.00

   -1 181.73

   -6 640.56

   -3 920.62

   -9 187.08

     -425.12

  -22 180.03

   -7 850.04

   -9 617.66

   -9 339.94

   -3 648.10

     -937.95

   -8 249.89

  -10 911.06

   -7 150.00

   -8 470.11

  -10 670.11

   -6 930.00

  -17 202.79

   -9 548.11

   -6 380.11

   -9 570.11

   -9 361.11

  -11 995.61

  -10 615.00

  -11 181.44

    1 227.30

   -8 645.96

   -7 896.78

   -1 912.68

   -5 120.50

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

 -973 403.09

  -85 308.00

 -512 035.00

 -149 109.19

-1 438 776.40

  -11 475.00

 -394 324.96

        0.00

  -36 955.63

  -39 254.00
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//6/a) Staff costs

Wages and salaries -13 551 814.66 -11 426 377.07

612170000

612172000

612173000

612174000

612180000

612180100

612180110

612180200

612180300

612180310

612180400

612199999

612230000

612281000

612281100

612282000

612283000

613200000

613330000

613340000

613410000

613411000

613420000

613421000

613422000

613800000

613810000

613830000

614120000

614410000

614600000

614800000

615110000

615140000

615160000

615170000

615180000

615181000

615212100

615212200

615220000

615240000

615310000

615311000

615320000

618200000

618210000

618220000

618420000

618510000

618520000

618700000

General subcontracting - Larsen and Tourbo Infotech Limited (UK)

General subcontracting - Larsen and Tourbo Infotech Limited (India)

General subcontracting - Larsen and Tourbo Infotech Limited (Saudi Arabia) 

General subcontracting - Larsen and Tourbo Infotech Limited (India) - Services

General subcontracting - Nielsen + Partner S.A. (Luxembourg)

General subcontracting - Nielsen + Partner GmbH (Hamburg)

Management/Back Office costs charged from Nielsen + Pertner GmbH (Hamburg)

General subcontracting - Nielsen + Partner Pte Ltd (Singapore)

General subcontracting - Nielsen + Partner Pte Ltd (Switzerland)

General subcontracting - Nielsen + Partner Pte Ltd (Switzerland)- demande creati

General subcontracting - Nielsen + Partner (Australia)

Fidelity Bonus - affiliated undertakings

Rolling stock

Maintenance and cleaning - 5, Rue des Primeurs L-2361 Luxembourg

Maintenance and cleaning - 105, Route d'Arlon L-8009 STRASSEN

Maintenance on printers (CK)

Maintenance and repairs of plant and machinery

IT services

Bank account charges and bank commissions (included custody fees on securities)

Charges for electronic means of paiment

Legal, litigation and similar fees

Legal fees - purchase invoice accruals

Accounting, tax consulting, auditing and similar fees

Payroll calculation fees

Tax advisory fees

Other remuneration of intermediaries and professional fees

Staff recruitment costs

Visa and relocation expenses

Rolling stock

Fire and exploitation insurance

Third-party insurance

Other insurances

Press advertising

Gifts to customers

Donations

Sponsorship

Other purchases of advertising services

Temenos partnership contract

Frais - Voyages et déplacements

Frais - Parking

Relocation expenses

Receptions and entertainment costs

Postal charges 

Other postal costs (postal box rental, etc.)

Telecommunication costs

Costs of training, symposiums, seminars, conferences

Seminars and courses

Staff and team building events

Liquid fuels (oil, motor fuel, etc.)

Office supplies

Small equipment

Contributions to professional associations

  -18 395.45

   -7 203.20

   -6 420.35

-1 611 007.30

        0.00

  -73 388.77

 -453 076.56

  -44 853.70

 -565 483.69

  -57 660.74

        0.00

        0.00

   -8 939.63

  -49 526.24

        0.00

   -4 549.98

     -352.44

     -850.00

   -9 802.88

     -191.67

 -107 214.88

  -17 171.00

  -54 717.60

  -48 338.97

     -735.00

     -125.00

  -25 802.76

  -82 508.08

        0.00

  -11 599.56

   -1 976.00

   -6 191.00

     -144.00

   -1 020.00

   -2 800.00

        0.00

   -7 623.29

  -57 254.01

  -74 093.68

      -97.64

        0.00

  -17 020.05

       -3.20

   -1 041.74

  -59 038.25

  -12 662.76

 -182 936.60

   -9 847.20

  -18 244.35

  -13 275.59

   -1 422.60

   -5 360.00

  -27 016.76

   -4 121.89

        0.00

        0.00

 -864 442.33

 -291 998.25

 -358 390.23

 -182 864.17

 -572 828.67

        0.00

 -149 127.38

 -293 766.68

   -5 726.53

  -33 107.11

   -3 375.56

   -2 260.86

     -937.56

      150.00

   -7 805.74

     -256.67

  -62 188.33

        0.00

  -72 355.80

        0.00

        0.00

     -876.21

  -18 197.00

  -13 233.71

    2 972.92

   -2 900.44

   -8 249.00

   -2 920.62

        0.00

  -12 400.00

      -50.00

   -1 200.00

   -4 657.69

  -37 861.11

 -109 122.06

   -5 709.34

  -12 399.00

  -15 306.84

     -160.00

       -3.70

  -52 365.02

        0.00

 -178 794.73

  -17 143.94

  -15 532.79

  -13 002.60

   -1 785.79

   -2 592.69
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//6/b)/i)

//6/b)/ii)

//7/a)

//7/b)

//8

//10/a)

Social security costs

relating to pensions

other social security costs

Value adjustments

in respect of formation expenses and of tangible and intangible fixed assets

in respect of current assets

Other operating expenses

Income from other investments and loans forming part of the fixed assets

derived from affiliated undertakings

-1 450 588.00

  -42 851.28

 -545 968.32

        0.00

-3 047 386.92

        0.00

-1 343 183.70

   -5 316.95

 -315 065.35

   19 687.18

-1 286 713.29

    1 322.73

621110000

621110100

621121000

621122000

621123000

621128500

621140000

621150100

621151000

621152000

621156000

621156100

621171000

621800000

621910000

621920000

621930000

623100000

623100200

623110000

623201000

623202000

632100000

632230000

633304000

633308000

635100000

641300000

641310000

641320000

644110000

646200000

646510000

648100000

648140000

648800000

649210000

649220000

752222000

Base wages

Base wages BE

Sunday

Public holidays

Overtime

Accrual "Pécule simple BE"

Incentives, bonuses and commissions

Benefits in kind vehicules BE

Meal vouchers

Benefits in kind vehicules

Participation leasing voitures

ECO Vouchers (Belgium)

N+P pre-acquisition by LTI an earn-out bonus

Other benefits

Remboursements de la mutualité des employeurs

Remboursements ADEM - Chômage partiel

Ministère du travail - congé paternité

Social security on pensions 

National fund for pension insurance (N+P)

Employer's social costs

Social security costs BE

Occupational health service

AVA on development costs

Licences informatiques (logiciels et progiciels informatiques) - value adjustmen

Furniture - value adjustment

Other facilities - value adjustment

AVA on trade receivables

Software licences

IT Licences  - prepaid expenses

Passthroug licenses

Book value of yielded intangible fixed assets

Non-refundable VAT

Registration fees

Fines, sanctions and penalties

Fines and interest on withholding tax on salaries and wages

Miscellaneous operating charges

Dotations aux provisions pour congés

Dotations aux provisions pour primes

Disposal proceeds of amounts owed by affiliated undertakings

-11 297 759.96

 -182 314.18

     -685.19

   -7 595.60

  -11 760.00

        0.00

-2 269 366.18

   -5 431.81

 -307 236.08

 -135 101.48

      411.68

     -667.62

   69 066.74

        0.00

  220 434.21

  369 697.95

    6 492.86

 -916 466.91

      -73.80

 -534 047.29

  -42 851.28

        0.00

 -392 185.95

   -5 675.13

 -145 107.24

   -3 000.00

        0.00

 -450 541.32

  250 956.00

  -27 619.59

        0.00

  -22 967.23

        0.00

        0.00

      -38.70

       -0.02

    3 930.03

-2 801 106.09

        0.00

-10 109 151.20

   -5 690.84

   -7 212.20

   -3 313.81

  -13 913.10

   -1 003.68

-1 162 461.26

     -191.35

 -285 347.27

 -127 635.43

    1 270.07

        0.00

        0.00

 -544 800.50

  208 159.92

  612 577.39

   12 336.19

 -754 631.57

        0.00

 -588 552.13

   -1 524.16

   -3 792.79

 -145 982.10

   -6 349.98

 -156 333.66

   -6 399.61

   19 687.18

 -139 251.75

        0.00

 -351 929.57

       -0.03

  -21 698.05

     -236.00

   -2 000.00

  -18 702.50

        0.00

  -68 103.39

 -684 792.00

    1 322.73
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//11/a)

//11/b)

//14/a)

//14/b)

//15

//16

//17

//18

Other interest receivable and smilar income

derived from affiliated undertakings

other interest and similar income

Interest payable and similar expenses

concerning affiliated undertakings

other interest and similar expenses

Tax on profit or loss

Profit or loss after taxation

Other taxes not shown under items 1 to 16

Profit or loss for the financial year

   53 861.89

   64 592.25

        0.00

 -119 998.75

 -217 600.36

1 137 817.08

  -16 050.00

1 121 767.08

   49 011.58

   74 510.83

   -3 892.14

 -136 303.10

   -3 431.27

  305 345.28

  -79 018.83

  226 326.45

755411000

755412000

755413000

756100000

756200000

656100000

655210000

655220000

656200000

671100000

671200000

672100000

672200000

771000000

681100000

683010000

142000000

Int. from affiliated undertakings - Syncordis Ltd (UK)

Int. from affiliated undertakings - SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.

Int. from affiliated undertakings - Syncordis France S.à r.l.

Foreign currency exchange gains - affiliated undertakings

Foreign currency exchange gains - other

Foreign currency exchange losses - affiliated undertakings

Banking interest on current accounts

Banking interest on financing operations

Foreign currency exchange losses - other

CIT - current financial year

CIT - previous financial years

MBT - current financial year

MBT - previous financial years

Adjustments of corporate income tax (CIT)

NWT - current financial year

Foreign taxes - Belgian Corporate Income Tax

Result for the financial year

   31 729.32

    3 849.24

   18 283.33

        0.00

   64 592.25

        0.00

      -96.41

  -58 924.64

  -60 977.70

 -111 000.00

  -52 524.16

  -86 200.00

   -4 574.30

   36 698.10

  -16 050.00

        0.00

1 121 767.08

   27 357.58

    2 244.62

   13 966.67

    5 442.71

   74 510.83

   -3 892.14

     -230.71

  -59 352.61

  -76 719.78

       -0.01

        0.00

   -3 431.26

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

  -79 018.83

  226 326.45
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To the Board of Directors of 
SYNCORDIS PSF S.A. 
5 rue des Primeurs 
L-2361 Strassen 

 

REPORT OF THE RÉVISEUR D’ENTREPRISES AGRÉÉ 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of SYNCORDIS PSF S.A. (the “Company”) which comprise 
the balance sheet as at December 31, 2021 and the profit and loss account for the year then ended, 
and notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of SYNCORDIS PSF S.A. as at December 31, 2021, and of the results of its operations for 
the year then ended in accordance with the Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating 
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted out audit in accordance with the law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession (Law of 
23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as adopted for Luxembourg by the 
“Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier” (CSSF). Our responsibilities under those Law 
and standards are further described in the “Responsibilities of “Reviseur d’Entreprises Agréé” for the 
audit of the financial statements” section of our report. We are also independent of the Company in 
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including 
International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statement, and have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 

 



 

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the 
preparation of the financial statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends 
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Responsibilities of the Réviseur d’Entreprises Agréé for the audit of financial statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of 
“Reviseur d’Entreprises Agréé” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 
2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for 
Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:  

 Identify and asses the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 



 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our report of “Réviseur d’Entreprises Agréé” to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
report of “Réviseur d’Entreprises Agréé”. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters that planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

RSM Audit Luxembourg S.à r.l 
Cabinet de révision agréé 

 

Pierre LEROY 
Partner 

Luxembourg, April 13th, 2022 
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SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
ASSETS as at 31/12/2021

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B217963

Matricule: 2017 2209 247

A

B

C

D

E

Subscribed capital unpaid 

Formation expenses

Fixed assets

Current assets

Prepayments

I

II

I

II

III

I

II

III

IV

Subscribed capital not called

Subscribed capital called but unpaid

Intangible assets

Tangible assets

Financial assets

Stocks

Debtors

Investments

Cash at bank and in hand

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

5

6

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

Costs of development

Concessions, patents, licences, trade marks and similar rights and assets, if they were

Goodwill, to the extent that it was acquired for valuable consideration

Payments on account and intangible assets under development

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery 

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment

Payments on account and tangible assets in the course of construction

Shares in affiliated undertakings

Loans to affiliated undertakings

Participating interests

Loans to undertakings with which the undertaking is linked by virtue of participating inte

Investments held as fixed assets

Other loans

Raw materials and consumables

Work in progress

Finished goods and goods for resale

Payments on account

Trade debtors

Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings

Amounts owed by undertakings with which the undertaking is linked by virtue of participati

Other debtors

Shares in affiliated undertakings

Own shares

Other investments

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

acquired for valuable consideration and need not be shown under C.I.3

created by the undertaking itself

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

   20 977.00

   52 949.03

        0.00

   55 086.00

        0.00

        0.01

  351 763.18

1 702 625.48

   35 121.44

    9 678.00

   57 351.12

        0.00

   72 290.55

        0.00

      592.36

    5 235.75

1 894 753.48

   20 876.56

TOTAL ASSETS

        0.00

   55 086.01
        0.01

        0.01

   55 086.00

        0.00

2 142 459.13
        0.00

2 089 510.10

        0.00

2 218 522.14

        0.00

   72 882.91
      592.36

      592.36

   72 290.55

        0.00

1 978 216.91
        0.00

1 920 865.79

        0.00

2 060 777.82

SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
ASSETS as at 31/12/2021

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B217963

Matricule: 2017 2209 247



SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
Detail for ASSETS

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

C/I/2/a)

C/II/3

D/II/1/a)

D/II/2/a)

D/II/4/a)

D/IV

E/

Fixed assets

Current assets

Prepayments

Intangible assets

Concessions, patents, licences, trade marks and similar rights and assets, if they were

acquired for valuable consideration and need not be shown under C.I.3

Tangible assets

Other fixtures and fittings, tools and equipment

Debtors

Trade debtors

becoming due and payable within one year

Amounts owed by affiliated undertakings

becoming due and payable within one year

Other debtors

becoming due and payable within one year

Cash at bank and in hand

        0.01

   55 086.00

  351 763.18

1 702 625.48

   35 121.44

   52 949.03

   20 977.00

      592.36

   72 290.55

    5 235.75

1 894 753.48

   20 876.56

   57 351.12

    9 678.00

212130000

212130009

223400000

223400009

223500000

223500009

401100000

401400000

411111000

411180100

421110000

421410000

421420020

421420021

421430020

421430021

421711000

421782000

513100100

513100400

513100500

513100600

513101000

481000000

Software licences

Software licences - value adjustment

Furniture

Furniture - value adjustment

Computer equipment 

Computer hardware - value adjustment

Trade debtors

Customers - Unbilled sales

Sales of goods and services to affiliated undertakings

Credit Note of goods and services to affiliated undertakings

Staff - Advances and down payments 

Corporate income tax

ICC Advances 2020

Avances ICC 2021

Wealth Tax (IF) - 2020 advances

Avances IF 2021

Employer social insurance fund

Other subsidies to promote employment - ADEM - CIE

BCEE C/C LU32 0019 5855 5392 7000 (EUR)

VISA BCEE 4940 3619 0655 8672 (FISCH Stephane)

VISA BCEE 4940 3619 0007 2050 (MULLER Denis)

VISA BCEE 4940 3619 0918 9509 (HOET VEECKMANS Pierre)

ING C/C LU83 0141 3581 8590 0000 (EUR)

Deferred charges (on one or more financial years)

    3 385.00

   -3 384.99

    6 929.80

   -6 509.31

  187 134.41

 -132 468.90

   74 277.18

  277 486.00

1 702 625.48

        0.00

    4 881.49

    8 267.00

    5 799.00

    7 732.00

    1 605.00

    1 605.00

    5 231.95

        0.00

   59 770.04

   -1 129.15

   -5 032.42

     -659.44

        0.00

   20 977.00

    3 385.00

   -2 792.64

    6 929.80

   -5 782.85

  155 950.39

  -84 806.79

    5 235.75

        0.00

1 928 009.22

  -33 255.74

    2 119.95

    7 865.75

    5 799.00

        0.00

    1 605.00

        0.00

    1 539.70

    1 947.16

   14 365.76

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

   42 985.36

    9 678.00

SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
Detail for ASSETS

ASSETS 31/12/2021 31/12/2020



SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES as at 31/12/2021

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B217963

Matricule: 2017 2209 247

A

B

C

D

Capital and reserves

Provisions

Creditors

Deferred income

I

II

III

IV

V

VI

VII

VIII

Subscribed capital

Share premium account

Revaluation reserve

Reserves

Profit or loss brought forward

Profit or loss for the financial year

Interim dividends

Capital investment subsidies

1

2

3

4

1

2

3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Legal reserve

Reserve for own shares

Reserves provided for by the articles of association

Other reserves, including the fair value reserve

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

Provisions for taxation

Other provisions

Debenture loans

Amounts owed to credit institutions

Payments received on account of orders in so far as they are not shown separately as deduc

Trade creditors

Bills of exchange payable

Amounts owed to affiliated undertakings

Amounts owed to undertakings with which the undertaking is linked by virtue of participati

Other creditors

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

c)

other available reserves

other non available reserves

Convertible loans

Non convertible loans 

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

Tax authorities

Social security authorities

Other creditors

i)

ii)

i)

ii)

i

ii

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

becoming due and payable within one year

becoming due and payable after more than one year

  413 187.00

  400 000.00

   31 579.76

  -21 948.80

    6 000.00

  256 727.92

        0.00

        0.00

   43 965.38

  904 371.96

  135 847.79

   48 189.13

      602.00

  350 000.00

  400 000.00

  -25 240.17

   59 819.93

    3 000.00

  410 059.47

        0.00

      166.70

   34 084.96

  418 297.64

  127 689.89

  282 859.40

       40.00

TOTAL CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

  415 630.96

    6 000.00

  256 727.92

1 132 976.26

2 218 522.14

  437 579.76

    3 000.00

  410 059.47

  863 138.59

2 060 777.82

SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES as at 31/12/2021

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B217963

Matricule: 2017 2209 247



SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

A/I

A/IV/1

A/V

A/VI

B//3

C//2/a)

C//4/a)

C//6/a)

C//8/a)

C//8/b)

C//8/c)/i

D/

Capital and reserves

Provisions

Creditors

Deferred income

Subscribed capital

Reserves

Legal reserve

Profit or loss brought forward

Profit or loss for the financial year

Other provisions

Amounts owed to credit institutions

becoming due and payable within one year

Trade creditors

becoming due and payable within one year

Amounts owed to affiliated undertakings

becoming due and payable within one year

Other creditors

Tax authorities

Social security authorities

Other creditors

becoming due and payable within one year

  400 000.00

    6 000.00

   31 579.76

  -21 948.80

  256 727.92

        0.00

   43 965.38

  904 371.96

  135 847.79

   48 189.13

      602.00

  413 187.00

  400 000.00

    3 000.00

  -25 240.17

   59 819.93

  410 059.47

      166.70

   34 084.96

  418 297.64

  127 689.89

  282 859.40

       40.00

  350 000.00

101000000

131000000

141200000

142000000

188110000

188120000

194101000

441110000

441120000

451111000

451123000

451183000

461231000

461240000

461412000

462100000

462810000

471812000

482000000

Subscribed capital 

Legal reserve

Results brought forward (assigned)

Result for the financial year

Holidays provisions

Bonuse Provision

VISA - FISCH Stéphane - LU93 0141 4581 8591 0000

Suppliers

Suppliers - invoices not yet received

Sales of goods and services towards affiliated undertakings

Loan to SYNCORDIS S.A.

Other Payables - C/C SYNCORDIS S.A. - Tax unity

NWT - Tax accrual

Withholding tax on wages and salaries

VAT payable

Social Security office (CCSS)

Other subsidies to promote employment - ADEM - Chômage partiel

Employees' expenses to be paid

Deferred income (on one or more financial years)

  400 000.00

    6 000.00

   31 579.76

  -21 948.80

   45 147.92

  211 580.00

        0.00

   16 574.58

   27 390.80

  600 945.43

  299 995.28

    3 431.25

    7 235.00

   32 090.72

   96 522.07

   48 189.13

        0.00

      602.00

  413 187.00

  400 000.00

    3 000.00

  -25 240.17

   59 819.93

   41 986.32

  368 073.15

      166.70

    6 084.96

   28 000.00

  310 059.01

  104 807.38

    3 431.25

    1 885.00

   29 688.86

   96 116.03

  238 573.80

   44 285.60

       40.00

  350 000.00

SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020



SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
Detail for CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND LIABILITIES 31/12/2021 31/12/2020



SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B217963

Matricule: 2017 2209 247

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

Net turnover

Variation in stocks of finished goods and in work in progress

Work performed by the undertaking for its own purposes and capitalised

Other operating income

Raw materials and consumables and other external expenses

Staff costs

Value adjustments

Other operating expenses

Income from participating interests

Income from other investments and loans forming part of the fixed assets

Other interest receivable and smilar income

Share of profit or loss of undertakings accounted for under the equity method

Value adjustments in respect of financial assets and of investments held as current assets

Interest payable and similar expenses

Tax on profit or loss

Profit or loss after taxation

Other taxes not shown under items 1 to 16

Profit or loss for the financial year

a)

b)

a)

b)

c)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

a)

b)

Raw materials and consumables

Other external expenses

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Other staff costs

in respect of formation expenses and of tangible and intangible fixed asset

in respect of current assets

derived from affiliated undertakings

other income from participating interests

derived from affiliated undertakings

other income not included under a)

derived from affiliated undertakings

other interest and similar income

concerning affiliated undertakings

other interest and similar expenses

i)

ii)

relating to pensions

other social security costs

3 698 525.71

  429 825.81

 -263 057.79

        0.00

  -16 598.80

   -5 350.00

  -21 948.80

        0.00

 -632 237.07

-2 872 028.10

  -48 980.92

        0.13

   -3 849.24

        0.00

 -204 574.44

 -120 222.89

3 141 113.43

  303 654.91

 -409 211.82

        0.00

   61 704.93

   -1 885.00

   59 819.93

        0.00

 -372 634.76

-2 256 428.02

  -84 483.44

    2 846.11

   -2 244.62

     -385.29

 -163 151.17

  -97 370.40

SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

No RC: B217963

Matricule: 2017 2209 247



SYNCORDIS PSF S.A.  EUR
Detail for PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 31/12/2021 31/12/2020

//1

//4

//5/b)

Net turnover

Other operating income

Raw materials and consumables and other external expenses

Other external expenses

3 698 525.71

  429 825.81

 -632 237.07

3 141 113.43

  303 654.91

 -372 634.76

703300000

703301000

703301100

703303100

703304000

703304100

703304110

703304300

703305100

703306100

703307100

703308100

703309110

703310000

703311000

703311100

703311200

744210000

745310000

745410000

745420000

745810000

748800000

749220000

611120000

611231000

612100000

612110000

612130000

612140000

612141000

612150000

612160009

612170000

612172000

612180000

612190002

612190004

612191000

612230000

612281000

613200000

613330000

613340000

613410000

613412000

613420000

613421000

Sales of services

Services to Syncordis France SARL

Management/Back Office costs charged to Syncordis France sarl

Management/Back Office costs charged to Syncordis Ltd UK

Services to Syncordis S.A.

Services to Syncordis S.A. - credit note to be issued

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen & Partner (DE)

Management/Back Office costs charged to Syncordis S.A.

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen & Partner (AU)

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen + Partner Pte Ltd - Singapore

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen + Partner Unternehmensberater AG

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen & Partner (Luxembourg)

Management/Back Office costs charged to Nielsen & Partner (Bangkok)

Trade debtors - sales invoice accruals

Resomption on sales invoice accruals

Trade debtors - sales invoice differed

Resumption on differed sales income

Book value of yielded tangible fixed assets

Offsetting amounts - congé paternité

Other subsidies to promote employment - ADEM - CIE

Other subsidies to promote employment

Autres subventions d'exploitation - Cofinancement Etatique

Miscellaneous operating income

Reprises sur provisions primes

Buildings

Rolling stock

General subcontracting

General subcontracting - Syncordis S.A.

General subcontracting - Syncordis Limited (UK)

General subcontracting - Syncordis S.A.

Management/Back Office costs charged by Syncordis SA

General subcontracting - Syncordis France S.à r.l.

General subcontracting - Larsen and Tourbo entities - provision

General Subcontracting - Dnd Solution sarl

General subcontracting - Larsen and Tourbo Infotech Limited (India)

General subcontracting - Nielsen + Partner S.A. (Luxembourg)

General subcontracting - Nielsen + Partner Pte Ltd (Switzerland)

Mamagement cost - Nielsen + Partner Pte Ltd (Switzerland)-Pramod Haridas

Management/Back Office costs charged by Nielsen + Partner GmbH (Hamburg)

Maintenance and repairs of movable equipment

Maintenance and repairs of plant and machinery

IT services

Bank account charges and bank commissions (included custody fees on securities)

Charges for electronic means of paiment

Legal, litigation and similar fees

Legal fees - purchase invoice accruals

Accounting, tax consulting, auditing and similar fees

Audit fees - purchase invoice accruals

1 528 352.99

   10 451.70

   48 003.84

   56 483.76

1 097 851.70

        0.00

   44 627.52

  519 761.88

   20 352.36

  119 515.80

   30 280.32

        0.00

    8 544.84

  276 826.00

      660.00

 -593 187.00

  530 000.00

      452.99

        0.00

    1 168.04

   10 528.26

    2 590.18

   47 013.19

  368 073.15

 -129 516.00

   -7 320.43

  -36 960.20

  -23 621.53

        0.00

  -90 277.20

  -40 755.72

   -6 900.00

   -4 240.80

   -5 625.00

   -9 597.60

        0.00

  -22 406.40

   -3 185.21

  -26 045.85

    1 368.73

     -700.00

     -105.00

     -681.18

     -200.00

  -72 453.09

   -6 650.00

  -29 759.97

   11 500.00

  916 709.64

   26 649.48

   35 163.98

   41 375.80

1 507 799.62

   11 475.00

   32 690.93

  394 324.96

   14 908.65

   87 548.49

   22 181.09

   37 626.52

    6 259.27

        0.00

        0.00

 -350 000.00

  356 400.00

        0.00

    1 920.74

   13 377.38

        0.00

        0.00

  102 356.79

  186 000.00

 -106 041.60

        0.00

  -14 912.12

        0.00

   -6 254.25

        0.00

  -39 872.60

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

   -7 560.00

   -8 280.00

        0.00

  -19 965.63

      -49.57

      -86.04

     -175.00

   -1 094.70

        0.00

  -32 131.50

   -6 500.00

  -23 711.75

  -14 000.00
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//6/a)

//6/b)/i)

//6/b)/ii)

//7/a)

//8

Staff costs

Wages and salaries

Social security costs

relating to pensions

other social security costs

Value adjustments

in respect of formation expenses and of tangible and intangible fixed assets

Other operating expenses

-2 872 028.10

 -204 574.44

 -120 222.89

  -48 980.92

 -263 057.79

-2 256 428.02

 -163 151.17

  -97 370.40

  -84 483.44

 -409 211.82

613422000

613480000

613810000

615212000

615212100

615240000

615310000

615320000

615321000

615321100

618200000

618420000

618510000

618520000

618580000

618700000

618710000

621110000

621121000

621122000

621123000

621140000

621150000

621151000

621152000

621155000

621800000

621910000

621911000

623100000

623200000

623210000

632230000

633200000

633303000

633305000

641300000

641310000

646200000

648110000

648140000

648800300

Payroll calculation fees

Other professional fees

Staff recruitment costs

Travel expenses - Staff

Parking

Receptions and entertainment costs

Postal charges 

Telecommunication costs

Customised Emergency Open Space Services

Customised Emergency Open Space Services - purchase invoice accruals

Costs of training, symposiums, seminars, conferences

Liquid fuels (oil, motor fuel, etc.)

Office supplies

Small equipment

Other

Contributions to professional associations

CSSF fees

Base wages

Sunday

Public holidays

Overtime

Incentives, bonuses and commissions

Benefits in kind

Chèques repas

Reprise voitures

Participation leasing voitures

Other benefits

Reimbursments for employer social insurance fund

Remboursements ADEM - Chômage partiel

Social security on pensions 

Other social security costs (including illness, accidents, a.s.o.)

Occupational health service

Licences informatiques (logiciels et progiciels informatiques) - value adjustmen

AVA on plant and machinery

Furniture - value adjustment

Computer hardware (hardware) - value adjustment

Software licences

IT Licences (software and software packages) - Deferred charges

Non-refundable VAT

Amendes et intérêts de retard envers ACD

Intérêts de retard impôts sur salaires

Other sundry operating charges - SYNCORDIS S.A. - Tax unity

   -9 051.60

     -100.00

  -11 700.00

  -17 678.21

     -183.32

   -4 891.43

     -186.00

  -24 196.43

   -5 002.70

       80.00

   -2 308.46

   -5 568.76

  -16 312.47

     -749.00

     -116.24

     -140.00

  -30 000.00

-2 380 060.00

     -277.25

   -1 806.24

   -1 527.64

 -432 794.00

  -31 058.69

  -71 642.24

    2 071.90

       63.92

        0.00

   45 002.14

        0.00

 -204 574.44

 -118 917.89

   -1 305.00

     -592.35

        0.00

     -726.46

  -47 662.11

  -54 243.71

   11 219.00

   -5 279.98

      -11.50

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

        0.00

  -15 601.26

     -100.14

   -1 870.83

      -49.70

  -12 195.54

   -7 974.24

    2 421.00

   -3 686.54

   -5 260.38

        0.00

        0.00

   -2 431.21

     -251.16

  -45 000.00

-1 887 649.00

   -1 122.15

   -7 409.54

  -15 147.20

 -255 750.00

  -28 956.32

  -57 127.33

        0.00

        0.00

  -60 591.94

   41 462.18

   15 863.28

 -163 151.17

  -96 380.40

     -990.00

   -1 128.22

  -29 500.43

   -2 309.70

  -51 545.09

  -24 953.73

   -1 979.00

   -4 922.58

        0.00

     -334.75

   -3 431.25
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//11/b)

//14/a)

//14/b)

//16

//17

//18

Other interest receivable and smilar income

other interest and similar income

Interest payable and similar expenses

concerning affiliated undertakings

other interest and similar expenses

Profit or loss after taxation

Other taxes not shown under items 1 to 16

Profit or loss for the financial year

        0.13

   -3 849.24

        0.00

  -16 598.80

   -5 350.00

  -21 948.80

    2 846.11

   -2 244.62

     -385.29

   61 704.93

   -1 885.00

   59 819.93

649210000

649220000

756200000

655411000

656200000

681100000

142000000

Holidays provisions

Dotation aux provisions pour primes

Foreign currency exchange gains - other

Interests on affiliated undertakings - Syncordis S.A.

Foreign currency exchange losses - other

NWT - current financial year

Result for the financial year

   -3 161.60

 -211 580.00

        0.13

   -3 849.24

        0.00

   -5 350.00

  -21 948.80

   -5 517.36

 -368 073.15

    2 846.11

   -2 244.62

     -385.29

   -1 885.00

   59 819.93
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 
 

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021. 

 
Principal activities 
The principal activity of the company continued to be that of information technology consultancy. 

 
Directors 
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as 
follows: 

 
Mr S Chaturvedi 
Mr G P M Desjonqueres 
Mr A Sonthalia (Resigned 19 January 2021) 
Mr N G Deshpande (Appointed 1 February 2021) 

 
Auditor 
In accordance with the company's articles, a resolution proposing that The Paris Partnership be reappointed as 
auditor of the company will be put at a General Meeting. 

 
Statement of disclosure to auditor 
So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which the company’s auditor is unaware. Additionally, the directors individually have taken all the 
necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant 
audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that information. 

 
Small companies exemption 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies entitled to the small 
companies exemption. 

 
On behalf of the board 

 
 

Digitally signed by 
Guillaume_Desjonqueres 

..............................
Date: 2022.04.14 18:34:28

 

 
.............................. 
Mr G P M Desjonqueres 
Director 

 
 

Date: 14-April-2022 
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with 
applicable law and regulations. 

 
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the 
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law 
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing 
these financial statements, the directors are required to: 

 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
• make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that 

the company will continue in business. 
 

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain 
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They 
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

 
 

Notes 

 
2021 

£ 

 
2020 

£ 

Turnover 4,394,581 2,951,261 
Cost of sales (3,265,803) (2,500,129) 

Gross profit 1,128,778 451,132 

Administrative expenses (1,154,889) (995,542) 
Other operating income - 6,870 

Operating loss (26,111) (537,540) 

Interest receivable and similar income - 34 
Interest payable and similar expenses 4 (28,079) (24,210) 

Loss before taxation (54,190) (561,716) 

Tax on loss 5 (4,894) 91,236 

Loss for the financial year (59,084) (470,480) 
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BALANCE SHEET 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 
 
 

2021 2020 
Notes £ £ £ £ 

 
Fixed assets  

Intangible assets 6  71,346  142,692 
Tangible assets 7  493  13,157 

   
71,839 

 
155,849 

Current assets      

Debtors 8 3,416,841  1,664,877  

Cash at bank and in hand  566,954  193,443  

  
3,983,795 

 
1,858,320 

 

Creditors: amounts falling due within 
one year 

 
9 

 
(3,090,376) 

  
(1,383,852) 

 

Net current assets 
  

893,419 
 

474,468 

Total assets less current liabilities 
  

965,258 
 

630,317 

Creditors: amounts falling due after 
more than one year 

 
10 

  
(2,938,055) 

  
(2,544,030) 

Net liabilities 
  

(1,972,797) 
 

(1,913,713) 

 
Capital and reserves 

     

Called up share capital   1,000  1,000 
Profit and loss reserves   (1,973,797)  (1,914,713) 

Total equity 
  

(1,972,797) 
 

(1,913,713) 

 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies 
subject to the small companies regime. 

 
The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on ......................... 
and are signed on its behalf by: 

 
Digitally signed by 
Guillaume_Desjonqueres 

..............................
Date: 2022.04.14 18:09:52

 

Mr G P M Desjonqueres 
Director 

 
Company Registration No. 10045506 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

1 Accounting policies 

 
Company information 
Syncordis Ltd is a private company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales. The registered 
office is Rayner Essex LLP, Tavistock House South, Tavistock Square, London, WC1H 9LG. 

 
1.1 Accounting convention 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”) and the requirements of the 
Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies subject to the small companies regime. The disclosure 
requirements of section 1A of FRS 102 have been applied other than where additional disclosure is 
required to show a true and fair view. 

 
The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company. 
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £. 

 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with 
applicable accounting standards. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below. 

 
Syncordis Ltd is a 100% subsidiary of Syncordis S.A., which in turn is a 100% subsidiary of L&T Infotech 
GmbH. L&T Infotech GmbH is a 100% subsidiary of L&T Infotech Ltd, a company incorporated in India and 
listed on the NSE and BSE in India. The results of Syncordis Ltd are included in the consolidated financial 
statements of L&T Infotech Ltd and group accounts can be obtained from the ultimate parent company's 
office at L&T House, Ballard Estate, P.O. Box 278, Mumbai 400 001, India. 

 
1.2 Going concern 

The directors have considered the effect of the Covid 19 pandemic and consider that the continued 
restrictions imposed in various countries may delay the roll out of the company's business plan. They have 
received confirmation that any repayment of loans from the parent are not due until 1 August 2022. These 
loans, currently amounting to £2,938,055, are included as due after one year. The directors consider the 
parent company's loan facility provides sufficient finance to allow the company to progress its business 
plan. They are confident, that with the continued financial support from the parent company, Syncordis S.A. 
the previously expected growth will return as the market improves with the global roll out of a vaccine and, 
on that basis, have adopted the going concern basis of accounting in preparing these financial statements. 

 
1.3 Turnover 

Turnover represents amounts receivable for services net of VAT. 

 
Turnover represents revenue earned under a wide variety of contracts to provide Information Technology 
and support services. Revenue is recognised as earned when, and to the extent that, the firm obtains the 
right to consideration in exchange for its performance under these contracts. it is measured at the fair 
value of the right to consideration, which represent amounts chargeable to clients, including expenses and 
disbursements but excluding value added tax. Revenue not billed to clients is included in debtors and 
payments on account in excess of the relevant amount of revenue are included in creditors 

 
1.4 Research and development expenditure 

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable development expenditure is capitalised to the extent 
that the technical, commercial and financial feasibility can be demonstrated. 
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)  
 

1.5 Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill 
Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently 
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

 
Intangible assets acquired on business combinations are recognised separately from goodwill at the 
acquisition date where it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the 
asset will flow to the entity and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably; the intangible asset 
arises from contractual or other legal rights; and the intangible asset is separable from the entity. 

 
Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less 
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when 
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected 
future benefit. Amortisation is recorded in cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is 
tested for impairment annually. 

 
Amortisation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over 
their useful lives on the following bases: 

 
Development costs 3 years straight line 

 
1.6 Tangible fixed assets 

Tangible fixed assets are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of 
depreciation and any impairment losses. 

 
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over 
their useful lives on the following bases: 

 
Computers 3 years straight line 

 
The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale 
proceeds and the carrying value of the asset, and is credited or charged to profit or loss. 

 
1.7 Cash at bank and in hand 

Cash and cash equivalents are basic financial assets and include cash in hand, deposits held at call with 
banks, other short-term liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank 
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities. 

 
1.8 Financial instruments 

The company has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 
12 ‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to all of its financial instruments. 

 
Financial instruments are recognised in the company's balance sheet when the company becomes party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial statements, when 
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)  
 

Basic financial assets 
Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at 
transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction 
is measured at the present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial 
assets classified as receivable within one year are not amortised. 

 
Classification of financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual 
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the 
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. 

 
Basic financial liabilities 
Basic financial liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and 
preference shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the 
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present 
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilities classified as 
payable within one year are not amortised. 

 
Debt instruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. 

 
Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course 
of business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 
one year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade creditors are recognised initially 
at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

 
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised 
in profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that 
are attributable to the hedged risk. 
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)  
 

1.9 Taxation 
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 
Current tax 
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as 
reported in the profit and loss account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The company’s 
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting end date. 

 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and deferred tax assets are 
recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax 
liabilities or other future taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing 
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction 
that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the 
asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss 
account, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred 
tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the company has a legally 
enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate 
to taxes levied by the same tax authority. 

 
1.10 Employee benefits 

The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs 
are required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets. 

 
The cost of any unused holiday entitlement is recognised in the period in which the employee’s services 
are received. 

 
Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably 
committed to terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits. 

 
1.11 Retirement benefits 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

 
1.12 Government grants 

Government grants are recognised at the fair value of the asset received or receivable when there is 
reasonable assurance that the grant conditions will be met and the grants will be received. 

 
A grant that specifies performance conditions is recognised in income when the performance conditions 
are met. Where a grant does not specify performance conditions it is recognised in income when the 
proceeds are received or receivable. A grant received before the recognition criteria are satisfied is 
recognised as a liability. 

 
1.13 Foreign exchange 

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at 
the dates of the transactions. At each reporting end date, monetary assets and liabilities that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the reporting end date. Gains 
and losses arising on translation in the period are included in profit or loss. 
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2 Auditor's remuneration  

2021
  

2020
Fees payable to the company's auditor and associates: £ £

For audit services 
Audit of the financial statements of the company 

 

6,500

  

6,500

 
3 Employees 

   

 

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year 
was: 

 
 2021 2020 

Number Number 

Total 22 24 

 
4 Interest payable and similar expenses 

 

 
2021 

 

 
2020 

 
Interest payable and similar expenses includes the following: 

£ £ 

Interest payable to group undertakings 28,079 24,210 

 

 
5 Taxation 

 
 

 
2021 

 
 

 
2020 

 
Deferred tax 

£ £ 

Deferred tax on losses for the current period 4,894 (91,236) 
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6 Intangible fixed assets 
 
 

Cost 

  
Other

£

At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021  214,038

Amortisation and impairment   

At 1 January 2021  71,346
Amortisation charged for the year  71,346

At 31 December 2021  142,692

Carrying amount   

At 31 December 2021  71,346

At 31 December 2020 
 

142,692

 
7 Tangible fixed assets 

  

  Plant and
machinery

etc
  £

Cost   

At 1 January 2021  41,616
Additions  633

At 31 December 2021  42,249

Depreciation and impairment   

At 1 January 2021  28,459
Depreciation charged in the year  13,297

At 31 December 2021  41,756

Carrying amount   

At 31 December 2021  493

At 31 December 2020 
 

13,157

 
8 Debtors 

  

 2021 2020
Amounts falling due within one year: £ £

Trade debtors 749,048 325,027
Other debtors 2,667,793 1,339,850

 3,416,841 1,664,877
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9 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year  
2021 2020 

£ £ 
 

Trade creditors 37,615 32,916 
Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,454,838 858,355 
Taxation and social security 138,508 74,293 
Other creditors 459,415 418,288 

 

3,090,376 1,383,852 
  

 

10 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year  
2021 2020 

£ £ 
 

Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,938,055      2,544,030 

 
The amount owed to group undertakings includes £2,938,055 (2020: £2,544,030) due to Syncordis S.A.. 
Interest is payable at the rate of 1% per annum (non-cumulating) and the loan facility will be repayable on 
30th April 2023, whereupon the facility will be reviewed. 

 
 

11 Related party transactions 

 
The company has taken advantage of exemption, under the terms of Financial Reporting Standard 102 
'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', not to disclose related 
party transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries within the group. 

 
12 Parent company 

 
The parent undertaking is Syncordis S.A., a company incorporated in Luxembourg. The ultimate controlling 
party is L&T Infotech Ltd, a company incorporated in India. 

 
Copies of the group accounts can be obtained from the Company Secretary at L&T House, Ballard Estate, 
P.O. Box 278, Mumbai 400 001, India. 
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DETAILED TRADING AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 
 
 
Turnover 

 
£

2021 
£ 

 
£ 

2020 
£ 

Sales of services  4,394,581  2,951,261 

Cost of sales 
Purchases and other direct costs 
Direct costs 

 
 

7,748

  
 

9,466 

 

Wages and salaries 1,698,314 1,588,674  

Social security costs 187,184 202,106  

Subcontract labour 1,092,178 255,130  

Staff bonuses 155,568 265,964  

Staff recruitment costs 66,309 26,100  

Staff pension costs defined contribution 58,116 47,434  

Offshore development expenses 386 105,255  

Total purchases and other direct costs 3,265,803
 

2,500,129 
 

Total cost of sales 
 

(3,265,803) 
 

(2,500,129) 

Gross profit 
 

1,128,778 
 

451,132 

Other operating income 
Government grants receivable and released 

  

- 

  

6,870 

Administrative expenses 
 

(1,154,889) 
 

(995,542) 

Operating loss 
 

(26,111) 
 

(537,540) 

Interest receivable and similar income 
Bank interest received 

 

-

  

34 

 

 
Interest payable and similar expenses 

 
- 

 
34 

Interest payable to group companies  (28,079)  (24,210) 

Loss before taxation 
 

(54,190) 
 

(561,716) 



SYNCORDIS LTD 
 

 

 
SCHEDULE OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 

 

  
2021

  
2020 

 £ £ 
Administrative expenses    

Wages and salaries 216,200 287,133 
Social security costs 32,317 43,157 
Consultancy 91,261 93,028 
Staff bonuses 62,590 102,360 
Staff welfare 2,641 2,541 
Staff training 1,650 17,041 
Staff pension costs defined contribution 6,200 6,200 
Rent re licences and other 144,964 144,000 
Cleaning 84 - 
Repairs and maintenance 588 3,770 
Computer & IT software costs 8,774 14,653 
Motor running expenses 428 - 
Travel and subsistence 49,057 13,137 
Professional subscriptions 1,326 1,467 
Legal and professional fees 37,269 40,191 
Accountancy 33,570 35,745 
Audit fees 6,500 6,500 
Bank charges 502 796 
Insurance 4,611 2,990 
Printing, postage and stationery 3,386 628 
Telecommunications 1,885 1,083 
Entertaining 4,188 1,505 
Sundry expenses 342 99 
Fines and penalties - 1,030 
Management and back office costs 356,068 111,963 
Amortisation 71,346 71,346 
Depreciation 13,297 13,872 
Profit or loss on foreign exchange 3,845 (20,693) 

 
1,154,889

 
995,542 
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EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 

RBA 1 rue le Corbusier - 37230 FONDETTES Phone. : 02 47 42 26 93

• Balance Sheet Assets

Gross Depreciation Net as 
of 
12/31/2021 

Net as 
of 
12/31/2020 

Capital Stock without call 
TANGIBLE ASSETS 
Intangible assets 
Expenses of installation 
Research and development costs 
Grants, patents, licenses, software, rights & similar 
values 
Goodwill ( I ) 
Other intangible assets 
Advances and deposits on intangible assets 
tangible fixed assets 
Land Buildings 
Constructions 
Technical installations, industrial equipment and 
tools  
Other tangible assets 14 205,35 5 096,57 9 108,78 7 542,02 

Property, plant and equipment in progress  
Advances and deposits  
Financial assets (2)  
Investments in associates  
Other investments 
Receivables from investments  
Other long-term investments 
Loans 
Other financial assets 

1 490,00 1 490,00 1 490,00 
15 695,35  5 096,57 10 598,78 9 032,02 

29 804,35 29 804,35 166 003,88 

825 611,60 825 611,60 488 911,13 

551 996,56  551 996,56 291 210,26 
827,57 827,57 3 474,69 
1 408 240,08 1408240,08 949 599,96 

WORKING ASSETS , 
Inventories and stocks in progress 
Raw materials and other supplies 
Goods and services in progress 
Intermediate and finished goods 
Merchandise 
Advances and deposits paid on orders 
Accounts receivable (3) 
Trade receivables and related accounts 
Other receivables 
Capital issued and called, unpaid 
Miscellaneous 
Marketable securities 
Liquidity 
Prepaid expenses (3) 

Deferred loan issue expenses 
Bond repayment premiums            
Exchange rate differences on assets

GROSS TOTAL 1 423 935.43 5 096.57 1418 838.86 958 599.96 
• !.!.

(1) Donation of leasehold rights 

(2) Donation within one year (gross)

(3) Donation after one year (gross)) 
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Report 

EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 

RBA 1 rue le Corbusier - 37230 FONDETTES Phone. : 02 47 42 26 93

• Liability balance sheet
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Share premium, merger premium, contribution 
premium, 
Revaluation surplus  
Legal reserve 
Statutory or contact reserves  
Regulated reserves 
Other reserves 
Retained earnings 
RESULT OF THE YEAR (profit or loss) 
Investment grants  
Regulated provisions 

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES 

2365 748,83 

754 804,45 

623 497,00 

16 690,75 

157 230,32 

116 711,57 
-575 000,39 

1 500,00 

-666 798,41 

1 500,00 

15 000,00 ,_ 



Period from 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021 

Report 

EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 

RBA 1 rue le Corbusier - 37230 FONDETTES Phone : 02 47 42 26 93 

  Profit and loss account 
• 

. 

- 

Mission of presentation of the annual accounts I See certificate of the expert accountant  8 

12/31/2021 
12/31/2020 

Operating revenues (1)  
Sales of commodities  
Goods sold ( products)  
Services sold 3 629 230,36 2 921 979,57 
Net sales 3 629 230,36 2 921 979,57 
Donation to / exportation 1085 198,10 97 555,71 

Production in stock  
Capital assets production  
Operating subsidies 8000,00  
Reversals of provisions (and depreciation), transfer of expenses 2 690,75 211 290,84 
Other income 
Total I - , _ 1 153,72 

,- 3 641 074,83 
100,41 

3 133 370,82 
Operating costs (2) 
Purchase of commodities  
Variations of stock 
Purchase of raw materials and other supplies 
Variations of stocks 
Other purchases and external charges (a) 1 007947,80 878 603,88 
 Taxes, duties and similar payments  40 387,00 33 277,23 
Wages and salaries 1 971 220,40 1 589 733,55 
Social security costs 898 754,01 698 487,50 
Allowance for depreciation and amortization: 
- On fixed assets: depreciation and amortization 836,49 1 359,30 
- On fixed assets: depreciation 
- On current assets: depreciation
- For risks and expenses: provisions 
Other expenses ,_ 147,59 3 349,24 
Total II 3 919 293,29 3 204 810,70 

OPERATING PROFITS OR  LOSS (1-11)) -278 218,46 -71 439,88 
Profit-sharing on joint operations  
Profit attributed or loss transferred Ill 
Losses incurred or profits transferred IV 

Financial income 
From investments (3) 
From other securities and receivables of the fixed assets (3) 
Other interest and similar income (3) 
Reversals of provisions; impairments and transfer of expenses  
Positive exchange rate differences 
Net income from sales of marketable securities 
Total V 
Financial expenses 
Allowances for amortization, depreciation and provisions 
 Interest and similar expenses (41) 
Negative exchange rate differences 
Net expenses on disposal of marketable securities 

Total VI 

417,61 

417,61 

19 958,51 
284.46 

20 242,97 

419,58 

419,58 

15 283,25 
2,95 

15 286,20 

-19825,36 -14866,62
-298 043,82 -86 306,50 

FINANCIAL RESULT  (V-IV) 
CURRENT INCOME before taxes(1-11+111-IV+V-V -VI)

12/31/2021
12/31/2020

Operating revenues (1)
Sales of commodities 
Goods sold ( products)
Services sold 3 629 230,36 2 921 979,57
Net sales 3 629 230,36 2 921 979,57
Donation to / exportation 1085 198,10 97 555,71

Production in stock 
Capital assets production
Operating subsidies 8000,00
Reversals of provisions (and depreciation), transfer of expenses 2 690,75 211 290,84
Other income
Total I - , _ 1 153,72

,- 3 641 074,83
100,41

3 133 370,82
Operating costs (2)



Period from 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021 

Report 

EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 

• Income statement (continued)

12/31/2021 12/31/2020 

Exceptionnal products     
On management operations  7 197,86  

On capital operations 
Reversals of provisions; depreciation and transfer of 
expenses 
Total VII 7 197,86  

Special expenses 
On management operations 93 112,13 358,00 

On capital transactions 
Allowances for depreciation, amortization and provisions 1 563,52 

Total VIII 93 112,13 1 921,52 

.SPECIAL REVENUES (VII-VIII) -85 914,27 -1 921,52

Employee profit sharing (IX)  
Tax on profits (X) 29 365,04 3 570,0 0 

Total revenue (l+lll+V+VII) 3 648 690,30 3 133 790,40 
Total expenses (ll+IV+Vl+V lll+IX+X) 4062 013,43 3 225 588,42 

PROFIT OR LOSS -413 323,13 -91 798,02

(a) Including : 
- Equipment lease payments 
- Real estate leaseholds 
(1) Donation of revenue related to previous years 
(2) Donation of expenses related to prior years 
(3) Donation of income related to affiliated entities 
(4) Donation of interest related to affiliated entities 
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Report 

EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 

• Accounting rules and methods

Company name: EURL SYNCORD IS FRANCE 

Annex to the balance sheet before distribution for the year ended December 31, 2021, which totaled 1,418,839 
and to the income statement for the year, presented in list form, showing a loss of 413,323 Euros. The financial year has a duration of 12 months, covering the period from 
01/01/2021 to 12/31/2021. 
The following notes and tables form an integral part of the annual accounts. 

These annual accounts were closed on February 4, 2022 by the company's management. 

General rules 
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021 have been prepared in accordance with the regulation of the French Accounting Standards Authority (Autorité des 
Normes Comptables) no. 2014-03 of June 5, 2014, up to date with the various supplementary regulations in force at the date of preparation of the abovementioned financial 
statements. 

The accounting conventions have been applied with sincerity in compliance with the principle of prudence, in accordance with the following basic assumptions 
- the continuity of operations, 
consistency of accounting methods from one year to the next,
- independence of financial years. 

and in accordance with the general rules for the preparation and presentation of annual accounts. 

The basic method used for the valuation of items recorded in the accounts is the historical cost method. Only significant information is expressed. Apart from specific indication, the 
amounts are expressed in Euros. 
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 
Tangible and intangible fixed assets are valued at acquisition cost for assets acquired for valuable consideration, at production cost for assets produced by the company, and at 
market value for assets acquired free of charge or in exchange. 

The cost of a fixed asset consists of its purchase price, including customs duties and non-recoverable taxes, after deducting rebates, trade discounts and cash discounts for all 
directly attributable costs incurred in bringing the asset to its present location and condition for its intended use. Transfer taxes, fees or commissions and deed expenses related to 
the acquisition are not included in the acquisition cost. All costs that are not part of the purchase price of the asset and that cannot be directly attributed to the costs incurred in 
bringing the asset to its intended use are recorded as expenses. 
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Report 

EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 

• Accounting rules and methods

Depreciation 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the asset. 

- Office equipment: 5 to 10 years
- Computer equipment: 3 years
- Furniture: 10 years

The depreciation period used for simplification purposes is the useful life for assets that cannot be broken down at the outset. 
The company has assessed at the closing date, taking into account the internal and external information available to it, whether 
there are indications that the assets may have lost significant value. 

Receivables 

Receivables are valued at their nominal value. Depreciation is applied when the inventory value is lower than the market value. 

Issuance costs of loans 

The costs of issuing loans are immediately taken into account in the expenses of the financial year. 

Exceptional income and expenses 

Exceptional income and expenses take into account items that are not related to the normal activity of the company. 

Pension commitments 

The Company's collective agreement provides retirement benefits. No specific agreement has been signed. 

The corresponding commitments are mentioned in full in these notes. 

Retirement benefits are determined by applying a method that takes into account projected end-of-career salaries, staff turnover, 
life expectancy and assumptions for discounting expected payments. 

The actuarial assumptions used are as follows 

- Discount rate: 1.64
- Salary growth rate: 1.5 
- Retirement age: 65 years
- Employee turnover rate: 0%.
- Mortality rate table: INSEE 2021

Consequences of the Covid-19 event 

The Covid-19 event did not have a material impact on the company's assets, financial position or results. Nevertheless, as the 
event was still in progress at the date of preparation of the annual financial statements, the company is unable to assess the 
precise consequences for future years. 
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Period from 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021 

Report 

EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 

• Notes on the balance sheet

Fixed assets 

Table of fixed assets 

at the 
beginning 
of the 
year 

Increase Decrease at year-
end 

- - General installations, fixtures and fittings
- - Technical installations, equipment and tools
- - General facilities, fixtures and fittings
- - Office and computer equipment, furniture
- Property, plant and equipment

11 802 
11802 

2 403 
2403 

14 205 
14205 

- Investments valued by the equity method
- - Loans and other financial assets

Financial assets
1490 
1490 

1 490 
1490 

FIXED ASSETS 13 292 2 403  15 695 

Mission of presentation of the annual accounts I See certificate of the expert accountant  14 

RBA 1 rue le Corbusier - 37230 FONDETTES Phone. : 02 47 42 26 

93 



Period from 01/01/2021 to 31/12/2021 
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EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 

• Notes on the balance sheet

Depreciation of fixed assets 

At the 
beginning 
of the year 

Increase Decrease At the end 
of the 
year 

- - General installations, fixtures and fittings 
- - Technical installations, equipment and tools 
- - General installations, fixtures and fittings 
- - Office and computer equipment, furniture
- Tangible fixed assets 

4 260 
4260 

836 
836 

5 097 
5097 

[FIXED ASSETS: DEPRECIATION 4260 836 5 097 
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EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 
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• Notes on the balance sheet

Working capital 

Status of receivables 

Total receivables at the end of the fiscal year amounted to 857,734 Euros and can be broken down as follows: 

Amount 
gross 

Maturities 
Maximum of 1 
year 

Maturities 
more than 1 
year 

Receivables from fixed assets:  
Receivables from investments  
Loans 
Other 

Receivables from current assets:  
Trade receivables and related accounts  
Other 
Capital stock - called, not paid 
 Prepaid expenses 

1 490 

825 612 
29804 

828 

 

825 612 
29804 

828 

1 490 

total 857 734 856 244 1 490 

Loans granted during the year  
Loans recovered during the year 

 Accrued income 
Amount 

Clients invoices to be issued 
Social security charges - accrued income 

54 823 
914 

Total          55 736 
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• Notes on the balance sheet

 Equity
Composition of Share Capital 

 Share capital of 15,000.00 Euros divided into 300 shares of a nominal value of 50.00 Euros.

Number Nominal value 

Securities making up the share capital at the beginning of 
the year 

Securities issued during the year 

Securities redeemed during the year 

Securities comprising the share capital at the end of the year 

300 

300 

50,00 

50,00 

  Allocation of the result 

After the allocation of the 2020 result, equity remains negative. 

 In this context, it is essential to specify that the company is supported by its subsidiary SYNCO RDIS SA. 

Decision of the general assembly of April 16, 2021 
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Amount 

Retained earnings from previous year 

Profit for the previous year 

Withdrawal from reserves 

-575 000
-91 798 

Total of origins -666 798

Allocation to reserves  
Distributions 
Other distributions  
Retained earnings -666 798 

Total allocations -666 798

Report 
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EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 
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• Notes on the balance sheet

Statement of changes in equity 

       Status of debts
Total liabilities at the end of the fiscal year amounted to 2,365,749 Euros and can be broken down as follows: 

Amount 
gross 

 Maturities 
up to 1 year 

Maturities 
from 1 to 5 
years 

Maturities 
over 5 years 

Convertible bonds 

Other bonds 

Loans and debts with 

credit institutions of which : 

within 1 year at inception 

Due in more than 1 year at inception 

Other borrowings and financial liabilities 

Trade payables and related accounts 

Tax and social security debts 

Debts on fixed assets and related 

accounts 

Group and associates 

Other liabilities 

Deferred income 

157 230 
629 485 

1073 088 

505 946 

157 230 
629 485 

1073 088 

505 946 

Total 2 365 749 2 365 749
Borrowings taken out during the year  

Borrowings repaid during the year 

-91 798 

Total Equity -533 587 -505 121 -91 798 -946 910

Balance as 
of 12/31/2021 

Decreases Increase Allocation of 
results 

Balance as of 
01/01/2021 
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• Notes on the balance sheet

Accrued expenses 

Amount 

Suppliers - unpaid invoices 
Associates - accrued interest 
Staff - provision for paid vacations 
Personnel - other accrued expenses 
Social security charges / provision for pensions and benefits 
Social security - accrued expenses 
CFE payable 
CVAE payable 
Apprenticeship tax 
Continuing education 

32 130 
63 088 

116 777 
177 375 

52 158 
80 032 

765 
2 670 
2 832 
4795 

Total 532 621 

Accruals and deferred income 

Prepaid expenses 

, 

Deferred revenue 
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Operating 
expenses 

Financial 
expenses 

Exceptional 
expenses 

Prepaid expenses ... 82 8 

Total 
828 

Operating 
revenues 

Financial 
Products 

Exceptional 
Products 

... 505 946 

Total 505 946 

CROSS CHECK AND IMPLEMENT
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EURL SYNCORDIS FRANCE Year ended December 31, 2021 

• Notes to the income statement

Operating and financial income and expenses 

Compensation of the statutory auditors 

Amount recognized for the statutory audit of the annual accounts: 9,430 Euros 

Exceptional income and expenses 

Exceptional income and expenses for the year 

Expenses Products 

Other exceptional expenses on management operations  
Other exceptional income from management operations 

93 112 
7 198 

TOTAL 93112 7198 

The exceptional charge of € 93,112.13 corresponds to an invoice to be issued on a contract with the customer CHAABI in 
2018. The provision was renewed from year to year and then after negotiation, the customer obtained the cancellation of this 
invoice. 
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• Other information

Workforce 

Average number of employees: 25 including 2 apprentices. 

Salaried 
staff 

Staff provided 
at your disposal 

Managers 
Supervisors and technicians 
Employees 
Workers 

23 

2 

Total 25 

Retirement pension commitments 

The amount of commitments made in respect of pensions, supplementary retirement benefits and similar indemnities: 80,581 
Euros. The amount of the company's commitment for end-of-career indemnities for employees has been estimated on the 
basis of the retirement indemnity provided for by the French Labor Code, using the projected unit credit method. 

For a defined benefit plan, Recommendation 2 003-R.0 1 of April 1, 2003 is applied. 
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RULETRONICS SYSTEMS INC. 

 

ANNUAL REPORT  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

  



 

 

 

BOARD’S REPORT  

Dear Members,  

 

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual report and Audited Accounts for the year / 

period ended 31st December 2021 

 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 

Particulars 
2021 2020 

USD  USD 

Revenue from Business operations 1,455,035 2,127,468 

Total Expenditure 1,530,031 2,287,677 

Operating Profit / (Loss) (74,996) (160,209) 

Add: Interest Income - 4,000 

Less: Finance Costs (2,997) 6,744 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax (77,993) (162,953) 

Less : Tax 2,131 4,193 

Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax (80,124) (167,146) 

 
  

2. State of Company Affairs:  

 

The gross sales and other income for the financial year under review were USD 1,455,035 as 

against USD 2,131,468 for the previous financial year registering a decrease of 31.61%. The 

profit / (loss) before tax was USD (77,993) and the profit / (loss) after tax was USD (80,124) 

for the financial year under review as against USD (162,953) and USD (167,146) respectively 

for the previous financial year, registering an decrease of 52.14 % and 52.06% respectively. 
 

3. Dividend:  

 
In order to conserve the resources for future business growth, the Directors do not 
recommend any dividend for the year under review. 

 

4. Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company, 

between the end of the financial year and the date of the report:  

 

There were no Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

company, between the end of the financial year and the date of the report. 

  
  



 

 

 

 

5. Reporting of Frauds: 

 
The auditor of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against the Company 
by its officers or employees. 

 

6. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned during the year: 

 

During the year under review, there was no change in the composition of Board of Directors 

& Key Managerial Personnel, except, Mr. Sree Pradeepkumar Naidu, who ceased to be a 

Director of the Company due to resignation, w.e.f. March 31, 2022. 
 

7. Financial Statements: 

 

The Auditor’s Report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification, observation 

or adverse comment on the financial statements for FY22.  

 

8. Auditors: 

 

M/s SGC & Associates LLP are the auditor of the Company. They will continue to be auditor 

of the Company for the ensuing financial year.  

 

9. Directors Responsibility Statement: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 

a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently 

and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 

year and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period; 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the local statutes for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 

other irregularities; 

d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; 

e) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions 

of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and were operating 

effectively. 



 

 

 

 

10. Acknowledgement 

 

The Directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, supply chain partners, 

employees, Financial Institutions, Banks and all the various stakeholders for their 
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On behalf of the Board 
For Ruletronics Systems Inc. 

 

 

      Mr. Sudhir Chaturvedi 

   Director  
  

Date : 14 April, 2022 
 Place :  UK 
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          SGC & Associates LLP 

    Certified Public Accountants 
 63 Cuttermill Road 

 Great Neck, NY 11021 
Tel � (516)-504-0110 
Fax � (516)-706-0149 

Independent Auditor�s Report 
 
To Ruletronics Systems, Inc. 
To the Board of Directors: 
  
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ruletronics Systems, Inc. (a 
New Jersey corporation), which comprises the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, and 
the related statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows 
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Ruletronics Systems, Inc. as of December 31, 2021, and 
the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the Auditor�s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are required to be independent of Ruletronics Systems, Inc. and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about 
Ruletronics Systems, Inc.�s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the 
date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 
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Independent Auditor�s Report (Continued) 

 
Auditor�s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor�s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 
but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, 
including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable 
user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Ruletronics Systems, Inc.�s internal 
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Ruletronics Systems, Inc.�s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and 
certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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          SGC & Associates LLP 

    Certified Public Accountants 

 
Independent Auditor�s Report (Continued) 

 
Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements 
as a whole.  The supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and is not a required part of the financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility 
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements.  The information has been subjected 
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a 
whole. 

 
 
 
 
Great Neck NY 
 

April 14, 2022 
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Current assets Note No.
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,346            
Accounts receivable, net 3 142,158        

Total current assets 146,504        

Property and equipment 4 -                    

Total assets $ 146,504        

Current liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 7,596            

Total current liabilities 7,596

Total liabilities $ 7,596            

Equity 138,908        

Total equity 138,908        

Total liabilities and equity $ 146,504        

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

 

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      See Notes to Financial Statements 
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STATEMENT OF INCOME, COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, AND CHANGES IN 
EQUITY 

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 

5 

 
 

Note No.
Sales

Net Sales $ 1,455,035        

Total operating revenue 1,455,035        

Operating expenses 1,530,031        

Total operating expenses 1,530,031        

Operating loss (74,996)            

Other income (expenses) (2,997)              

Net loss before income taxes (77,993)            

Income taxes 8 2,131               

Net loss (80,124)            

Comprehensive loss (80,124)            

Equity, beginning of year 219,032           

Equity, end of year $ 138,908           

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      See Notes to Financial Statements 
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Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ (80,124)        
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net

cash used by operating activities
Depreciation on property and equipment 3,779           
Decrease (increase) in assets 

Accounts receivable 316,404       
Due from related party 94,464         
Other assets 1,200           

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (104,811)      
Due to related party (31,578)        
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (41,775)        

Net cash used by operating activities 157,559       

Cash flows from investing activities -                   

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of related party loan (236,501)      

Cash used in financing activities (236,501)      

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (78,942)

Cash  and cash equivalents - beginning of year 83,288         

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 4,346           

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Income taxes paid $ 35                

Interest paid $ 2,997           

 
 
 

 

      See Notes to Financial Statements 
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NOTE 1 � BUSINESS DESCRIPTION 

Ruletronics Systems, Inc. (�the Company�) is a boutique Pega consulting company with 
customers in banking, insurance, healthcare, and retail verticals. Ruletronics is a Gold 
Implementation Partner of Pega Systems, which is a leader in Intelligent Business Process 
Management (BPM), Customer Relationship Management (CRM) and Process Automation. The 
Company is incorporated in New Jersey, United States, and its headquarters are in Fairfield, 
New Jersey. The Company is a 100% subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech GmbH (See Note 
6). 

 
NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation � The accompanying financial statements of Ruletronics Systems, Inc. 
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the generally accepted 
accounting principles in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP�). Revenue is recorded 
when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred.  All amounts are stated in United States 
Dollars. 

Use of Estimates � The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. The important estimates made by the Company in preparing these financial 
statements include allowance for doubtful accounts, revenue recognition, accrued liabilities, 
depreciation, income tax uncertainties and other contingencies. The estimates are made using 
historical information and other relevant factors available to management. Management believes 
that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. 
Actual results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as 
management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Any 
revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents � The Company considers all cash, which is to be used for current 
operations with a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. The 
Company believes it is not exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents. 
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NOTE 2 � SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Accounts Receivable & Allowance for Doubtful Accounts � Accounts receivable are recorded 
at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The Company maintains an allowance for 
doubtful accounts for estimated losses inherent in its accounts receivable. In establishing the 
required allowance, management considers historical losses that are adjusted considering current 
market conditions and the customers� financial condition, the amounts of receivables in dispute, 
and the current receivables ageing and current payment patterns. The Company reviews its 
allowance for doubtful accounts periodically. Past due balances are reviewed individually for 
collectability. Bad debt expense is included in operating expenses in the statement of income, 
comprehensive income, and changes in equity. The Company charges off uncollectable amounts 
against the allowance for doubtful accounts in the period in which it determines they are 
uncollectable. 

Leases � Leases are classified as either capital or operating leases. Rent expense on operating 
leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease including renewal terms if, 
at inception of the lease, renewal is reasonably assured. 

Revenue Recognition � Revenue is recognized only when evidence of an arrangement is 
obtained and the other criteria to support revenue recognition are met, including the price is 
fixed or determinable, services have been rendered and collectability of the resulting receivables 
is reasonably assured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable and is reduced for volume discounts, estimated rebates, and other similar allowances. 

Revenue from contracts priced on time and material basis is recognized when services are 
rendered, and related costs are incurred. 

Revenue from services performed on fixed-price basis is recognized over the life of contract 
using the proportionate completion method. 

Unbilled revenue represents value of services performed in accordance with the contract terms 
but not billed. 

Other Income � Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises.
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NOTE 2 � SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Property and Equipment � Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment. Cost of items of property and equipment comprises cost of 
purchase and other costs necessarily incurred to bring it to the condition and location necessary 
for its intended use.  

The Company depreciates property and equipment using the straight-line method. Expenditures 
for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Upon retirement or disposal of assets, the 
cost and accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and the resulting gain or 
loss is credited to statement of income, comprehensive income, and changes in equity. The 
estimated useful lives of property and equipment are: 

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives of assets
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Computers and software 5 years

Advertising Costs � Non-response advertising costs are presented as part of operating expenses 
in the statement of income, comprehensive income, and changes in equity. Advertising costs are 
expensed as incurred. The Company did not incur any advertising costs during the year ended 
December 31, 2021. 

Commitments and Contingencies � Liabilities for loss contingencies arising from claims, 
assessments, litigation, fines, and penalties and other sources are recorded when it is probable 
that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. Legal costs 
incurred in connection with loss contingencies are expensed as incurred. 

Income Taxes � Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to 
differences between the financial statements carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities 
and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax 
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in 
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The 
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the 
period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recorded for deferred tax 
assets if it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be 
realized. ASC 740 also provides guidance on measurement, de-recognition, classification, 
interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. 
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NOTE 2 � SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Income Taxes (Continued) � The Company recognizes liabilities for uncertain tax positions 
based on a two-step process. The first step is to evaluate the tax position for recognition by 
determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more likely than not that the 
position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation 
processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount which is 
more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company recognizes 
interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in statement of income, comprehensive 
income, and changes in equity. 
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments � At December 31, 2021, the carrying value of cash, 
accounts receivable, and accrued expenses and other current liabilities, approximate fair value 
because of the short maturity of these items. 
 
Events Occurring After the Report Date � The Company has evaluated all events or 
transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date of December 31, 2021, through April 14, 
2022, the date these financial statements were available to be issued. As of April 14, 2022, there 
were no adjusting or non-adjusting events that were required to be accrued or disclosed in the 
financial statements. 
 
Uncertainty in Income Taxes � The Company has determined that there are no material 
uncertain tax positions that require recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Periods 
ending December 31, 2018, and subsequent remain subject to examination by the applicable 
taxing authorities. 
 
 
NOTE 3 � ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET 

Accounts receivable as at December 31, 2021, represent dues from customers of $142,158, net 
of allowance of doubtful accounts of $0. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful 
accounts on all accounts receivable, based on present and prospective financial condition of the 
customer and aging of accounts receivable after considering historical experience and the 
current economic environment. 
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NOTE 4 � PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment amounted to the following at December 31, 2021: 

Furniture and fixtures $ 7,500           
Computer and software 1,203           

8,703           
Less: Accumulated depreciation 8,703           

$ -                   

 
NOTE 5 � CONCENTRATIONS 

The Company had one customer that accounted for approximately 73% of its sales for the year 
ended December 31, 2021, and one customer that accounted for approximately 72% of its 
accounts receivable at December 31, 2021.  
 
The Company had no vendors that accounted for more than 10% of its purchases for the year 
ended December 31, 2021, and no vendors that accounted for more than 10% of its accounts 
payable at December 31, 2021.  
 
From time to time, the Company has cash on deposit with financial institutions in excess of 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (�FDIC�) limits. 
 

NOTE 6 � RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Company is a 100% subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech GmbH (See Note 1).  

The Company had a loan payable including accrued interest of $11,800 due to Larsen & Toubro 
Infotech GmbH amounting to $236,501 at January 1, 2021. The loan was paid off in 2021. 

The Company had the following related party transactions during the years ended December 31, 
2021 and 2020 in the ordinary course of business: 
 
Particulars December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Sale of Services:
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, U.S. Branch $186,784
Purchase of Services:
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited, U.S. Branch $963,463 $147,179
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NOTE 7 � INCOME TAXES  

The components of the provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2021, are as 
follows: 
 
Current Taxes

Federal tax $ -                    

State tax 2,131             

Income tax expense $ 2,131             

 
The Company files income tax returns for Federal and the States of New Jersey, Pennsylvania, 
and Tennessee. The open years� subject to examination by the tax authorities range from 2018-
2021. Management does not believe that there are any uncertain tax positions for either the past 
years or the current year. 

 
 

NOTE 8 � LEASE COMMITMENTS  
 

The Company leased office space under a non-cancelable operating lease. The lease was 
cancelled, and the leased office space was surrendered by the Company in December 2021. The 
Company recognizes rent expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the operating lease. 
Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2021, amounted to $14,375.  

 
NOTE 9 � SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 14, 2022, the date these financial 
statements were available for issue. All subsequent events, requiring recognition or disclosure 
through this date, have been incorporated into these financial statements. 
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Operating expenses
Subcontracting $ 1,276,519     
Salaries 197,651        
Payroll taxes 18,865          
Rent 14,375          
Accounting fees 12,050          
Insurance 4,141            
Depreciation 3,779            
Payroll fees 1,445            
Telephone 690               
Bank charges and fees 300               
Office supplies 114               
Other taxes, licenses and fees 102               

Total operating expenses $ 1,530,031     

Other income (expenses)
Interest expense $ (2,997)           

Total other income (expenses) $ (2,997)           
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Post- og besøksadresse:     Medlemmer av Den Norske Revisorforening
Holbergs gate 21                                                                                                Bankgiro:                                          Organisasjonsnr:
0166 Oslo                                              Telefon: +47 23 31 07 20                  8397.05.05914 975 800 679MVA

To the Board of Directors of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Norge AS

Independent auditor`s report (translated from Norwegian)

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Norge AS showing a profit of
NOK 5.367.237. The financial statements comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
statement of income and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion

the financial statements comply with applicable statutory requirements, and
the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as
at March 31, 2022 and (of) its financial performance for the year then ended in accordance
with the Norwegian Accounting Act and accounting standards and practices generally
accepted in Norway.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company as
required by laws and regulations and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of International Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director (management) are responsible for the information
in the Board of Directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
information in the Board of Directors’ report.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the information
in the Board of Directors’ report. The purpose is to consider if there is materially inconsistency
between the information in the Board of Directors’ report and the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or the information in the Board of Directors’ report otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Based on our knowledge obtained in the audit, in our opinion the Board of Directors’ report

is consistent with the financial statements and
contains the information required by applicable legal requirements.



__________________________________________________________________________________________________
Post- og besøksadresse:     Medlemmer av Den Norske Revisorforening
Holbergs gate 21                                                                                                Bankgiro:                                          Organisasjonsnr:
0166 Oslo                                              Telefon: +47 23 31 07 20                  8397.05.05914 975 800 679MVA

Responsibilities of the management for the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director (management) are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the Norwegian Accounting
Act and accounting standards and practices generally accepted in Norway, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting insofar as it is not likely that the enterprise will cease
operations.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

For further description of Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
reference is made to:
https://revisorforeningen.no/revisjonsberetninger

Oslo, 09.05.2022
Alpha Revisjon AS

Tåle Johnsen
State Authorised Public Accountant
(This document is signed electronically)
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Annual report 2022 for Larsen & Toubro Infotech Norge AS

THE TYPE AND LOCATION OF THE BUSINESS
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Norge AS is a company whose business consists of delivering IT solutions and IT 
services to clients globally and in Norway. The company is located in Bærum municipality.

GOING CONCERN
In accordance with § 3-3a of the Accounting Act it is confirmed that the going concern assumption is 
satisfied and this assumption has been applied in the preparation of the accounts.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
One of the main industry sectors in which Larsen and Toubro Infotech Norge AS operates is Banking and 
Financial Services. The entity has seen strong growth of 14% year on year growth in this vertical. Digital 
transformation continues to be a strategic priority and key area of focus for Banking and Financial Services 
firms. Firms are spending more on change the bank initiatives relative to run compared to 2-3 years back. 
Technology investments are across large and medium sized banks and across sub-verticals such as capital 
markets, payments, retail banking, wealth management etc. Unprecedented liquidity in the economy due 
to massive global stimulus programs and new ways of working because of the pandemic have further 
fuelled these investments. Firms are investing in improving customer experience by shrinking the core and 
building a layer of service-oriented interfaces. This gives them agility to launch a new product and offer a 
higher degree of straight through processing. Shift from cash to online transactions is further driving 
opportunities for payments and cards firms. In addition, technology spend on automation of processes and 
workflows are helping to reduce manual effort and physical presence such as branches and contribute to 
operational efficiency. Firms are confident that technology investments will pay off either in terms of top 
line or bottom-line expansion.

CLIENT RELATIONSHIPS
Client relationships are at the core of our business. We have a history of high client retention and continue 
to derive a significant proportion of our revenue from repeat business built on our successful execution of 
prior engagements.
As client relationships mature, we seek to maximize our revenue and profitability by expanding the scope 
of services offered to that client with the objective of winning more business from our clients, particularly 
in relation to our more substantive and value-added offerings. At the same time, we continue our efforts to 
add new clients and expand client relationships. 

REPORT ON THE ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
The board is not aware of any matters that are important for an assessment of the company’s position and 
result that are not set out in the annual accounts. Similarly no matters have occurred after the end of the 
financial year that in the opinion of the board are material to an assessment of the accounts.

The company had a turnover of NOK 137 870 810 for the period 01.04.21-31.3.2022. The company's total 
capital is NOK 48 387 790 and the equity is NOK 10 685 477. The equity ratio is 22,0%.

FINANCIAL RISK
Overall objective and strategy
The company is part of a larger international group and the overall goal and strategy is controlled from 
there. The financial risk is primarily linked to currency risk, in that a number of transactions take place in 
foreign currency.

Market risk
The market is considered stable, both in terms of prices and volume.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss for the company, if a customer does not meet theirs contractual 
obligations. The company monitors defaults by customers or counterparties and incorporates the 
information into their credit risk controls.



Liquidity risk
The company has good liquidity and also has the opportunity to draw on the group's facilities.

WORKING ENVIRONMENT, EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AND DISCRIMINATION
The board considers that the working environment in the company is good. No special measures have been 
implemented in this connection. The employees of the business have not suffered accidents or injury in 
connection with their work. Total sick leave over the last year has been 259 days, which amounts to 2% of 
total working time in the accounting year.

Larsen & Toubro Infotech Norge AS has a goal to be a workplace where there is full equality of opportunity 
between men and women, and has established a personnel policy that is considered to be gender neutral 
in all areas. At the end of year the company had 50 employees , 9 women and 41 men. The company’s 
board consists of 1 persons, of whom 0 are women.

ENVIRONMENT REPORTING
The company does not carry on activity that pollutes the external environment.

INSURANCE FOR BOARD MEMBERS AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
Insurance has been taken out for the members of the board and the managing director for their possible 
responsibilty to the company and third parties. 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Norge AS has not had research and development activities in 2022.

ANNUAL RESULT AND ALLOCATIONS
In 2022 the company had a result of after tax of NOK 5 367 237 which is proposed to be allocated as 
follows:

Disposition Amount
Allocation to dividend 0
Allocation to group 
contribution

0

To other equity 5 367 237

09.05.2022
The board of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Norge AS

Sarbajit Deb
chairman of the board/General Manager



REVENUE STATEMENT
LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH NORGE AS

OPERATING INCOME AND OPERATING EXPENSES Note 2022 2021

Revenue 137 870 810 117 592 376
Total income 137 870 810 117 592 376

Raw materials and consumables used 6 84 523 241 84 679 921
Employee benefits expense 1 42 248 317 12 352 250
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 2 1 461 589 1 461 589
Other expenses 1, 6 1 345 788 13 366 159
Total expenses 129 578 935 111 859 920

Operating profit 8 291 875 5 732 457

FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
Other interest income 0 2 583
Other financial income 90 561 1 703 370
Other financial expenses 1 495 181 1 431 860
Net financial items -1 404 620 274 092

Net profit before tax 6 887 255 6 006 549
Income tax expense 3 1 520 018 1 322 265
Net profit after tax 5 367 237 4 684 284

EXTRAORDINARY INCOME AND EXPENSES

Net profit or loss 5 5 367 237 4 684 284

ATTRIBUTABLE TO
Other equity 5 367 237 4 684 284
Total 5 367 237 4 684 284

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH NORGE AS SIDE 4



BALANCE SHEET
LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH NORGE AS

ASSETS Note 31.3. 2022 31.3.2021
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Concessions, patents, licences, trademarks, and similar rights 2 2 893 936 4 340 905
Deferred tax assets 3 350 0
Total intangible assets 2 894 286 4 340 905
Equipment and other movables 2 43 822 58 443
Total property, plant and equipment 43 822 58 443
Bonds and other receiveables 31 500 102 900
Other long-term receivables 79 351 0
Total non-current financial assets 110 851 102 900
Total non-current assets 3 048 959 4 502 248

CURRENT ASSETS
DEBTORS
Accounts receivables 29 920 031 25 936 716
Other short-term receivables 3 996 760 9 785 376
Total receivables 33 916 791 35 722 093

INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents 11 422 040 19 790 121

Total current assets 45 338 831 55 512 213

Total assets 48 387 790 60 014 461

LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH NORGE AS PAGE 5



BALANCE SHEET
LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH NORGE AS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 31.3. 2022 31.3.2021

EQUITY
PAID-IN CAPITAL
Share capital 4, 5 30 000 30 000
Total paid-up equity 30 000 30 000

RETAINED EARNINGS
Other equity 10 655 477 5 288 239
Total retained earnings 10 655 477 5 288 239

Total equity 5 10 685 477 5 318 239

LIABILITIES
PROVISIONS
Deferred tax 3 0 2 564
Total provisions 0 2 564

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables 6 12 955 165 30 977 473
Tax payable 3 2 762 271 1 490 047
Public duties payable 6 600 500 4 497 994
Other current liabilities 15 384 378 17 728 145
Total current liabilities 37 702 313 54 693 658

Total liabilities 37 702 313 54 696 222

Total equity and liabilities 48 387 790 60 014 461

                                        
                                        

09.05.2022
The board of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Norge AS

Sarbajit Deb
chairman of the board/General Manager
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INDIRECT CASH FLOW
LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH NORGE AS

Note 2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ loss before tax 6 887 255 6 006 549
Taxation paid 83 569 137 138
Ordinary depreciation 1 461 589 1 461 589
Change in accounts receivable -3 983 314 -15 316 830
Change in accounts payable -18 022 309 11 618 351
Change in other accrual items 5 372 267 10 551 916
Net cash flows from operating activities -8 368 081 14 184 436

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net change in cash and cash equivalents -8 368 081 14 184 436
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the period 19 790 121 5 635 685
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 11 422 040 19 820 121
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Accounting principles

The annual accounts have been prepared in conformity with the provisions of the Accounting Act and good 
accounting practice.

USE OF ESTIMATES
In the preparation of the annual accounts estimates and assumptions have been made that have affected 
the profit and loss account and the valuation of assets and liabilities, and uncertain assets and liabilities on 
the balance sheet date in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice. Areas which to a large 
extent contain such subjective evaluations, a high degree of complexity, or areas where the assumptions 
and estimates are material for the annual accounts, are described in the notes.

REVENUES
Income from the sale of goods is recognised on the date of delivery. Services are posted as income as they 
are delivered. Income from the sale of services and long-term manufacturing projects (construction 
contracts) are posted to the profit and loss account in line with the project’s degree of completion, when 
the outcome of the transaction can be estimated in a reliable manner. When the transaction’s outcome 
cannot be estimated reliably, only income corresponding to a projects’ incurred costs can be posted as 
revenue. At the time when it is identified that the project will give a negative result, the estimated loss on 
the contract is posted in full to the profit and loss account.

TAX
The tax charge in the profit and loss account consists of tax payable for the period and the change in 
deferred tax. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rate at 22 % on the basis of tax-reducing and tax-
increasing temporary differences that exist between accounting and tax values, and the tax loss carried 
forward at the end of the accounting year.  Tax-increasing and tax-reducing temporary differences that 
reverse or may reverse in the same period are set off and entered net. The net deferred tax receivable is 
entered on the balance sheet to the extent that it is likely that it can be utilised.

CLASSIFICATION AND VALUATION OF FIXED ASSETS
Fixed assets consist of assets intended for long-term ownership and use. Fixed assets are valued at 
acquisition cost less depreciation and write-downs. Long-term liabilities are entered on the balance sheet 
at the nominal amount at the time of the transaction.

Plant and equipment is capitalised and appreciated over the economic lifetime of the asset. Significant 
items of plant and equipment that consist of several material components with different lifetimes are 
broken down in order to establish different depreciation periods for the different components. Direct 
maintenance of plant and equipment is expensed on an ongoing basis under operating costs, while 
additions or improvements are added to the asset’s cost price and depreciated in line with the asset. Plant 
and equipment is written down to the recoverable amount in the event of a fall in value that is not 
expected to be temporary. The recoverable amount is the higher of the net sales value and the value in 
use. Value in use is the present value of future cash flows related to the asset. The write-down is reversed 
when the basis for the write-down is no longer present.

CLASSIFICATION AND VALUATION OF CURRENT ASSETS
Current assets and short-term liabilities consist normally of items that fall due for payment within one year 
of the balance sheet date, as well as items related to the stock cycle. Current assets  are valued at the 
lower of acquisition cost and fair value. Short-term liabilities are entered on the balance sheet at the 
nominal amount at the time of the transaction.

RECEIVABLES
Receivables from customers and other receivables are entered at par value after deducting a provision for 
expected losses. The provision for losses is made on the basis of an individual assessment of the respective 
receivables. In addition an unspecified provision is made to cover expected losses on claims in respect of 
customer receivables.



PENSION LIABILITIES - DEFINED-CONTRIBUTION SCHEME
The cost of a defined-contribution pension scheme corresponds to the premium paid to the insurance 
company for the period.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The cash flow statement has been prepared using the indirect method. Cash and cash equivalents consist 
of cash, bank deposits and other short-term, liquid investments.

Note 1 Salary costs and benefits, remuneration to the chief executive, board and auditor

SALARY COSTS
2022 2021

Salaries 40 291 509 11 599 620
Employment tax 1 358 828 581 153
Other benefits 597 980 171 477
Total 42 248 317 12 352 250

In 2022 the company employed 50 man-years.

PENSION LIABILITIES
The company is liable to maintain an occupational pension scheme under the Mandatory Occupational 
Pensions Act. The company’s pension schemes satisfy the requirements of this Act.

REMUNERATION TO LEADING PERSONNEL
Chief Executive Board

Total 0 0

The chief executive is employed by another group company and part of the cost related to the salary has 
been allocated to Norway. 

Leading personnel don't have any agreement on bonus or share based payment.

AUDITOR
Audit fees expensed for 2022 amount to NOK 162 950 ex. vat.
In addition there is a fee for other services of NOK -141 852 ex. vat.

Note 2 Fixed assets

Customer 
contracts

Fixed assts Total plant and 
equipment 

Acquisition cost  31.3.2021 7 234 841 73 104 7 307 945
Addition of plant and equipment purchased 0 0 0
Acquisition cost 31.3.2022 7 234 841 73 104 7 307 945

Accumulated depreciation 31.3.2022 4 340 905 29 282 4 370 187
Book value as at 31.3.2022 2 893 936 43 822 2 937 758

The year’s depreciation 1 446 968 14 621 1 461 589
Depreciation rates 20% 20%



Note 3 Tax
 
This year's tax expense 2022 2021
Entered tax on ordinary profit / loss:
Payable tax 1 522 932 1 322 909
Changes in deferred tax -2 914 -644
Tax expense on ordinary profit / loss 1 520 018 1 322 265
 
Taxable income:
Ordinary result before tax 6 887 255 6 006 549
Permanent differences 21 916 3 750
Changes in temporary differences 13 247 2 924
Taxable income 6 922 418 6 013 223
 
Payable tax in the balance:
Payable tax on this year's result 2 762 271 1 490 047
Total payable tax in the balance 2 762 271 1 490 047
 
Calculation of effective tax rate
Profit before tax 6 887 255 6 006 549
Calculated tax on profit before tax 1 515 196 1 321 441
Tax effect of permanent differences 4 822 825
Total 1 520 018 1 322 266
Effective tax rate 22,1 % 22,0 %
 
The tax effect of temporary differences that has formed the basis for deferred tax and deferred tax 
advantages, specified on type of temporary differences

2022 2021 Difference
Tangible assets 6 393 11 657 5 264
Accounts receivable -7 983 0 7 983
Total -1 590 11 657 13 247
 
Basis for  deferred tax -1 590 11 657 13 247
 
Deferred tax (22 %) -350 2 564 2 914



Note 4 Shareholders
 
THE SHARE CAPITAL IN LARSEN & TOUBRO INFOTECH NORGE AS AS OF 31.03 CONSISTS OF:
 Total Face value Entered
Ordinary shares 30 000 1,0 30 000
Total 30 000  30 000
 
OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE
The largest shareholders in % at year end:
 Ordinary Owner interest Share of votes
Larsen & Toubro Infotech Ltd 30 000 100,0 100,0
 

Note 5 Equity capital

Share capital Share premium Other equity 
capital

Total equity
 capital

Equity capital as at  31.3.2021 30 000 0 5 288 239 5 318 239
Result for the year 5 367 237 5 367 237
Additional dividend 0 0
As at 31.3.2022 30 000 0 10 655 476 10 685 476
 

Note 6 Inter-company items between companies in the same group

 2022 2021 
Receivables
Loans to companies in the same group 0 0
Customer receivables within the group 0 0
Other short-term receivables within the group 0 0
Total 0 0

Liabilities
Loans from companies in the same group 0 0
Debt to suppliers within the group 12 749 301 30 644 234
Other short-term liabilities within the group 0 0
Total 12 749 301 30 644 234

Transactions

Sale of services 16 839 055 7 265 441
Service charge - sub contracting 47 861 303 41 654 603
Purchase of management services 0 11 872 036
Overheads charged by Parent 0 9 123 325
Other transactions with related parties -19 546 -5 205
Total 64 680 811 69 910 200



Note 7  Going concern

The basis of the board’s conclusion as to status as a going concern is the foundations on which the 
company’s operations are based, the good communications with creditors and a conservative estimate of 
income in the coming years. 

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 
on the carrying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and intangible assets. In estimating the possible 
future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the 
date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information 
including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts and consensus estimates from market 
sources on the expected performance of the Company. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on 
the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be 
recovered.
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 
For the financial year ended 31 January 2021 
 
 
The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31 January 2022 
 
In the opinion of the directors, 
 
(a) The financial statements together with the notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of 

the financial position of the Company as at 31 January 2022 and the financial performance, changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Company for the financial year then ended; and  
 

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay 
its debts as and when they fall due. 

 
Directors 
 
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are as follows: 
 
Manuel Brunckhorst 
Guillaume Philippe Marie Desjonqueres 
Nachiket Gopal Deshpande 
 
Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures 
 
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose 
object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or 
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 
 
Directors’ interests in shares or debentures 
 
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the director holding office at the end of the financial year 
had any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related corporations. 

Share options 

There were no options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company. 

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares of 
the Company. 

There were no unissued shares of the Company under option at the end of the financial year. 

Independent auditor 

The independent auditor, GHP GmbH, has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment 

On behalf of the directors: 

 

 
 
Manuel Brunckhorst 
Director 
June 9, 2022 
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Nielsen + Partner Unternehmensberater AG 
Zurich 
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
 
The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
In the opinion of the directors, 
 
(a) The financial statements together with the notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of 

the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021  
 

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay 
its debts as and when they fall due. 

 

Directors 
 
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are as follows: 
 
Manuel Brunckhorst 
Guillaume Philippe Marie Desjonqueres 
Nachiket Gopal Deshpande 
 
Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures 
 
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose 
object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or 
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 
 
Directors’ interests in shares or debentures 
 
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the director holding office at the end of the financial year 
had any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related corporations. 

Share options 

There were no options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company. 

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares of 
the Company. 

There were no unissued shares of the Company under option at the end of the financial year. 

 

Independent auditor 

The independent auditor, Tria Revisions AG, has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment 

On behalf of the directors: 

 
 

 
Manuel Brunckhorst 
Director  
Dated June 9, 2022 
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
 
The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021. 
 
In the opinion of the directors, 
 
(a) the statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity and 

statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of 
the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and the financial performance, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company for the financial year then ended; and 

  
(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay 

its debts as and when they fall due. 
 
 
Directors 
 
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are as follows: 
 
Manuel Brunckhorst 
Muraleetharan  
Guillaume Philippe Marie Desjonqueres  
Nachiket Gopal Deshpande  
 
 
Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures 
 
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose 
object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or 
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 
 
 
Directors’ interests in shares or debentures 
 
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the directors holding office at the end of the financial 
year had any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related corporations. 
 
 
Share options 

 
There were no options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company.  
 
No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares 
of the Company. 
 
There were no unissued shares of the Company under option at the end of the financial year. 
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Independent auditor 
 
The independent auditor, Entrust Public Accounting Corporation, has expressed its willingness to accept re-
appointment. 
 
 
On behalf of the directors: 
 
 
 
 
 
Manuel Brunckhorst 
Director 

 Muraleetharan 
Director 

 

 
Dated as of 12 April 2022  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF  
NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD. 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nielsen+Partner Pte. Ltd. (the “Company”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of 
the Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to give a 
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021 and of the financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate 
Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting 
Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements 
in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
 
Other Information 
 
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Statement but 
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Directors for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls 
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or 
disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the 
preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 
 
The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.  
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly 
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 
 
 
 
ENTRUST PUBLIC ACCOUNTING CORPORATION   
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants 
Singapore 
 
Dated as of 12 April 2022 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
 

Note 2021 2020
SGD SGD

Revenue 4 12,053,373       12,404,138       

Other income 5 279,185            562,387            

Expenses:
Consulting services costs (1,500,755)        (1,184,929)        
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 (133,617)           (208,801)           
Employee compensation 6 (8,236,673)        (7,578,638)        
Finance expenses 7 (13,043)             (22,286)             
Other expenses 8 (1,624,393)        (1,401,029)        

Profit before income tax 824,077            2,570,842         

Income tax expense 9 (120,408)           (376,424)           

Profit for the financial year 703,669            2,194,418         

Total comprehensive income 703,669            2,194,418         
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
 
 
  

Doc ID: 65d5a123e27a13aae486b82bf6ece96c88815679



NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD. 
(Incorporated in Singapore) 
(Company Registration Number: 201306219M) 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

- 6 - 

 
 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at 31 December 2021 
 
 

Note 2021 2020
SGD SGD

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 133,944            218,395            
Financial assets, at FVPL 12 4                       4                       

133,948            218,399            

Current assets
Trade and other receivables 13 8,329,623         6,053,208         
Loans to related parties 14 883,967            832,235            
Cash and cash equivalents 15 554,547            1,431,003         

9,768,137         8,316,446         
Total assets 9,902,085         8,534,845         

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 16 3,245,158         2,297,578         
Contract liabilities 4 179,382            -                        
Loan from a related party 14 309,580            333,706            
Borrowings 17 47,415              120,951            
Current income tax liabilities 9 113,104            430,742            

3,894,639         3,182,977         

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 -                        53,802              
Deferred income tax liabilities 18 14,049              8,338                

14,049              62,140              
Total liabilities 3,908,688         3,245,117         

Net assets 5,993,397         5,289,728         

EQUITY
Share capital 19 100,000            100,000            
Retained earnings 5,893,397         5,189,728         
Total equity 5,993,397         5,289,728         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
 

Share Retained Total
capital earnings equity
SGD SGD SGD

Balance at 1 January 2020 100,000            2,995,310         3,095,310         

Total comprehensive income for the financial year -                        2,194,418         2,194,418         

Balance at 31 December 2020 100,000            5,189,728         5,289,728         

Balance at 1 January 2021 100,000            5,189,728         5,289,728         

Total comprehensive income for the financial year -                        703,669            703,669            

Balance at 31 December 2021 100,000            5,893,397         5,993,397         
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
 

Note 2021 2020
SGD SGD

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax 824,077            2,570,842         

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 133,617            208,801            
Gain on modification of lease liabilities (908)                  (1,007)               
Interest expense 13,043              22,286              
Interest income (21,100)             (1,197)               
Loss allowance of trade receivables 4,651                -                        
Provision for unutilised leave (17,241)             54,077              
Rent concessions -                        (7,867)               
Unrealised currency translation differences (21,518)             18,092              
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 914,621            2,864,027         

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables (2,281,066)        (2,183,076)        
Trade and other payables 985,921            1,148,497         
Contract liabilities 179,382            -                        
Cash (used in)/generated from operations (201,142)           1,829,448         
Income tax paid (432,335)           (190,444)           
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (633,477)           1,639,004         

Cash flows from investing activities
Loan to a related party (62,442)             (832,235)           
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,164                -                        
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (83,899)             (42,328)             
Net cash outflow from investing activities (145,177)           (874,563)           

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid (4,941)               (14,181)             
Principle payment of lease liabilities (92,861)             (166,652)           
Net cash outflow from financing activities (97,802)             (180,833)           

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents held (876,456)           583,608            
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of financial year 1,431,003         847,395            
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of financial year 15 554,547            1,431,003         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
 
These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements. 
 
 
1. General information 

 
The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Singapore. The address of its registered office is at 4 Battery 
Road, #25-01 Bank of China Building, Singapore 049908 and principal place of business is at 11 Collyer 
Quay, #09-09 The Arcade, Singapore 049317.  
 
The principal activity of the Company is to provide IT consulting services in the banking and finance sector. 
 
 

2. Significant accounting policies 
 
2.1 Basis of preparation 

 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting 
Standards (“FRS”) under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies 
below. 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to exercise its 
judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of certain 
critical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or 
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are 
disclosed in Note 3. 
 
On 1 January 2021, the Company adopted the new or amended FRS and Interpretations of FRS (“INT 
FRS”) that are mandatory for application for the financial year. Changes to the Company’s accounting 
policies have been made as required, in accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective FRS 
and INT FRS. 

 
The adoption of these new or amended FRS and INT FRS did not result in substantial changes to the 
Company’s accounting policies and had no material effect on the amounts reported for the current or prior 
financial years. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.2 New or revised accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective  

 
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are issued but not yet effective 
for annual periods beginning 1 January 2021, and have not been applied in preparing these financial 
statements. The Company does not plan to early adopt these standards. 
 

Title 

Effective date 
(Annual periods 
beginning on or after) 

Amendments to: 
- FRS 103 Business Combinations (Reference to the Conceptual Framework) 
- FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (Proceeds before Intended Use) 
- FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Onerous 

Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract) 

1 January 2022 

FRS 117 Insurance Contracts  1 January 2023 
Amendments to: 
- FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Classification of Liabilities as 

Current or Non-current) 
- FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and FRS Practice Statement 2 

(Disclosure of Accounting Policies) 
- FRS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 

(Definition of Accounting Estimates) 
- FRS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single 

Transaction 
- FRS 117 Insurance Contracts 

1 January 2023 

Amendments to FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements and FRS 28 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Sale or Contribution of Assets 
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture) 

To be determined 

 
The directors expect that the adoption of the standards above will have no material impact on the financial 
statements in the period of initial application. 

 
2.3 Revenue recognition 
 

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third 
parties. 
 
Revenue is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised 
good or service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or service. A 
performance obligation may be satisfied at a point in time or over time. The amount of revenue recognised 
is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation. 

 
The Company provides IT consulting services in banking and finance sector. Revenue is recognised upon 
the customers have satisfied with the work performed by the Company over the contractual period (i.e. over 
time). The amount of revenue recognised is based on the contractual price.  

 
A contract liability is the Company’s obligation to transfer goods or services to the customers for which the
Company has received consideration from the customers or advance billing to the customers. Contract 
liabilities are recognised as revenue as the Company performs under the contract.  
 

2.4 Borrowing costs  

 
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method on a time-proportion 
basis.  

  

Doc ID: 65d5a123e27a13aae486b82bf6ece96c88815679



NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD. 
(Incorporated in Singapore) 
(Company Registration Number: 201306219M) 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

- 11 - 

 
 

2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

2.5 Property, plant and equipment  
 
(a) Measurement 

 
All property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.   
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase price 
and any cost that is directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Cost also 
includes borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of a qualifying asset. 
 

(b) Depreciation 

 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to 
allocate their depreciable amounts over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
 
 Useful lives 
Computers and accessories 3 years 
Office equipment 3 years 
Properties 24 to 43 months 
 
The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and 
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date. The effects of any 
revision are recognised in profit or loss when the changes arise. 
 
Fully depreciated assets are retained in the financial statements until they are no longer in use and 
no further charge for depreciation is made in respect of these assets. 
 

(c) Subsequent expenditure 
 
Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been 
recognised is added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance expenses are recognised in profit or loss 
when incurred. 

 
(d) Disposal  

 
On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal 
proceeds and its carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount in revaluation reserve 
relating to that asset is transferred to retained earnings directly. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets  
 
Assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any objective evidence or indication that these assets 
may be impaired. 
 
For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to
sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate 
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the case, the recoverable 
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 
 
If the recoverable amount of the asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. 
 
The difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment loss 
in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such impairment loss is 
treated as a revaluation decrease.  
 
An impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in 
the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was 
recognised. The carrying amount of this asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount, provided that 
this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated 
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. 
 
A reversal of impairment loss for an asset other than goodwill is recognised in profit or loss, unless the asset 
is carried at revalued amount, in which case, such reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. However, 
to the extent that an impairment loss on the same revalued asset was previously recognised as an expense, 
a reversal of that impairment is also credited to profit or loss. 
 

2.7 Financial assets 
 
(a) Classification and measurement  
 

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories: 
• Amortised cost; 
• Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI); and 
• Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). 

 
The classification depends on the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets 
as well as the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial asset.  

 
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining 
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.  

 
The Company reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for managing 
those assets changes.  

 
At initial recognition 

 
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of 
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value 
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 

2.7 Financial assets (continued) 
 
(a) Classification and measurement (continued) 

 
At subsequent measurement 

 
1. Debt instruments 

 
Debt instruments mainly comprise of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other 
receivables, listed and unlisted debt securities.  

 
There are three subsequent measurement categories, depending on the Company’s 
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset:  

 
• Amortised cost: Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows 

where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are 
measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently 
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in 
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these 
financial assets is included in interest income using the effective interest rate method.  

 
• FVOCI: Debt instruments that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and 

for sale, and where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and 
interest, are classified as FVOCI. Movements in fair values are recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI) and accumulated in fair value reserve, except for the 
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange 
gains and losses, which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset 
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and presented in “other gains and losses”. 
Interest income from these financial assets is recognised using the effective interest 
rate method and presented in “interest income”.  

 
• FVPL: Debt instruments that are held for trading as well as those that do not meet 

the criteria for classification as amortised cost or FVOCI are classified as FVPL. 
Movement in fair values and interest income is recognised in profit or loss in the 
period in which it arises and presented in “other gains and losses”.  

 
2. Equity investments  
 

The Company subsequently measures all its equity investments at their fair values. Equity 
investments are classified as FVPL with movements in their fair values recognised in 
profit or loss in the period in which the changes arise and presented in “other gains and 
losses”, except for those equity securities which are not held for trading. The Company 
has elected to recognise changes in fair value of equity securities not held for trading in 
other comprehensive income as these are strategic investments and the Company 
considers this to be more relevant. Movements in fair values of investments classified as 
FVOCI are presented as “fair value gains/losses” in Other Comprehensive Income. 
Dividends from equity investments are recognised in profit or loss as “dividend income”.  

 
(b) Impairment  
 

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its 
debt financial assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied 
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.  

 
For trade receivables, lease receivables and contract assets, the Company applies the simplified 
approach permitted by the FRS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from 
initial recognition of the receivables.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 

 
2.7 Financial assets (continued) 

 
(c) Recognition and derecognition  
 

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date – the date on 
which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.  

 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets 
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership.  

 
On disposal of a debt instrument, the difference between the carrying amount and the sale 
proceeds is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount previously recognised in other comprehensive 
income relating to that asset is reclassified to profit or loss.  

 
On disposal of an equity investment, the difference between the carrying amount and sales
proceed is recognised in profit or loss if there was no election made to recognise fair value changes 
in other comprehensive income. If there was an election made, any difference between the carrying 
amount and sales proceed amount would be recognised in other comprehensive income and 
transferred to retained earnings along with the amount previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income relating to that asset.  

 
Trade receivables that are factored out to banks and other financial institutions with recourse to 
the Company are not derecognised until the recourse period has expired and the risks and rewards 
of the receivables have been fully transferred. The corresponding cash received from the financial 
institutions is recorded as borrowings.  

 
2.8 Offsetting of financial instruments 
 

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position 
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise 
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

 
2.9 Trade and other payables 

 
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the 
end of financial year which are unpaid. They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one 
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities. 
 
Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 
 

2.10 Provisions for other liabilities and charges 
 
Provisions for other liabilities and charges are recognised when the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.  

 
2.11 Borrowings 

 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are 
subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and 
the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective 
interest method. 
 
Borrowings which are due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date are presented as current 
borrowings in the statement of financial position even though the original term was for a period longer than 
12 months and an agreement to refinance, or to reschedule payments, on a long-term basis is completed 
after the reporting date and before the financial statements are authorised for issue. Other borrowings due 
to be settled more than 12 months after the reporting date are presented as non-current borrowings in the 
statement of financial position.  
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.12 Fair value estimation 

 
The fair values of current financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying 
amounts. 
 
The fair values of non-current financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated by 
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the 
Company for similar financial assets and liabilities. 

 
2.13 Income taxes  

 
Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognised at the amount expected to be paid to or 
recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect 
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is 
probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company measures its tax balances 
either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better 
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty. 
 
Deferred income tax is recognised for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements except when the deferred income tax arises 
from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. 
 
A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilised. 
 
Deferred income tax is measured: 
 
(i) at the tax rates that are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised 

or the deferred income tax liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date; and 

 
(ii) based on the tax consequence that will follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at 

the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities except for 
investment properties. Investment property measured at fair value is presumed to be recovered 
entirely through sale. 

 
Current and deferred income taxes are recognised as income or expense in profit or loss. 
 
The Company accounts for investment tax credits (for example, productivity and innovation credit) similar 
to accounting for other tax credits where a deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax credits to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax credits can 
be utilised. 
 

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash include cash on hand and 
deposits with financial institutions which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. For cash 
subjected to restriction, assessment is made on the economic substance of the restriction and whether they 
meet the definition of cash and cash equivalents. 
 

2.15 Share capital  
 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new 
ordinary shares are deducted against the share capital account. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.16 Leases (when the Company is the lessee) 
 

At the inception of the contract, the Company assesses if the contract contains a lease. A contract contains 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. Reassessment is only required when the terms and conditions of the contract 
are changed. 
 
(a) Right-of-use (“ROU”) assets  

 
The Company recognised a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the date which the underlying 
asset is available for use. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost which comprises the initial 
measurement of lease liabilities adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date and lease incentive received. Any initial direct costs that would not have been 
incurred if the lease had not been obtained are added to the carrying amount of the right-of-use 
assets. 
 
These right-of-use assets are subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end 
of the lease term. 
 
Right-of-use assets (except for those which meets the definition of an investment property) are 
presented within “Property, plant and equipment”. 

 
(b) Lease liabilities 

 
The initial measurement of lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments 
discounted using the implicit rate in the lease, if the rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company shall use its incremental borrowing rate. 
 
Lease payments include the following: 
 
- Fixed payment (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives 

receivables; 
- Variable lease payment that are based on an index or rate, initially measured using the index 

or rate as at the commencement date; 
- Amount expected to be payable under residual value guarantees; 
- The exercise price of a purchase option if is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and 
- Payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company 

exercising that option. 
 
For contract that contain both lease and non-lease components, the Company allocates the 
consideration to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease 
and non-lease component. The Company has elected to not separate lease and non-lease 
component for property leases and account these as one single lease component. 

 
Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease liability 
shall be remeasured when: 
 
- There is a change in future lease payments arising from changes in an index or rate; 
- There is a change in the Company’s assessment of whether it will exercise an extension 

option; or 
- There is modification in the scope or the consideration of the lease that was not part of the 

original term. 
 
Lease liability is remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset, or is 
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.16 Leases (when the Company is the lessee) (continued) 

 
(c) Short term and low value leases 

 
The Company has elected to not recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term 
leases that have lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of low value leases, except for 
sublease arrangements. Lease payments relating to these leases are expensed to profit or loss on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

(d) Variable lease payments 
 
Variable lease payments that are not based on an index or a rate are not included as part of the 
measurement and initial recognition of the lease liability. The Company shall recognise those lease 
payments in profit or loss in the periods that triggered those lease payments. 

 
2.17 Employee compensation 

 
Employee benefits are recognised as an expense, unless the cost qualifies to be capitalised as an asset. 
 
(a) Defined contribution plans 

 
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays 
fixed contributions into separate entities such as the Central Provident Fund on a mandatory, 
contractual or voluntary basis. The Company has no further payment obligations once the 
contributions have been paid. 
 

(b) Short-term employee benefits 
 
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be 
paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result 
of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

 
2.18 Currency translation 

 
(a) Functional and presentation currency  

 
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“functional currency”). The financial 
statements are presented in Singapore Dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company. 
 

(b) Transactions and balances  
 
Transactions in a currency other than the functional currency (“foreign currency”) are translated 
into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Currency 
exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation 
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the closing rates at the 
reporting date are recognised in profit or loss. Monetary items include primarily financial assets 
(other than equity investments), contract assets and financial liabilities. However, in the financial 
statements, currency translation differences arising from borrowings in foreign currencies and 
other currency instruments designated and qualifying as net investment hedges and net 
investment in foreign operations, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated 
in the currency translation reserve. 
 
Non-monetary items measured at fair values in foreign currencies are translated using the 
exchange rates at the date when the fair values are determined. 
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued) 
 
2.19 Government grants 

 
Grants from the government are recognised as a receivable at their fair value when there is reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all the attached conditions. 
 
Government grants receivable are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with 
the related costs which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government grants relating 
to expenses are shown separately as other income. 
 
Government grants relating to assets are deducted against the carrying amount of the assets. 
 
 

3. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements 
 
Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience 
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the 
circumstances.  
 
Expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade receivables 
 
ECLs are unbiased probability-weighted estimates of credit losses which are determined by evaluating a 
range of possible outcomes and taking into account past events, current conditions and assessment of 
future economic conditions. 
 
The Company has used relevant historical information and loss experience to determine the probability of 
default of the instruments and incorporated forward looking information, including significant changes in 
external market indicators which involved significant estimates and judgements. 
 
In determining the ECLs of trade receivables, the Company has used historical losses data to determine 
the loss rate and applied an adjustment against the historical loss rate to reflect the current and forward 
looking information.  
 
At the reporting date, the ECLs for trade receivables are SGD4,651. 

 
 
4. Revenue from contracts with customers 

 
(a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

IT consulting services 12,053,373       12,404,138       
12,053,373       12,404,138       

 
All the sales are recognised over time. 
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4. Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) 

 
(b) Contract liabilities  
 

The contract liabilities relate to consideration received from customers for the unsatisfied performance 
obligation in providing IT consulting services. Revenue will be recognised when the IT consulting services 
are provided to the customers. 
 
The change in contract liabilities balances is mainly due to the increase in advance billing to the customers. 
 
 

5. Other income 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Foreign exchange differences (net) 22,137              -                        
Gain on modification of lease liabilities 908                   1,007                
Government grant income – Jobs Support Scheme 85,323              485,304            
Government grant – others 149,717           65,825              
Interest income 21,100              1,197                
Rent concessions -                        7,867                
Other income -                        1,187                

279,185           562,387            

 
Interest income 
 
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. 
 
 

6. Employee compensation 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Salaries and wages 7,472,872         6,721,529         
Employer’s contribution to Central Provident Fund 399,175            356,059            
Other benefits 364,626            501,050            

8,236,673         7,578,638         

 
 

7. Finance expenses 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Interest on lease liabilities 4,941                14,181              
Interest on loan 8,102                8,105                

13,043              22,286              
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8. Other expenses 

 
2021 2020
SGD SGD

Administrative and service fee 225,456            287,765            
Consultation fee 449,425            85,688              
Foreign exchange differences (net) -                        207,211            
Insurance 181,983            99,131              
Loss allowance of trade receivables 4,651                -                        
Penalties -                        19,350              
Professional fees 362,459            143,233            
Recruitment fee 192,900            274,738            
Short-term lease (Note 11) -                        35,674              
Staff welfare and benefits 34,110              26,433              
Travelling expenses 35,220              118,262            
Others 138,189            103,544            

1,624,393         1,401,029         

 
 
9. Income tax expense 
 
(a) Income tax expense 

 
2021 2020
SGD SGD

Tax expense attributable to profit is made up of:
- Current income tax 113,104            365,942            
- Deferred income tax 5,711                1,589                

118,815            367,531            
Under provision in prior financial years 1,593                8,893                

120,408            376,424            

The tax expense on profit differs from the amount that would arise using the Singapore standard rate of 
income tax as follows: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Profit before income tax 824,077            2,570,842         

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 17% 140,093            437,043            
Effects of:
- Income not subject to tax (17,741)             (79,646)             
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 13,888              27,559              
- Partial income tax exemption (17,425)             (17,425)             
Tax charge 118,815            367,531            

 

(b) Movements in current income tax liabilities 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Beginning of financial year 430,742            246,351            
Income tax paid (432,335)           (190,444)           
Tax expense 113,104            365,942            
Under provision in prior financial years 1,593                8,893                
End of financial year 113,104            430,742            
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10. Property, plant and equipment 
  

 Computer 
and 

accessories 
 Office 

equipment  Properties  Total 
 SGD  SGD  SGD  SGD 

2021
Cost
Beginning of financial year 160,114       3,553           433,056       596,723       
Additions 83,899         -                   -                   83,899         
Modification of lease liabilities -                   -                   (73,244)        (73,244)        
Disposals (1,995)          -                   -                   (1,995)          
Written off -                   -                   (73,244)        (73,244)        
End of financial year 242,018       3,553           286,568       532,139       

Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of financial year 111,067       3,553           263,708       378,328       
Depreciation charge 44,489         -                   89,128         133,617       
Modification of lease liabilities -                   -                   (39,675)        (39,675)        
Disposals (831)             -                   -                   (831)             
Written back -                   -                   (73,244)        (73,244)        
End of financial year 154,725       3,553           239,917       398,195       

Net Book Value
End of financial year 87,293         -                   46,651         133,944       

2020
Cost
Beginning of financial year 117,786       3,553           359,812       481,151       
Additions 42,328         -                   171,666       213,994       
Modification of lease liabilities -                   -                   (98,422)        (98,422)        
End of financial year 160,114       3,553           433,056       596,723       

Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning of financial year 78,085         3,553           116,595       198,233       
Depreciation charge 32,982         -                   175,819       208,801       
Modification of lease liabilities -                   -                   (28,706)        (28,706)        
End of financial year 111,067       3,553           263,708       378,328       

Net Book Value
End of financial year 49,047         -                   169,348       218,395       

 
ROU assets acquired under leasing arrangements are presented together with the owned assets of the 
same class. Details of such leased assets are disclosed in Note 11. 

 
During the current year, the Company renegotiated and modified an existing lease contract for an apartment 
by early terminating the lease contract in March 2021. As this early termination is not part of the terms and 
conditions of the original lease contract, it is accounted for as a lease modification with a deduction to the 
right-of-use assets, classified under ‘Property, plant and equipment’. The corresponding remeasurement to 
lease liability is recorded under ‘Borrowings’ (Note 17). 
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11.  Leases – The Company as a lessee 
 
(a) Nature of the Company’s leasing activities  
 

Properties 
 

The Company leases office space and apartments for the purpose of office operations and staff 
accommodation.  

 
(b) ROU assets classified within property, plant and equipment during the financial year was SGD46,651 (2020: 

SGD169,348). 
 

(c) Depreciation charge during the financial year was SGD89,128 (2020: SGD175,819). 
 
(d) Interest expense on lease liabilities during the financial year was SGD4,941 (2020: SGD14,181). 
 
(e) Lease expense – short-term lease not capitalised in lease liabilities during the financial year was nil (2020: 

SGD35,674) (Note 8). 
 
(f) Total cash outflow for all the leases was SGD97,802 (2020: SGD216,507). 
 
(g) Addition of ROU assets during the financial year was nil (2020: SGD171,666). 
 

 
12. Financial assets, at FVPL 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Beginning of financial year 4                       4                       
End of financial year 4                       4                       

At the reporting date, financial assets, at FVPL included the following: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Unlisted securities:
- Equity securities - Thailand 4                       4                       

4                       4                       

At the reporting date, the carrying amount of financial assets, at FVPL approximates its fair value. 
 
Financial assets, at FVPL is denominated in Thai Baht. 
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13. Trade and other receivables  

 
2021 2020
SGD SGD

Trade receivables:
- third parties 3,455,876         2,494,046         
- related entities 4,644,310         3,338,183         

8,100,186         5,832,229         
Loss allowance (4,651)               -                        
Trade receivables – net 8,095,535         5,832,229         

Other receivables:
- related entity 18,966              1,986                
- holding company -                        1,053                
Deposits 211,203            43,196              
Prepaid operating expenses 3,919                174,744            

8,329,623         6,053,208         

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and the credit periods range from 30 to 60 days (2020: 30 to 60 
days).  
 
Dues from a related entity and holding company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 
 
At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value. 
 
Trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Australian Dollars 18,966              105,454            
Euro 5,523                246,015            
Hong Kong Dollars 25,259              -                        
Philippine peso 905                   -                        
Singapore Dollars 2,703,589         2,704,571         
Thai Baht 86                     -                        
US Dollars 5,575,295         2,997,168         

8,329,623         6,053,208         
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14. Loans to/from related parties 

 
2021 2020
SGD SGD

Loans to related parties:
Due within 1 year
- related entities 883,967            832,235            

883,967            832,235            

  
The loans to related entities are unsecured, bears interest at 1.5% to 2.5% (2020: 2.5%) per annum and 
repayable on demand.  
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Loan from a related party:
Due within 1 year
- holding company 309,580            333,706            

309,580            333,706            

 
The loan from holding company is unsecured, bears interest at 2.5% (2020: 2.5%) per annum and repayable 
on demand. 
 
At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of loans to/from related parties approximate their fair value. 
 
Loans to related parties are denominated in the following currencies. 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Loans to related parties:
Australian Dollars 842,945            832,235            
Thai Baht 41,022              -                        

883,967            832,235            

 
Loan from a related party is denominated in Euro. 
 
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities as follows: 

 

Beginning of 
financial year

Interest 
expense

Foreign 
exchange 
movement Other

End of 
financial year

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

2021
Loan from a related party 333,706       -                   (24,126)        -                   309,580       

333,706       -                   (24,126)        -                   309,580       

2020
Loan from a related party 301,100       8,105           18,092         6,409           333,706       

301,100       8,105           18,092         6,409           333,706       

Non-cash changes
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15. Cash and cash equivalents  
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Cash and bank balances 554,547            1,431,003         
554,547            1,431,003         

At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair value. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in Singapore Dollars. 
 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the cash and cash equivalents comprised the following: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Cash and cash equivalents (as above) 554,547            1,431,003         
Cash and cash equivalents per statement of cash flows 554,547            1,431,003         

 
 
16. Trade and other payables 

 
2021 2020
SGD SGD

Trade payables:
- related entities 1,082,430         329,076            
Other payables:
- third parties 325,277            238,722            
- holding company 685,466            478,369            
Accrued operating expenses 1,151,985         1,251,411         

3,245,158         2,297,578          
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the credit period is 30 days (2020: 30 days).  
 
Due to holding company is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. 
 
At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate their fair value.  
 
Trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Euro 1,088,417         806,801            
Indian Rupees (3,661)               8,527                
Philippines Peso -                        3,626                
Singapore Dollars 1,580,610         1,386,694         
Swiss Franc 39,675              -                        
Thai Baht 4                       4                       
US Dollars 540,113            91,926              

3,245,158         2,297,578         
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17. Borrowings 

 
2021 2020
SGD SGD

Current:
Lease liabilities 47,415              120,951            
Total current borrowings 47,415              120,951            

Non-current:
Lease liabilities -                        53,802              
Total non-current borrowings -                        53,802              

47,415              174,753            

 
(a) Currency risk  

 
Total borrowings are denominated in Singapore Dollars. 

 
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities 
 

Beginning of 
financial year

Principal
and interest
payments 

Modification 
of lease 
liabilities Addition

Rent 
concessions

Interest 
expense

End of 
financial year

SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD SGD

2021
Lease 
liabilities 174,753        (97,802)        (34,477)        -                   -                   4,941            47,415          

174,753        (97,802)        (34,477)        -                   -                   4,941            47,415          

2020
Lease 
liabilities 248,329        (180,833)       (70,723)        171,666        (7,867)          14,181          174,753        

248,329        (180,833)       (70,723)        171,666        (7,867)          14,181          174,753        

Non-cash changes

 
 

18. Deferred income taxes  
 
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the 
same fiscal authority. 
 
Movement in deferred income tax liabilities account is as follows: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Beginning of financial year 8,338                6,749                
Tax charged to profit or loss 5,711                1,589                
End of financial year 14,049              8,338                

Deferred income tax liabilities represent the following: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Accelerated tax depreciation 14,840              8,338                
Provision (791)                  -                        

14,049              8,338                
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19. Share capital 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

100,000 ordinary shares issued and fully paid 100,000            100,000            

All issued ordinary shares are fully paid. There is no par value for these ordinary shares. 
 
Fully paid ordinary shares carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends as and when declared by 
the Company. 
 
 

20. Related party transactions 
 
For the purposes of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the Company if the 
Company has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant influence over the 
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Company and the party are 
subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other 
entities. 
 

20.1 The following transactions took place between the Company and related parties at terms agreed between 
the parties: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Revenue:
Revenue charged to related entities 5,193,538         5,331,863         
Loan interest charged to a related entity 21,100 1,197

Expenses:
Expenses charged by holding company 225,456            309,953            
Expenses charged by related entities 1,210,082         414,102            
Loan interest charged by holding company 8,102                8,105                

Others:
Sales of property, plant and equipment to related entity 1,164                -                        

Balances with related parties at the reporting date are set out in Notes 13, 14 and 16. 
 

20.2 Key management personnel compensation is as follows: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Directors of the Company:
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 644,554            240,900            
Post-employment benefits - contribution to CPF 17,340              17,340              

661,894            258,240            

 
 

21. Holding company 
 
The holding company is Nielsen+Partner Unternehmensberater GmbH, incorporated in Germany. 
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22. Financial risk management 
 
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risk. 
 
(i) Foreign currency risk  

 
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from future commercial transactions, 
recognised assets and liabilities, primarily with respect to the Australian Dollars, Euro, Hong Kong 
Dollars, Indian Rupees, Philippine Peso, Swiss Franc, Thai Baht and US Dollars. The Company 
monitors the foreign currency exchange rate movements closely to ensure that their exposures are 
minimised. 
 
The Company’s currency exposure based on the information provided to key management is as 
follows: 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

Australian Dollars:
Trade and other receivables 18,966              105,454            
Loan to a related party 842,945            832,235            
Net financial assets 861,911            937,689            

Euro:
Trade and other receivables 5,523                246,015            
Trade and other payables (1,088,417)        (806,801)           
Loan from a related party (309,580)           (333,706)           
Net financial liabilities (1,392,474)        (894,492)           

Hong Kong Dollars:
Trade and other receivables 25,259              -                        
Net financial assets 25,259              -                        

Indian Rupees:
Trade and other payables 3,661                (8,527)               
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 3,661                (8,527)               

Philippine Peso:
Trade and other receivables 905                   -                        
Trade and other payables -                        (3,626)               
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 905                   (3,626)               

Swiss Franc:
Trade and other payables (39,675)             -                        
Net financial liabilities (39,675)             -                        

Thai Baht:
Trade and other receivables 86                     -                        
Loan to a related party 41,022              -                        
Trade and other payables (4)                      (4)                      
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 41,104              (4)                      

US Dollars:
Trade and other receivables 5,575,295         2,997,168         
Trade and other payables (540,113)           (91,926)             
Net financial assets 5,035,182         2,905,242         

 
  

Doc ID: 65d5a123e27a13aae486b82bf6ece96c88815679



NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD. 
(Incorporated in Singapore) 
(Company Registration Number: 201306219M) 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

- 29 - 

 
 

22. Financial risk management (continued) 
 
(i) Foreign currency risk (continued) 

 
At the reporting date, if the the Australian Dollars, Euro, Hong Kong Dollars, Indian Rupees, 
Philippine Peso, Swiss Franc, Thai Baht and US Dollars had strengthened/weakened by 10% 
(2020: 10%) respectively against the Singapore Dollars with all other variables including tax rate 
being held constant, the effects arising from the net financial asset/liability position will be as 
follows: 
 

2021 2020
 SGD  SGD 

Australian Dollars against Singapore Dollars:
- strengthened/weakened by 86,191              93,769              
Euro against Singapore Dollars:
- strengthened/weakened by 139,247            89,449              
Hong Kong Dollars against Singapore Dollars:
- strengthened/weakened by 2,526                -                        
Indian Rupees against Singapore Dollars:
- strengthened/weakened by 366                   853                   
Philippine Peso against Singapore Dollars:
- strengthened/weakened by 91                     363                   
Swiss Franc against Singapore Dollars:
- strengthened/weakened by 3,968                -                        
Thai Baht against Singapore Dollars:
- strengthened/weakened by 4,110                -                        
US Dollars against Singapore Dollars:
- strengthened/weakened by 503,518            290,524            

 

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk 
 
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair 
value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.  
 
The Company’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risks arises mainly from loans from/to related 
parties at fixed rate.  
 

2021 2020
Fixed rate Fixed rate

SGD SGD

Financial assets
Loans to related parties 883,967          832,235          

Financial liabilities 
Loan from a related party 309,580          333,706          

 

There is no significant concentration of cash flow interest rate risk. 
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22. Financial risk management (continued) 
 

(iii) Credit risk 
 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting 
in financial loss to the Company.  
 
(a) Risk management 

 
For trade receivables, the Company adopts the policy of dealing only with customers of 
appropriate credit standing and history, and obtaining sufficient security where 
appropriate to mitigate credit risk.  
 
For other financial assets, the Company adopts the policy of dealing with financial 
institutions and other counterparties with high credit ratings. 
 
Credit exposure to an individual customer is restricted by the credit limit approved by the 
management. Customers’ payment profile and credit exposure are continuously 
monitored by the management and directors.  
 
There are no significant concentration of credit risk, whether through exposure to 
individual customers, specific industry sectors and/or regions.  

 
(b) Impairment of financial assets 

 
The Company has applied the simplified approach by using the provision matrix to 
measure the lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables.  
 
In determining the expected credit losses of trade receivables, the Company has used 
historical losses data to determine the loss rate and applied an adjustment against the 
historical loss rate to reflect the current and forward looking information. 

 
Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, 
such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. The Company 
considers a financial asset as default if the counterparty fails to make contractual 
payments within 90 days when they fall due, and writes off the financial asset when a 
debtor fails to make contractual payments greater than 120 days past due. Where 
receivables are written off, the company continues to engage in enforcement activity to 
attempt to recover the receivables due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised 
in profit or loss. 
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22. Financial risk management (continued) 
 

(iii) Credit risk (continued) 
 

(b) Impairment of financial assets (continued) 
 
The Company’s credit risk exposure in relation to trade receivables under FRS 109 as at 
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are set out in the provision matrix as follows: 
 
31 December 
2021  Current  

 Within 
30 days 

 More than 
30 days 

 More than 
60 days 

 More than 
90 days  Total  

 SGD  SGD  SGD  SGD  SGD  SGD 

Trade receivables 1,351,541  819,565     577,858     (3,134)       2,560,272  5,306,102  
Loss allowance -                -                -                -                (4,651)       (4,651)       

31 December 
2020  Current  

 Within 
30 days 

 More than 
30 days 

 More than 
60 days 

 More than 
90 days  Total  

 SGD  SGD  SGD  SGD  SGD  SGD 

Trade receivables 1,250,795  666,361     603,845     694,340     1,666,444  4,881,785  
Loss allowance -                -                -                -                -                -                

 
Movement in credit loss allowance for financial assets are set out as follows: 

 
 Trade

receivables Total
SGD

2021
Loss allowance made during the financial year 4,651                4,651                
Balances as at 31 December 2021 4,651                4,651                

 
(iv) Liquidity risk 

 
The Company adopts prudent liquidity risk management by maintaining sufficient cash and 
availability of funding from the holding company. 
 
The table below analyses financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts 
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months 
equal their carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

Not later than 
1 year

Later than 1 year 
but within 5 years 

SGD SGD

At 31 December 2021
Trade and other payables 3,245,158           -                         
Loan from a related party 309,580              -                         
Borrowings 47,415                -                         

3,602,153           -                         

At 31 December 2020
Trade and other payables 2,297,578           -                         
Loan from a related party 333,706              -                         
Borrowings 120,951              53,802                

2,752,235           53,802                
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22. Financial risk management (continued) 
 

 

(v) Capital risk 
 
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise
shareholder value. In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Company may 
adjust the amount of dividend payment, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy back 
issued shares, obtain new borrowings or sell assets to reduce borrowings. 
 
Management monitors capital based on a gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt 
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as borrowings plus trade and other payables less 
cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as equity plus net debt. 
 

2021 2020
 SGD  SGD 

Net debt 3,047,606           1,375,034           
Total equity 5,993,397           5,289,728           
Total capital 9,041,003           6,664,762           

Gearing ratio 0.34                    0.21                    

The Company is in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements for the financial 
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021. 
 

(vi) Fair value measurements 
 
The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified by level of 
the following fair value measurement hierarchy: 
 
(a) quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1); 
(b) inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 

or liability, either directly (is as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (Level 2); and 
(c) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 

inputs) (Level 3). 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
SGD SGD SGD SGD

At 31 December 2021
Assets 
Financial assets, at FVPL -                     4                    -                     4                    
Total assets -                     4                    -                     4                    

At 31 December 2020
Assets 
Financial assets, at FVPL -                     4                    -                     4                    
Total assets -                     4                    -                     4                    
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22. Financial risk management (continued) 
 

(vi) Fair value measurements (continued) 
 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-
sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the Company is the current bid price. These instruments are 
included in Level 1. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques. The Company uses a variety 
of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting 
date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used to estimate fair value 
for long-term debt for disclosure purposes. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash 
flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of 
interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair 
value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward exchange rates 
at the reporting date. These investments are included in Level 2 and comprise debt investments 
and derivative financial instruments. In infrequent circumstances, where a valuation technique for 
these instruments is based on significant unobservable inputs, such instruments are included in 
Level 3. 

 
 

23. Authorisation of financial statements  
 
These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 
as of 12 April 2022. 
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD. 
(Incorporated in Singapore) 
(Company Registration Number: 201306219M) 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 
DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT  
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

REVENUE
IT consulting services 12,053,373       12,404,138       

LESS: COST OF SALES
Consulting services costs 1,500,755         1,184,929         

GROSS PROFIT 10,552,618       11,219,209       

ADD: OTHER INCOME
Foreign exchange differences (net) 22,137              -                        
Gain on modification of lease liabilities 908                   1,007                
Government grant income – Jobs Support Scheme 85,323              485,304            
Government grant – others 149,717            65,825              
Interest income 21,100              1,197                
Rent concessions -                        7,867                
Other income -                        1,187                

279,185            562,387            

10,831,803       11,781,596       

LESS: EXPENSES (as per schedule) 10,007,726       9,210,754         

Profit before income tax 824,077            2,570,842         

Income tax expense (120,408)           (376,424)           

Profit for the financial year 703,669            2,194,418         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This schedule does not form part of the audited statutory financial statements. 
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NIELSEN+PARTNER PTE. LTD. 
(Incorporated in Singapore) 
(Company Registration Number: 201306219M) 
___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 
 
DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT  
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
 

2021 2020
SGD SGD

EXPENSES
Administrative and service fee 225,456            287,765            
Bank charges 5,885                3,744                
Consultation fee 449,425            85,688              
CPF contributions 381,835            338,719            
CPF contributions - director 17,340              17,340              
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 133,617            208,801            
Director's allowances 3,600                3,600                
Director's remuneration 289,200            237,300            
Employee allowances 361,026            497,450            
Entertainment 1,656                14,084              
Foreign exchange differences (net) -                        207,211            
General expenses 110                   24,127              
Gifts 1,795                4,147                
Insurance 181,983            99,131              
Interest on lease liabilities 4,941                14,181              
Interest on loan 8,102                8,105                
IT expenses 94,014              19,389              
Loss allowance of trade receivables 4,651                -                        
Marketing expenses -                        1,466                
Medical expenses 6,411                10,716              
Meeting expenses 6,027                7,485                
Office supply 1,848                720                   
Penalties -                        19,350              
Postage and courier fee 932                   751                   
Printing and stationery 1,543                1,503                
Professional fees 362,459            143,233            
Recruitment fee 192,900            274,738            
Salaries and wages 7,183,672         6,484,229         
Short-term leases -                        35,674              
Skill development levy 7,847                7,599                
Staff welfare and benefits 34,110              26,433              
Stamp duty -                        565                   
Subscription fee 3,484                39                     
Telephone and fax 4,012                4,408                
Transport 274                   423                   
Travelling expenses 35,220              118,262            
Withholding tax 2,235                -                        
Utilities 116                   2,378                

10,007,726       9,210,754         

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This schedule does not form part of the audited statutory financial statements. 
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NIELSEN&PARTNER COMPANY LIMITED 
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Nielsen & Partner Co., Ltd, 
Bangkok, 
Thailand  

 

 
DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT 
For the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
 
The directors present their statement to the members together with the audited financial statements of the Company 
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 
 
In the opinion of the directors, 
 
(a) The financial statements together with the notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of 

the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2021  
 

(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay 
its debts as and when they fall due. 

 

Directors 
 
The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are as follows: 
 
Manuel Brunckhorst 
Guillaume Philippe Marie Desjonqueres 
Nachiket Gopal Deshpande 
Andreas Richter 
 
Arrangements to enable directors to acquire shares and debentures 
 
Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement whose 
object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or 
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. 
 
Directors’ interests in shares or debentures 
 
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, none of the director holding office at the end of the financial year 
had any interest in the shares or debentures of the Company or its related corporations. 

Share options 

There were no options granted during the financial year to subscribe for unissued shares of the Company. 

No shares have been issued during the financial year by virtue of the exercise of options to take up unissued shares of 
the Company. 

There were no unissued shares of the Company under option at the end of the financial year. 

 

Independent auditor 

The independent auditor, Synergy AP Audit Co., Ltd., has expressed its willingness to accept re-appointment 

On behalf of the directors: 

 
 

 
Manuel Brunckhorst 
Director  
Dated June 9, 2022 
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LYMBYC SOLUTIONS INC. 

 

ANNUAL REPORT  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

  



 

 

 

BOARD’S REPORT  
 
Dear Members,  
 
The Sole Director of the Company has pleasure in presenting their Annual report and 
Audited Accounts for the year / period ended 31st March 2022. 
 
1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 

Particulars 
2022 2021 
USD  USD 

Revenue from Business operations Nil          Nil 
Total Expenditure 500        2009 
Operating Profit / (Loss) (500) (2009) 
Add: Interest Income Nil Nil 
Less: Finance Costs Nil Nil 
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (500) (2009) 
Less : Tax 0 0 
Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax (500) (2009) 

 
2. State of Company Affairs / Business Prospects:  

 
  The revenue is yet to be generated from Lymbyc Solutions Inc. 

 
3. Dividend:  

 
In order to conserve the resources for future business growth, the Director 
does not recommend any dividend for the year under review. 

 
4. Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

company, between the end of the financial year and the date of the report:  
 

There were no Material changes and commitments affecting the financial        
position of the company, between the end of the financial year and the date of 
the report. 
  

5. Reporting of Frauds: 
 
The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against 
the Company by its officers or employees. 



 

 

 

 
6. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned 

during the year: 
 

During the year under review, there was no change in the Board of Directors 
& Key Managerial Personnel. 
 

7. Financial Statements: 
 

The Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification, 
observation or adverse comment.  

 
8. Auditors: 

 
There is no mandatory requirement of Audit for the Company as per US Law, 
however, the transactions are audited by the Statutory Auditors of Lymbyc, 
India - M/s. A John Moris & Associates. They will continue to audit the financials 
of the Company for the ensuing financial year. 
 

9. Directors Responsibility Statement: 
 

The Sole Director of the Company confirms: 
a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures; 

b) The Director has selected such accounting policies and applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the 
Company for that period; 

c) The Director has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
local statutes for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) The Director has prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern 
basis; 

e)  The Director has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with   
the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were 
adequate and were operating effectively. 

 
 
 



 

 

 

 
10. Acknowledgement 

 
The Director takes this opportunity to thank the customers, supply chain 
partners, employees, Financial Institutions, Banks and all the various 
stakeholders for their continued co-operation and support to the Company. 

 
 

For Lymbyc Solutions Inc.  
  on behalf of the Board 

 
 

       Satyakam Mohanty  
                                                                                             Director 

Date : 18 April, 2022 
 Place :  Bangalore   
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CUELOGIC TECHNOLOGIES INC. 

 

ANNUAL REPORT  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

  



 

 

 

BOARD’S REPORT  
Dear Members,  
 
The Board have pleasure in presenting their Annual report and Audited Accounts for 
the year / period ended 31st March 2022 
 
1. FINANCIAL RESULTS/FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 

Particulars 
31-March-22 31-March-21 

USD  USD 
Revenue from Business operations 1,451,002 1,085,265 
Total Expenditure 1,464,989 1,172,253 
Operating Profit / (Loss) (13,987) (86,988) 
Add: Other Income 145,100 108,527 
Less: Finance Costs 0 0 
Profit / (Loss) before Tax 131,113 21,539 
Less : Tax 39,227 8,243 
Net Profit / (Loss) after Tax 91,886 13,296 
Add: Balance b/f from previous year 29,662 16,366 
Balance available for disposal which 
directors appropriate as follows: - - 

Dividend - - 
Transfer to Reserves - - 
Balance to be carried forward 121,548 29,662 

 
2. Capital Expenditure: 
   

As at 31st March 2022, the gross fixed and intangible assets including leased 
Assets, stood at Nil. 

  
3. State of Company Affairs:  

 
The total income for the financial year under review were USD 1,596,102 as 
against USD 1,193,792 for the previous financial year registering an increase 
of 33.70%. The profit / (loss) before tax was USD 131,113 and the profit / (loss) 
after tax was USD 91,886 for the financial year under review as against USD 
21,539 and USD 13,296 respectively for the previous financial year, registering 
an increase of 508.72% and 591.08% respectively. 

 
 



 

 

 

4. Dividend: 
 
In order to conserve the resources for future business growth, the Directors 
do not recommend any dividend for the year under review. 

 
5. Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 

company, between the end of the financial year and the date of the report:  
 

There were no Material changes and commitments affecting the financial 
position of the company, between the end of the financial year and the date of 
the report. 
  

6. Reporting of Frauds: 
 
The Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud committed against 
the Company by its officers or employees. 

 
7. Details of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel appointed/resigned 

during the year: 
 

During the year under review, there was no change in the Board of Directors & 
Key Managerial Personnel. 
 

8. Financial Statements: 
 

The Auditors report to the shareholders does not contain any qualification, 
observation or adverse comment.  

 
9. Auditors: 

 
M/s KPCA & Co., Chartered Accountants are the auditors of the Company. 
They will continue to be auditors of the Company for the ensuing financial 
year.  

 
10. Directors Responsibility Statement: 

 
The Board of the Company confirms that: 

 
a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting 

standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 



 

 

 

material departures; 
b) The Board have selected such accounting policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the 
Company for that period; 

c) The Board have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
local statutes for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) The Borad have prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern 
basis; 

e) The Board have designed, implemented and maintained internal                 
controls with respect to reporting on financial statements. 

f) The Board have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate 
and were operating effectively. 

 
11. Acknowledgement 

 
The Board take this opportunity to thank the customers, supply chain 
partners, employees, Financial Institutions, Banks and all the various 
stakeholders for their continued co-operation and support to the Company. 

 
 
For and on behalf of the Board of  
Cuelogic Technologies Inc. 

 
 
      Vikrant Labde 

   Director  
  

Date : 06th May, 2022 
 Place :  USA     





CUELOGIC TECHNOLOGIES INC., USA 

30 Wall Street, 8th Floor 

New York, NY 10005 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2022 

Particulars 
Note 

No 

As at 31st March, 2022 

(In USD) 

As at 31st March, 2021 

(In USD) 

 
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

   

(1) Shareholder's Funds    

(a) Share Capital 1 1,000 1,000 

(b) Reserves and Surplus 2 121,548 29,662 

(2) Loan Taken 
 

- 20,000 

(3) Current Liabilities 
   

(a) Trade payable  445,537 431,956 

(b) Other current liabilities 3 69,756 28,090 

Total  637,841 510,708 

II. ASSETS    
(1) Current assets    

(a) Trade Receivables  287,737 277,678 

(b) Cash and Bank Balances 4 242,782 172,293 

(c) Other Current Assets 5 107,322 60,737 

Total  637,841 510,708 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts-1 to 7 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 

 
In terms of our report attached. 

For KPCA & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 142977W 

 
Chinmay D Kelkar 

Partner 
M. No: 122799 
UDIN: 22122799AIUXEW9627 

 
Place : Pune 

Date : 06th May'2022 

  
For and on behalf of the Board, 

 
 
 
 

 
Nikhil Ambekar 

Director 

DIN : 02744934 

 
Place : Pune 

Date : 06th May'2022 

 



 
CUELOGIC TECHNOLOGIES INC., USA 

30 Wall Street, 8th Floor 

New York, NY 10005 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31st March, 2022 

 
Particulars 

Note 

No 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2022 

(In USD) 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 

(In USD) 

Income: 

Revenue from operations 

Other Income 

 
Total Revenue 

 
Expenses: 

Professional Fees - Technical 

Other expenses 

 
Total Expenses 

 
Profit before tax 

Tax expense: 

(a) Current tax 

(b) Deferred tax 

Profit after tax 

 
Earning per share: 

(a) Basic 

(b) Diluted 

  
1,451,002 

 
1,085,265 

 145,100 108,527 

 1,596,102 1,193,792 

  
 

1,451,002 

 
 

1,157,265 

6 13,987 14,988 

 1,464,989 1,172,253 

  
131,113 

 
21,539 

 
39,227 8,243 

 - - 

 91,886 13,296 

7  
91.89 

 
13.30 

 91.89 13.30 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts-1 to 7 

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 

 
 
For KPCA & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 142977W 

 
 
 

Chinmay D Kelkar 

Partner 

M. No: 122799  

UDIN: 22122799AIUXEW9627 

 

Place : Pune 

Date : 06th May'2022 

  
 

For and on behalf of the Board, 

 
 
 
 

 
Nikhil Ambekar 

Director 

DIN : 02744934 

 
Place : Pune 

Date : 06th May'2022 

 



CUELOGIC TECHNOLOGIES INC., USA 

Accompanying notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Note : 1 

Share Capital 

 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2022 

(In USD) 

As at 31st March, 2021 

(In USD) 

Authorised Share Capital  
1,000 

 
1,000 (1,000 common shares of USD 1 each) 

 

Paidup Share capital 
 
 

1,000 

 

- 

(1,000 common Shares of USD 1 each) 1,000 

 1,000 1,000 
 

i) Share Holders holding more than 5% of Share capital 

 

Name of the shareholders 

As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 

No. of Shares Held No. of Shares Held 

Cuelogic Technologies Private Limited 1,000 1,000 

 

ii) Reconciliation of number of shares 

Particluars As at 31st March, 2022 As at 31st March, 2021 

 Number Number 

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,000 1,000 

Shares Issued during the year - - 

Shares bought back during the year - - 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 1,000 1,000 

 

Note :2 

Reserves and Surplus 
 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2022 

(In USD) 

As at 31st March, 2021 

(In USD) 

Profit and Loss Account (Dr) 

Opening Balance of Profit and Loss 

Profit/(Loss) during the Current Year 

Add: Reinstatement Gain/(Loss) 

 
29,662 

91,886 

- 

 
16,366 

13,296 

- 

Total 121,548 29,662 

 

Note : 3 

Other Current Liabilities 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2022 

(In USD) 

As at 31st March, 2021 

(In USD) 

Other Payables   
Reimbursement of expenses - Holding company 9,837 7,148 

Provision for Expenses 4,623 4,873 

Federal Tax Payable - Company 55,296 16,069 

Total 69,756 28,090 



CUELOGIC TECHNOLOGIES INC., USA 

Accompanying notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 31st March, 2022 

Note : 4 

Cash and Bank balance 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 

2022 (In USD) 

As at 31st March, 

2021 (In USD) 

 
Balances with Bank 

 
242,782 

 
172,293 

Cash on Hand - - 

Total 242,782 172,293 

 
Note : 5 

Other Current Assets 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 

2022 (In USD) 

As at 31st March, 

2021 (In USD) 

 
Deposit for rent 

 
278 

 
278 

Federal and Tax Payment 57,675 10,894 

Expenses Paid on Behalf of Cuelogic India 49,369 49,369 

Prepaid Expenses  196 

Total 107,322 60,737 

 
Note : 6 

Other Expenses 

 
Particulars 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2022 

(In USD) 

For the year ended 

31st March, 2021 

(In USD) 

Rent 1,870 4,613 

Bank Charges 1,315 1,227 

Tax filing fees 8,892 3,430 

Postage and Franking 722 438 

Tools/Hosting Charges 588 523 

Audit Fees 600 - 

Other Expenses - 4,757 

Total 13,987 14,988 



CUELOGIC TECHNOLOGIES INC., USA 

Accompanying notes to the financial statements 

For the year ended 31st March, 2022 

 

Note 6 Related Party Disclosure and Transactions 

A. Details of Related parties: 

Description of Relationship Names of related parties 

Director Key Managerial Personnel 

 
Holding Company 

Nikhil Ambekar 

Vikrant Labde 

M/s. Cuelogic Technologies Private Limited 

Note: Related parties have been identified by the management. 

 

B. Details of related party transactions during the year and balance outstanding : 

 

Particulars 
As at 31st March, 2022 

(In USD) 
As at 31st March, 2021 

(In USD) 

Transactions during the year with:   

Cuelogic Technologies Private Limited   

Commission income 145,100 108,527 

Interest Income - 4,677 

Reimbursement of Expenses 2,883 2,956 

Professional Fees 1,451,002 1,157,265 

Outstanding balances:   

Cuelogic Technologies Private Limited   

Share Capital 1,000 1,000 

Trade Payables 260,851 336,763 

Interest Payable - 4,677 

 

Note 7 Earnings Per Share 

 

Particulars As at 31st March, 2022 
(In USD) 

As at 31st March, 2021 
(In USD) 

Net Profit After Tax 91,886 13,296 

Weighted average No. of equity shares for basic/ diluted EPS   
(Nos.) 1,000 1,000 

Nominal Value of equity per share (in Rs.) 1 1 

Basic/ diluted Earnings Per Share (in Rs.) 91.89 13.30 

 

For KPCA & Co. For and on behalf of the Board, 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN : 142977W 

  
Chinmay D Kelkar Nikhil Ambekar 

Partner Director 

M. No: 122799 DIN : 02744934 
  UDIN: 22122799AIUXEW9627 

 

 

Place : Pune Place : Pune 

Date : 06th May'2022 Date : 06th May'2022 
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Directors’ Report 
 
The Directors present the annual report and the audited financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2022. 
 
Legal Aspect 
 

a) LTI Middle East FZ-LLC, (“the Company”) is registered with Dubai Development Authority, as a Free 
Zone Limited Liability Company and operates under the License No. 97938 issued on November 25, 2020. 
 
The Company also have branch in Dubai under the License no. 980620 issued by Department of Economic 
Development on November 23, 2021 and in Abu Dhabi under License no.  
CN-4052652 issued by Department of Economic Development on July 12, 2021. 
 

b) The Company is engaged in, 
IT Service 

 Consultancy 
 Customer service 
 Developer 
 Solution provider 
 Support service provider 

 
Software 

 Consultancy 
 Customer service 
 Developer 
 Solution provider 
 Support service provider 

 
c) The management of the Company is vested with Mr. Sanjeev Pramod Mulay, General Manager. 

d) The company is formed on November 25, 2020 and this is the first period of its operation. 
 

e) The registered office is in office is in Premise No: 101, Floor 1, Building 7, Dubai Outsource City, Dubai, 
UAE.  
 

f) Authorised, issued and paid-up capital of the Company is as below:  
 

 
Name of shareholder Number of 

shares 
Value in AED % 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd. 1,860 1,860,000 100% 

Total 1,860 1,860,000 100% 
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Financial performance 
 
During the year under review, the Company’s summary of financial performance for the period ended March 31, 2022 
is as follows: 
 
                    
 Amounts in AED 
Revenue 206,485,833 
Gross profit 36,494,900 
Net Profit/(loss) for the year 8,850,688 

 
Going Concern 
 
The directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual 
financial statements. There are no material events affecting the continuation of LTI Middle East FZ - LLC  and its 
ability to continue its operations during the next financial year. 
 
Auditors 
 
M & M Al Menhali Auditing, member of MGI Worldwide network, the auditors of the Company, have indicated their 
willingness to continue in office.  
 
 
Statement of Director’s responsibility 
 
The management is responsible to ensure that the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), 
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and the 
requirements of U.A.E Federal Commercial Companies Law No. 2 of 2015, rules and regulations of Dubai 
Development Authority and the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association which might have materially 
affected the financial position of the Company or its financial performance. 
 
 
 
Approved by the Board and Signed on its behalf by: 
 
 
 
 
  
General Manager/ Director,                 
April 17, 2022            
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To, 
 
The Shareholder, 
LTI Middle East FZ-LLC, 
Premise No: 101, Floor 1, Building 7, 
Dubai Outsource City, 
Dubai, UAE. 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of LTI Middle East FZ-LLC , which is registered 
under Dubai Development Authority as a Free Zone Limited liability company, Dubai, U.A.E. 
 
What we have audited 
 
The company’s financial statements comprising, 
 

 The statement of financial position, 
 The statement of income, 
 The statement of changes in equity, 
 The statement of cash flows, 
 The notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 
Opinion  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of LTI Middle East FZ-LLC  and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the period ended March 31, 
2022. We further confirm that the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards and applicable financial framework under UAE Federal law no 2 of 2015 and rules 
and regulations of Dubai Development Authority. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements of the Company in U.A.E, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and IESBA Code. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Other information  
 
Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises Directors’ report set up on 
page 2 and 3. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Other matters 
 
This is first year of audit from November 25, 2020 to March 31, 2022. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standard, UAE Federal law no 2 of 2015, rules and regulations of Dubai Development 
Authority and to implement and monitor such internal control as management determines it necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.  
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Company’s internal control. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 

and related disclosures made by management.  
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 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
Further, as required by rules and regulations of Dubai Development Authority, we report that: 
 

i. We have obtained all the information we considered necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
ii.  The financial statements have been prepared and complied in all material respects, with applicable 

provisions of rules and regulations of Dubai Development Authority. 
iii.  The company has maintained proper books of accounts and the company has not invested nor 

purchased any shares during the period March 31, 2022. 
iv. Based on information available to us nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe 

that the company has contravened, during the financial year ended March 31, 2022, any of the 
applicable provisions of the rules and regulations of Dubai Development Authority or of its Articles 
of Association which would materially affect its activities or its financial position as at March 31, 
2022. 

 
 

 
 

 
M&M Al Menhali Auditing, 

       
 
_________________________________ 
Mr. Mabkhoot Al Menhali                                                April 17, 2022 
Auditors’ Registration No: 262  
Dubai, United Arab Emirates. 
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Statement of Financial Position 
As at March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

Schedules 2022 

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipments 4                 310,810 

Intangible asset 5            50,351,160 

Contract asset 6              1,991,053 

Deposits 7              5,125,000 

Total non current assets            57,778,023 

Current assets

Trade and Other receivables 8            94,021,960 

Cash and cash equivalents 9                 440,960 

Contract asset 6                 742,025 

Total current assets            95,204,945 

Total Assets          152,982,968 

Equity and Liabilities

Shareholder's funds

Share capital              1,860,000 

Retained earnings              8,850,688 

Total shareholder's funds            10,710,688 

Non Current liabilities

Provision for end of service benefits 10              3,968,962 

Borrowings from related parties 11          108,308,400 

Total non current liabilities          112,277,362 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 12            10,899,596 

Amount due to related parties 11            19,095,322 

Total current liabilities            29,994,918 

Total Liabilities          142,272,280 

Total Equity and Liabilities          152,982,968 

Sanjeev Pramod Mulay

General Manager

March 31,

The  financial  statements, notes and schedules were approved by the Board on April 17, 2022 and 
signed on its behalf by:

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

6
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the period ended March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

Notes

From 25 November 
2020 to 31 March 

2022

Revenue 13               206,485,833 

Cost of revenue 14             (169,990,933)

Gross Profit                 36,494,900 

General and administrative expenses 15               (11,443,717)

Depreciation 4                      (52,421)

Amortisation 5               (12,088,840)

Total Operating Expenses               (23,584,978)

Profit from operating activities                 12,909,922 

Finance expenses 16                 (4,061,112)

Other income                          1,878 

Net profit for the period                   8,850,688 

Sanjeev Pramod Mulay

General Manager

The  financial  statements, notes and schedules were approved by the Board on April 17, 2022 and 
signed on its behalf by:

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

7
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Statement of changes in equity
For the period ended March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

Share Retained
 capital  earnings  Total 

Capital introduce                 1,860,000                                -                 1,860,000 

Net profit/(loss)                              -                   8,850,688                 8,850,688 

Balance at March 31, 2022                 1,860,000                 8,850,688               10,710,688 

General Manager

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial 

Sanjeev Pramod Mulay

The  financial  statements, notes and schedules were approved by the Board on April 17, 2022 and 
signed on its behalf by:

8
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Statement of Cash Flows
For the period ended March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

2022 
Cash flows from/(used in) operating activities:

                        8,850,688 
Adjustments for:
Employees' service end benefits                         3,968,962 
Depreciation                              52,421 
Amortisation of intangible asset                       12,088,840 
Amortisation of contract asset                            165,703 
Cash flows before changes in working capital                       25,126,614 

Trade and other receivables                      (94,021,960)
Due to related parties                       19,095,322 
Trade and other payables                       10,899,596 
Contract asset                        (2,898,781)
Net Cash flows (used in) operating activities                      (41,799,209)

Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities:
Purchase of Plant, property & equipments                           (363,231)
Intangible asset                      (62,440,000)
Non-current deposits                        (5,125,000)
Net Cash flows (used in) investing activities                      (67,928,231)

Cash flows from/(used in) financing activities:
                        1,860,000 

Borrowings from related parties                     108,308,400 
Net cash flows from financing activities                     110,168,400 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents                            440,960 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the period                                        - 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the period                            440,960 

Represented by:
Bank Balances                            440,960 

                           440,960 

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sanjeev Pramod Mulay
General Manager

Net profit for the period

March 31,

The  financial  statements, notes and schedules were approved by the Board on April 17, 2022 and signed 
on its behalf by:

Capital introduced

9
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC 
DUBAI, U.A.E 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the period November 25, 2020 to March 31, 2022 
 

10 
 

1. LEGAL STATUS & ACTIVITIES: 
 

a) LTI Middle East FZ-LLC, (“the Company”) is registered with Dubai Development Authority, 
as a Free Zone Limited Liability Company and operates under the License No. 97938 issued on 
November 25, 2020. 
 
The Company also have branch in Dubai under the License no. 980620 issued by Department 
of Economic Development on November 23, 2021 and in Abu Dhabi under License no.  
CN-4052652 issued by Department of Economic Development on July 12, 2021. 
 

b) The Company is engaged in, 
IT Service 

 Consultancy 
 Customer service 
 Developer 
 Solution provider 
 Support service provider 

 
Software 

 Consultancy 
 Customer service 
 Developer 
 Solution provider 
 Support service provider 

 
c) The management of the Company is vested with Mr. Sanjeev Pramod Mulay, General Manager. 

d) The company is formed on November 25, 2020 and this is the first period of its operation. 
 

e) The registered office is in office is in Premise No: 101, Floor 1, Building 7, Dubai Outsource 
City, Dubai, UAE.  
 

f) Authorised, issued and paid-up capital of the Company is as below:  
 

Name of shareholder Number of 
shares 

Value in 
AED 

% 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd. 1,860 1,860,000 100% 

Total 1,860 1,860,000 100% 
 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION  
 

2.1 Basis of accounting       
The financial statements of the entity are prepared in accordance with IFRS for SMEs International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) for SMEs issued by the International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB), interpretations issued by International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee 
(IFRIC), and comply, wherever appropriate, with the rules and regulations of rules and regulations 
of DMCC company regulations 2020. The requirements of the standards applied have been satisfied 
in full, and the financial statements therefore provide a true and fair view of the Company net assets, 
financial position and results of operations. 
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC 
DUBAI, U.A.E 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the period November 25, 2020 to March 31, 2022 
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The financial statements consist of Statement of financial position, statement of income, statement 
of changes on equity, statement of cash flows and notes comprising accounting policies and other 
information. In order to improve the clarity of presentation, various items in the statement of financial 
position and in the income statement have been combined. These items are disclosed and explained 
separately in the Notes.  
 
The financial statements are prepared using accrual basis of accounting. The income statement has 
been classified in accordance with the nature of expense method. Cash flow has been presented under 
indirect method. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention modified 
to incorporate the movements on carrying values of assets and liabilities except those assets and 
liabilities which are recognized at fair value as required under the relevant accounting policy.  
  
2.2 Authorization date 
 
Authorization date is that on which the financial statements are authorized and approved by the 
management. The authorization date LTI Middle East FZ-LLC is April 17, 2022. 

 
2.3 Currency 
 

The financial statements are presented in Arab Emirates Dirham (“AED”), which is the functional 
and presentation currency of the Company. 
 

3. Accounting estimates and judgements  
 
In the preparation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards for SME (IFRS) management is required to make a number of judgements, estimates and 
assumptions in the application of certain accounting policies that affect the reported assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis and are 
based on historical experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
assumed reasonable under the current conditions.  
 
These assumptions and estimation uncertainties to disclose about the information related to the 
assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in material 
adjustment to the financial statements.  
 
In the absence of specific accounting requirement that applies to a particular transaction, as per IFRS 
for SME, management need to use judgement in developing and applying an accounting policy that 
results in information that is relevant to the economic decision made by the users and reliable to the 
financial statements. Therefore, for each transaction, management need to consider the requirement 
under IFRS for SME and recognition, measurement concepts for assets, liabilities, income and 
expense in the conceptual framework. 

 
An entity shall change an accounting policy only if the change is required by an IFRS or results in 
the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of 
transactions, other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance or 
cash flows. A change in accounting policy will be applied retrospectively.  
 
A change in accounting estimate is an adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset or a liability, or 
the amount of the periodic consumption of an asset, that results from the assessment of the present 
status of, and expected future benefits and obligations associated with, assets and liabilities. Changes 
in accounting estimates result from new information or new developments and, accordingly, 
are not corrections of errors and are applied prospectively. 
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC 
DUBAI, U.A.E 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the period November 25, 2020 to March 31, 2022 
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3.1 Property, plant and equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of 
goods or services, for rentals to others, or for administrative purposes; and are expected to be used 
for more than one period. 
 
An item of property are recognised as an asset only if there is an economic inflow of benefits 
associated with the asset and the cost can be measured reliable.  
 
Property, plant and equipment is initially recognised at historical cost which comprises of the 
purchase price plus all costs necessary to bring the asset to its intended use and an estimate of the 
costs of dismantling and removing the item, and removing the site, if required. The cost of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is the cash price equivalent at the recognition date. If the payment 
is deferred beyond normal credit terms, the cost is the present value of all future payments. After 
recognition of asset based on cost model then the item of property, plant and equipment is carried at 
cost less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

 
Gains and losses arising from revaluation are transferred to revaluation surplus account. 
 
The management determines the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment for 
calculating depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset 
or physical wear and tear. Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and 
future depreciation charges would be adjusted where the management believes the useful lives differ 
from previous estimates. 

 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method and the cost or revalued amount is allocated 
to its residual value using its estimated useful life as follows;  
 

Computer systems          3   Years 
 

Property, plant and equipment’s are subjected to an annual review for any indicators of impairment 
and if there is an indication the recoverable amount needs to be calculated.  
 
An item of property, plant and equipment cannot be carried at more than its recoverable amount. 
 
A decline in the value of property, plant and equipment could have a significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements. Management assesses the impairment of the property, plant 
and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not 
be recoverable. Such indicators of impairment may arise from internal sources, external sources or 
as a result of combination of both. 
 
A plan to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date is an indicator of impairment that 
triggers the calculation of the asset’s recoverable amount for the purpose of determining whether the 
asset is impaired. Refer Note: 4. 
 
3.2 Intangible Assets & Contract Assets 

 
  Intangible Assets: 

 
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. 

 
Initially Intangible assets are capitalised at cost, only when future economic benefits are probable, 
and it can be reliably measured. Cost includes the purchase price together with any directly 
attributable expenditure.  
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC 
DUBAI, U.A.E 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the period November 25, 2020 to March 31, 2022 
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The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits using reasonable and 
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions 
that will exist over the useful life of the asset. 
 
An intangible asset shall be regarded by the entity as having an indefinite useful life when, based on 
an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the 
asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the entity. An intangible asset with an indefinite 
useful life shall not be amortized. 
 
The depreciable amount of an intangible asset with a finite useful life shall be allocated on a 
systematic basis over its useful life. Amortization shall begin when the asset is available for use, i.e. 
when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner 
intended by management. Amortization shall cease at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified 
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with 
IFRS 5 and the date that the asset is derecognized. 
 
As per the agreement dated 2nd Dec 2020, between the company (Licensee) with the vendor 
(licensor),  the licensor has granted a worldwide royalty-free, sub-licensable, perpetual, irrevocable, 
non-exclusive license to (and to permit the licensee’s Affiliates to), use, reproduce, adapt, copy, 
modify or create derivative works of the Assets and the Records for any purpose the Licensee deems 
necessary at its discretion.  The amount paid under the agreement  are amortised on a straight-line 
basis over their estimated useful lives over 6 years. Refer Note: 5. 
 
Contract Assets 
 
During the period, the company incurred transition related expenses which are in the nature of fixed 
cost payable to suppliers for certain projects.  The company has deferred the expenses over the period 
of service contracts. Refer Note: 6 
 
3.3 Trade and Other receivables 

 
Trade receivables 

 
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for the sale of goods or provision of services and 
are recognized when invoice has been issued. A receivable is recognised at the undiscounted amount 
of cash receivable from that entity, which is normally the invoice price. At the end of each reporting 
period, an assessment is made whether there is an objective evidence of impairment.  Estimates of 
the collectible amount of trade receivable are made when collection of the full amount is no longer 
probable.  
 
This estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amount which are not individually insignificant, 
but which are past due, are assessed collectively and an allowance applied accordingly to the length 
of time past due, based on historical recovery rates.  
 
 
Other receivables 
 
 Other receivables are considered as current assets if they mature not more than 12 months after the 
balance sheet date; otherwise, they are recognised as non-current asset. It is initially recognised at 
fair value including transaction costs and carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 
A prepaid expense is a type of asset that arises on balance sheet as a result of the entity making 
payments for goods or services to be received in the near future. While prepaid expenses are initially 
recorded as asset, their value is expensed over time as the benefit is received. Refer Note: 8. 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1018F91B-D0EA-4CCD-A3B2-C956CCDEF260



LTI Middle East FZ-LLC 
DUBAI, U.A.E 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
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3.3 Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. They are held to meet 
short-term cash commitments instead of for investment or other purposes. They are carried at their 
principal amount. Refer Note: 9. 

 
3.4 Related party transactions 

 
Related party transactions are the transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting 
Company and its related parties. The related party can be a person or entity that is related to the 
Company a person or close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting Company if the 
person is a member of the key management personnel or has joint control over the Company or has 
significant influence on the Company.  
 
An entity is related to the reporting Company if the entity and the reporting Company are members 
of the same group example like subsidiary, fellow subsidiary or parent, or associate, joint venture. 
Refer Note: 11. 
 
Common types of related party transactions for the Company are as follows: 
 

 Transactions with its principal owners 
 Transactions between entity under common control or has significant influence 
 

The following are the related party balances for the period:  
 

Name of related parties Relationship Nature of 
transaction 

Amount 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd. Holding 
Company 

Loan taken   55,500,000  
 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Financial 
Services Technologies Inc 

Group 
Company 

Loan taken 51,089,797 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd. Holding 
Company 

Payable 18,179,748 
 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd., Dubai Group 
Company 

Payable 570,242 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd., Abu Dhabi Group 
Company 

Payable 281,022 
 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech UK Ltd. Group 
Company 

Payable 64,310 

Forex (gain)/loss on loan from Larsen and 
Toubro Infotech Financial Services 
Technologies Inc 

Group 
Company 

Loan taken 1,718,603 

 
3.5 Trade and other payables 

 
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary 
course of business. Trade payables are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
 
An accrued expense is an accounting expenses recognised in the accounting records before it is paid 
for. It is a liability and is current. These expenses are typically periodic and documented on entity’s 
balance sheet due to high probability that they will be paid. Refer Note: 12. 
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3.6 Revenue analysis 
 
Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers. 
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, and is 
reduced for volume discounts, rebates and other similar allowances.  
 
Revenue includes gross inflows of economic benefits received or receivable by the entity on its own 
account. The entity excludes from revenue all amounts collected on behalf of third parties such as 
sales taxes, goods and services and value added taxes.  
 
The majority of revenue is generated through consultancies related to IT services and software; the 
company follows below mentioned recognition criteria as outlined by IFRS for SMEs.  
 
Revenue from services performed on fixed-price basis is recognised using the input method as 
defined in IFRS 15- Revenue from Contracts with customers. The Company uses efforts or cost 
expended to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and 
productivity. If the company does not have a sufficient basis to measure the progress of completion 
or to estimate total contract revenues and costs, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract 
cost incurred for which recoverability is probable. 
 
Deferred contract costs are costs to fulfil a contract which are recognised as assets and amortized 
over the term of the contract. Refer Note: 13. 
 
3.7 Cost of revenue 
 
Costs of revenue are the direct costs attributable in rendering the services. This amount includes the 
cost of the materials used in rendering the services along with the direct labour costs.  
Refer Note: 14. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BLANK LEFT INTENTIONALLY 
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

4 Property, plant and equipments

 Computer systems  Total 

Cost:
Opening balance                                -                                - 
Additions for the period                    363,231                    363,231 
At March 31, 2022                    363,231                    363,231 

Accumulated Depreciation:
Opening balance                                -                                - 
Depreciation for the period                      52,421                      52,421 
At March 31, 2022                      52,421                      52,421 

Net book value:
At March 31, 2022                    310,810                    310,810 

16
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

5 Intangible asset

2022

License to use assets
Cost:
Additions during the period                  62,440,000 

                 62,440,000 

Amortisation:
Amortisation for the period                  12,088,840 

                 12,088,840 

Net book value                  50,351,160 

6 Contract assets
March 31,

2022

Contract assets
Cost:
Additions during the period                    2,898,781 

                   2,898,781 

Amortisation:
Amortisation for the period                       165,703 

                      165,703 

Net book value                    2,733,078 

Non-current contract assets                    1,991,053 

Current contract assets                       742,025 

7 Non-current deposits

2022

Deposits                    5,125,000 
                   5,125,000 

March 31,

March 31,

17

DocuSign Envelope ID: 1018F91B-D0EA-4CCD-A3B2-C956CCDEF260



LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

8 Trade and Other receivables

2022

Trade receivables                  64,577,616 

Accrued revenue                  27,289,229 

Prepayments                    1,305,690 

Advance to vendor                       168,762 

Deposits                         39,502 

Other receivables                       641,161 
                 94,021,960 

Ageing  analysis

March 31,
2022

Neither due nor impaired

1-30 days                  55,145,818 

Due but not impaired 
31-90 days                    5,725,098 

91-180 days                    3,622,597 

More than 181 days                         94,774 

Less: Provision for doubtful debts                        (10,671)
                 64,577,616 

9 Cash and cash equivalents
March 31,

2022

Cash at banks                       440,960 
                      440,960 

10 Provision for end of service benefits
March 31,

2022

Provision for the period                    3,968,962 
                   3,968,962 

March 31,
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

11 Transactions with related party

Amount due to related parties

2022

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd.                  55,500,000 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd., Dubai                       570,242 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd., Abu Dhabi                       281,022 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech UK Ltd.                         64,310 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd (parent company)                  18,179,748 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Financial Services Technologies Inc.                  51,089,797 
Forex (gain)/loss on loan from Larsen and Toubro Infotech Financial Services 
Technologies Inc.                    1,718,603 

               127,403,722 

Due within 1 year                  19,095,322 

Due after 1 year                108,308,400 

The nature of significant related parties transactions and the amounts are as follows:

 From 25 November 
2020 to 31 March 

2022 

Recharge of expenses from
Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd.                  30,394,640 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd., Dubai branch                    4,880,222 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd., Abu Dhabi branch                    4,331,935 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech UK Ltd.                         66,383 

Recharge of expenses to
Overheads charged to Abu Dhabi branch                       192,421 

The Group enters into transactions with companies and entities that fall within the definition of a related
party as contained in International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). Related parties comprise
companies and entities under common ownership and/or common management and control; their partners
and key management personnel.

The management of the Company believes that the terms of such transactions are not significantly different
from those that could have been obtained from third parties in UAE. 
The Company provides/receives funds to/from related parties as and when required as working capital
facilities.

At the end of the reporting period, due to related parties were as follows:

March 31,
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

Commission expenses
Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd.                       570,205 

Finance charges
Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd.                    2,779,318 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech UK Ltd.                           9,316 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies , Inc.                    1,272,477 

Interest income
Larsen & Toubro Infotech GMBH                           1,878 

Loan taken
Larsen and Toubro Infotech Ltd.                  55,500,000 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies , Inc.                  51,089,797 

Larsen and Toubro Infotech UK Ltd.                    7,344,500 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies , Inc.                  40,182,671 

Loan repaid
Larsen and Toubro Infotech UK Ltd.                    7,344,500 

L&T Infotech Financial Services Technologies , Inc.                  40,182,671 

Loan given
Larsen and Toubro Infotech GMBH                    1,009,136 

Loan repaid
Larsen and Toubro Infotech GMBH                    1,009,136 

12 Trade and other payables

March 31,
2022

Trade payable                       188,225 

Staff payable                    4,371,331 

Provision for expenses                    6,190,878 

Unearned revenue                       149,162 

                 10,899,596 

13 Revenue

Revenue from services                206,485,833 

               206,485,833 

 From 25 November 
2020 to 31 March 

2022 
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LTI Middle East FZ-LLC

Dubai, U.A.E.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period ended March 31, 2022
(In Arab Emirates Dirhams)

14 Cost of revenue

Purchases during the year                    1,532,805 

Salaries and other benefits                122,965,332 

Sub-contracting expenses                  43,655,402 

Amortisation of contract assets                       165,703 

Other direct cost                    1,671,691 

               169,990,933 

15 General and administrative expenses

Salaries and other benefits                    5,519,300 
Legal and professional charges                    2,365,210 
Forex loss                    2,252,469 

Commission expenses                       570,205 

Bank charges                       450,186 

Rent                       189,208 

Office expenses                         73,847 
Conveyance and travelling expense                         11,302 

Provision for expected credit loss                         10,671 

Insurance                           1,319 

                 11,443,717 

16 Finance expenses
From 25 November 

2020 to 31 March 
2022

Interest on loan from related parties                    4,061,112 
                   4,061,112 

The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sanjeev Pramod Mulay

General Manager

From 25 November 
2020 to 31 March 

2022

From 25 November 
2020 to 31 March 

2022

The  financial  statements, notes and schedules were approved by the Board on April 17, 2022 and signed on its 
behalf by:
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
The director presents his strategic report for the year ended 31 March 2022.  
 
Review of the business  
The Company’s revenue from operations for the financial year under review were GBP 33,175,902 as against GBP 903,911 
for the previous financial year. The profit before tax was GBP 1,665,668 for the financial year under review as against GBP 
43,301 for the previous financial year. 
 
Principal risks and uncertainties  

The director considers that financial risk relevant to the Company are credit risk, cash flow risk and liquidity risk. The 
Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debtors and cash flow risk to its exposure to fluctuations in 
foreign currency exchange rates. The Company’s liquidity risk is mitigated by the Company’s customer contracts which are 
profitable. 
 
Development and performance and position at the end of the year  

The Company recorded profit after tax of GBP 1,338,380 (FY20-21 – GBP 43,301) and turnover of GBP 33,175,902 
(FY20-21 – GBP 903,911).  
 
Financial key performance indicators  

The key performance indicators that management monitors are turnover, gross margin and operating result. 
 
 
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

 
 
 
 
.......................................................................... 
Sudhir Chaturvedi - Director  
 
 
Date:   14th April, 2022 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Report of the Director for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
The director presents his report with the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2022.  
 
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY 

The Company, a private limited company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom, is engaged 
into providing IT services, including application development, implementation, systems integration, application 
maintenance, testing and support services. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited 
(Incorporated in India). 

 
DIVIDENDS 

No dividends will be distributed for the period ended 31 March 2022. 
 
DIRECTOR 

Sudhir Chaturvedi was appointed as a director on 17 August 2020 and held office during the whole of the period from then 
to the date of this report. 

 
THIRD PARTY INDEMNITY PROVISIONS 

There are no such matters. 
 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Refer the accounting policies for further details on financial instruments.  
 

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS 

The Company plans to continue to relentlessly focus on strategy which is about helping our clients navigate to digital future. 
It continues to build solid fundamentals, drive growth momentum and reinforce partnerships to help clients recover. 
 
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

In a rapidly changing global landscape where disruption is the new normal, the company is leveraging technology to create 
sustainable advantage not only for itself but more importantly, for its clients. While the Company has the real-world 
expertise in diverse domains, it has also invested consciously towards building expertise in exponential technologies. 
 

POLITICAL DONATIONS AND EXPENDITURE 

The Company has made no political donations during the current period. 
 
GOING CONCERN 

In assessing the going concern assumption for the Company, we have performed a detailed review of Company's projected 
cash flows for period of 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. 
 
The analysis also included a review of Company's financial position and performance and specific considerations was given 
to the inherent risks associated with Company's business model. We have, at the time of approving the financial statements, 
a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future and to meet reasonably any predictable liquidity requirements. Thus, we consider that it is appropriate that 
Company's financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis. 

 
STATEMENT OF DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

The director is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Report of the Director and the financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and regulations.  
 
Company law requires the director to prepare financial statements for each financial year.  Under that law the director has 
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards. Under 
company law the director must not approve the financial statements unless he is satisfied that they give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period.  In preparing these financial 
statements, the director is required to:  
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- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;  
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will 

continue in business.  
 
The director is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and enable him to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. He is also responsible for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  

 
 STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS 

So far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) 
of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a 
director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are 
aware of that information. 
 
 
AUDITORS 

The auditors, PBG Associates (LONDON) LTD, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcoming General Meeting. 
 
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD: 

 
 
 
 
.......................................................................... 
Sudhir Chaturvedi - Director  
 
 
Date:   14th April, 2022  
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
 Period 
 17.8.20 
 Year Ended  to 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 Notes £ £ 
 
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

Revenue 4 33,175,902 903,911 
 
Cost of sales (26,434,450) (844,554) 
    
GROSS PROFIT 6,741,452 59,357 
 
Other income 5 2,902,368  - 
Administrative expenses (7,978,152) (16,056) 

     
OPERATING PROFIT 1,665,668 43,301 
    
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX  6 1,665,668 43,301 
 
Income tax and deferred tax  8 (327,288) - 
    
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR  1,338,380 43,301 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form part of these financial statements 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
 Period 
 17.8.20 
 Year Ended  to 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 
 
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,338,380 43,301 
 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - - 

   
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR  

 
1,338,380 

 
43,301 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form part of these financial statements 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited (Registered number: 12817556) 
 
Statement of Financial Position 31 March 2022 
 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 Notes £ £ 
ASSETS 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

 Intangible assets 9 17,351 - 
 Property, plant and equipment    10 453,857 - 

Right of use assets  16    272,365          -  
Deferred tax assets  8      13,736          -  

 
757,309  - 

 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Trade and other receivables 11 8,217,245  995,963 
Cash and cash equivalents 12 49,876 28,976 

   
 8,267,121  1,024,939 

   
TOTAL ASSETS 9,024,430  1,024,939 

   
 

 

EQUITY 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Called up share capital 13 1,000 1,000 
Retained earnings 14 1,381,681 43,301 

   
TOTAL EQUITY 1,382,681 44,301 

   
LIABILITIES 

 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Lease liabilities         16    261,866         - 
 

 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Trade and other payables 15 6,991,378  980,638 
Contract liabilities 4 360,121 - 

 Lease liabilities 16 28,384 - 
 7,379,883 980,638 

   
TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,641,749 980,638 

   
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 9,024,430 1,024,939 

   
 
 
 
 
 
The financial statements were approved by the director and authorised for issue on April 14, 2022 and were signed by:  
 
.......................................................................... 
Sudhir Chaturvedi - Director  
 
 

The notes form part of these financial statements 
Page 10 



  

 Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
 Called up 
 share  Retained  Total 
 capital  earnings  equity 
 £ £ £ 
 
Changes in equity 

Issue of share capital 1,000 - 1,000 
Total comprehensive income - 43,301 43,301 
      
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,000 43,301 44,301 
      
 
Changes in equity 

Total comprehensive income - 1,338,380 1,338,380 
        
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,000 1,381,681 1,382,681 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form part of these financial statements 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
 Period 
 17.8.20 
 Year Ended  to 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 Notes £ £ 
Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash generated from operations 1 135,911 27,976 
Net cash from operating activities  135,911 27,976 

   
 
Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchases of tangible assets (115,011) - 
   

Net cash from investing activities (115,011) - 
   

 
Cash flows from financing activities 

Share issue - 1,000 
   

Net cash from financing activities - 1,000 
   

 
   

Increase in cash and cash equivalents  20,900 28,976 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 

year  

 
2 

 
28,976 

 
- 

 
   

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  2 49,876 28,976 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form part of these financial statements 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
1. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX TO CASH GENERATED FROM 

OPERATIONS  

 Period 
 17.8.20 
 Year Ended  to 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 
  
 Profit before income tax 1,665,668 43,301 
 Depreciation charges 42,612 - 

   
 1,708,280 43,301 
  
 Increase in trade and other receivables (7,221,282) (995,963) 
 Increase in trade and other payables 5,288,792 980,638 
 Increase in contract liabilities 360,121 - 

   
 Cash generated from operations  135,911 27,976 
 

 
 
2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
The amounts disclosed on the Statement of Cash Flows in respect of cash and cash equivalents are in respect of 
these Statement of Financial Position amounts:  

 
 Year ended 31 March 2022 

 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 
 Cash and cash equivalents 49,876 28,976 

   
 Period ended 31 March 2021 

 31.3.21  17.8.20 
 £ £ 
 Cash and cash equivalents 28,976            -   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The notes form part of these financial statements 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
 
1. STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 
Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited is a private company, limited by shares, registered in England and Wales. 
The registered number is 12817556 and the registered address is 6 Bevis Marks, London, England, EC3A 7BA. The 
principal activities of the Company to provide IT services, including application development, implementation, 
systems integration, application maintenance, testing and support services. 

 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 
 Basis of preparation 

On 31 December 2020, IFRS as adopted by the European Union at that date was brought into UK law and became 
UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, with future changes being subject to endorsement by the UK 
Endorsement Board. The Company financial statements have been transitioned, prepared and approved by the 
directors in accordance with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards. This change constitutes a change in 
accounting framework. However, there is no impact on recognition, measurement or disclosure in the period 
reported as a result of the change in framework. 
 
Besides UK-adopted International Accounting Standards, these financial statements also comply with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to this company. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except where IFRSs require an alternative 
treatment. 

 
Adoption of new and revised standards 

The following international financial reporting standards (IFRSs') and interpretations were in issue and applicable to 
periods commencing on or after 01 April 2021: 
Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest rate benchmark reform – phase 2 
Amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – deferral of IFRS 9 (issued on 25 June 2020)  
Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ – Covid-19 related rent concessions Extension of the practical expedient 
 None of above standard/amendments had a material impact on the company financial statement. 
 
New Standards and amendments issued but not yet applied 

The Company does not consider that any standards or interpretations issued will have a significant impact on the 
company's financial statements. 

 
Going concern 

In assessing the going concern assumption for the Company, the director has performed a detailed review of 
company's projected cash flows for period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial 
statements. The analysis also included a review of Company's financial position and performance along with 
specific considerations given to the inherent risks associated with company's business model. The director has, at the 
time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and to meet reasonably any predictable liquidity 
requirements. Thus, it is considered appropriate that Company's financial statements are prepared on the going 
concern basis. 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 
 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers. Revenue is measured 
based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer, and is reduced for volume discounts, rebates and 
other similar allowances. 
 
Revenue from contracts priced on time and material basis is recognised when services are rendered and the related   
costs are incurred. 
 
Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts shall be recognized on a pro-rata basis 
over the period for which services are rendered / milestones defined 

 
Revenue from services performed on fixed-price basis which are generally time bound, shall be recognized over the 
life of the project based on percentage completion method for the defined Performance Obligation with contract 
costs determining the degree of completion. When total cost estimates exceed revenue in arrangement, the estimated 
losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such losses become probable based on 
the current contract estimates. 

 
Revenue from sale of licenses / hardware, where the customer obtains a "right to use" the licenses / hardware is 
recognised at the point in time when the related license / hardware is made available to the customer. Revenue from 
licenses / hardware where the customer obtains a "right to access" is recognised over the access period. Where right 
to consideration is unconditional upon passage of time is classified as a financial asset however, for fixed price 
development contracts, where milestone is not due as per contract terms as on date of reporting, the same is 
classified as non-financial asset. 'Unearned & deferred revenue' (contract liabilities) represent billing in excess of 
revenue recognised. Deferred contract costs are costs to fulfil a contract which are recognised as assets and 
amortized over the term of the contract. 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 
 Financial instruments 

Classification of financial instruments issued by the company 

Following the adoption of IAS 32, financial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity only to the 
extent that they meet the following two conditions: 

 
(a) They include no contractual obligations upon the company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to 
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially unfavourable 
to the company; and 

 
 (b) where the instrument will or may be settled in the company's own equity instruments, it is either a 
non-derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the company's own equity instruments or 
is a derivative that will be settled by the company's exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial assets for a 
fixed number of its own equity instruments. 

 
To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the 
instrument so classified takes the legal form of the company's own shares, the amounts presented in these financial 
statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares. 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the Company 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
profit or loss. 

 
Financial assets 

 
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost: 
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows; and 
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVTOCI): 
- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling the financial assets; and 
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 
By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). 
Despite therefore going, the Company may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition 
of a financial asset: 

 
- the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in other 
comprehensive income if certain criteria are met; and 

 
- the Company may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as 
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch. 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

Amortised cost and effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. 

 
For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received 
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding 
expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to 
the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired 
financial assets, a credit- adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, 
including expected credit losses, to the amortized cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition. 

 
The amortized cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition 
minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any 
difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, 
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortized cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss 
allowance. Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured 
subsequently at amortized cost and at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than purchased or originated 
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For 
financial assets that have subsequently become credit- impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk 
on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest 
income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. 

 
Impairment of financial assets (including trade receivables) 

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and receivables and contract assets. The expected credit 
losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the Company's historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of 
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money 
where appropriate. 

 
Significant increase in credit risk 

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the 
company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of 
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the 
company considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including 
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. 
Forward-looking information considered includes various external sources of actual and forecast economic 
information that relate to the company's core operations. 

 
In particular, the following information is considered when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly 
since initial recognition: 

 
- significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, e.g., a 
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor, or the length of time or the 
extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less than its amortised cost; 
- existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a 
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations; 
- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor; 
- significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor; 
-an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the 
debtor. 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the company presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset 
has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, 
unless the company has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. 

 
Despite the afore going, the company assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased 
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting 
date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument has a low risk of 
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) 
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the 
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The company considers a financial asset to 
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of "investment grade" as per globally understood 
definition. 

 
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates 
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on 
the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

 
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between 
its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original 
effective interest rate. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the 
discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment 
loss is reversed through profit or loss. 

 
The company regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a 
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying 
significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due. 

 
Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each   
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the 
asset's recoverable amount is estimated. 

 
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the 
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit"). 

 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are 
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the carrying 
amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis. 

 
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had 
been recognised. 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 
 Taxation 

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit 
and loss and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in 
which case it is recognised in equity. 

 
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 
years. Current taxes are based on the results shown in the financial statements and are calculated according to local 
tax rules, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial position date. 

 
Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. A deferred tax asset is recognised only to 
the extent that it is probable that future profits will be available against which the temporary difference can be 
utilised. The directors make an assessment of future profits based on historical experience and various other 
forecasting judgements and assumptions. Where it is not deemed probable that future profits will be available, the 
deferred tax asset is not recognised to this extent. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end 
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

 
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the 
asset realized based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the 
company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

 
Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they relate to items 
credited or debited outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity), in which case 
the tax is also recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity 
respectively). 

 
 Foreign currencies 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company's functional currency at the foreign exchange rate 
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance 
sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Foreign 
exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non-monetary assets 
and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are 
stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair 
value was determined. 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

 
 Non-derivative financial instruments 

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and 
borrowings and trade and other payables. 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand 
and form an integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash 
equivalents for the purpose only of the cash flow statement. 

 
Finance costs 

Interest expense and similar charges are expensed in the profit and loss statement on the period in which they are 
incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to be prepared for its intended use or sale. 
The interest component of finance lease payments is recognised in the profit and loss statement using the effective 
interest method. 

 
Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a realisable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. 

 
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its 
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. When some or all of the economic benefits required to 
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is 
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. 

 
Classification of exceptional items 

Judgement is required in classifying items as exceptional. Management have considered items to be exceptional if 
they are material and one off in nature. 

 
Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments 

 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to the substance of the 
contractual arrangements entered and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

 
Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

 
Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities that are not 1) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, 2) 
held-for-trading, or 3) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. 

 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortized cost of a financial liability. 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or they expire. 

 
Offsetting arrangements 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position 
when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and intends either to settle on a 
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. A right to set-off must be available today 
rather than being contingent on a future event and must be exercisable by any of the counterparties, both in the 
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy. 

 
3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

 
The preparation of the financial information requires the directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.  The 
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

 
(i)     Critical judgements in applying the entity's accounting policies 

Management is of the opinion that there is no application of judgement expected to have a significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

 
(ii)     Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of 
the revision and future periods, if the revision affects both current and future period. The key assumptions 
concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a 
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of asset and liabilities within the next 
financial year are discussed below: 

 
(iii)    Income taxes 

 Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for unsettled trade receivables and deductibility of 
such amount from the income during the estimation of the provision for income taxes. There are many transactions 
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The 
company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be 
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such 
difference will impact the income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the year in which such determination is 
made. 

 
(iv)     Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition 

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. Use of the 
percentage of-completion method requires the Company to estimate efforts or costs expended to date as a proportion 
of the total efforts or costs to be expended. Efforts or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards 
completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity. Further, the Company uses significant 
judgements while determining the transaction price to be allocated to performance obligations. Provision for 
estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable 
based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
4. REVENUE 

 
 Turnover and segment analysis 

 
 
 

Year ended                          
31.03.2022    

  Period 
      17.08.20 
         to 
       31.3.21 

£            £ 
 
Software consultancy services and sale of products 

 
      33,175,902 

  
903,911 

 
  

Segment Analysis 

The principal activities of the company to provide IT services, including application development, implementation, 
systems integration, application maintenance, testing and support services and the Chief Operating Decision Maker 
assessed the business performance of the Company as a whole. Accordingly, there are no reportable segments. 
 

 

Revenue 

 

 

 
 

        Year ended           
31.03.22 

                          

  Period 
       17.08.20 
           To 
        31.3.21 

    
£  £  

United Kingdom 18,688,816  903,911 
Unites States of America 14,487,086  - 
 33,175,902  903,911 

 
 

All the non-current assets are located in the United Kingdom. 
 

 Contract balances 

 Period 
 17.8.20 
 Year Ended  to 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 
  

 
 Contract liabilities 360,121 - 
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Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
 
5. OTHER INCOME 

 Period 
 17.8.20 
 Year Ended  to 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
6. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 

 
The profit before income tax is stated after charging/(crediting):  

 
 
 
 
 
 
.
 

 
 
 
 
 
7.      AUDITORS REMUNERATION 

 Period 
 17.8.20 
 Year Ended  to 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 

 Fees payable to the company's auditors and their associates for the audit of 
the company's financial statements  

 
11,000 

 
8,000 
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Recoveries from Group Companies  2,821,021 - 
Others  81,347 - 
  2,902,368 - 

 Period 
    17.8.20 

Year Ended to 
        31.3.22    31.3.21 

£             £  
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses  (78,936) (652) 



 
  

Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
8. INCOME TAX 

 
No liability to UK corporation tax arose for the period. 

 
31.3.22 31.3.21 

£ £  
Analysis of tax expense 
 
Profit on ordinary activities before tax  1,665,668 43,301 
 
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of  316,477 8,227 
Corporation tax in the UK of 19%  
 
Effects of: 
Group relief received *  - (8,227) 
Expenses not allowed as deductions  32,663 - 
Capital Allowances  (21,851) - 
 
Current tax and deferred tax charge in the statement of profit & loss   327,289 - 
 
* Deferred tax asset on the tax losses in the books of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited (UK Branch) were 
transferred to the Company during the year since they were allowed to be offset against the profits of the Company 
as per the group relief available. Deferred tax expense pertains to the utilisation of these losses and reversal of the 
created deferred tax asset.  

 
9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

 Computer 
 software 
 £ 
 COST 

 Transfers * 18,677 
  

 At 31 March 2022 18,677 
  

 AMORTISATION 

 Amortisation for the year 1,326 
  

 At 31 March 2022 1,326 
  

 NET BOOK VALUE 

 At 31 March 2022 17,351 
 
 
 
 

* In the current year, the intangible assets of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited (UK Branch) have been transferred to the 
Company. 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 

 

 
 

* In the current year, the property, plant and equipment of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited (UK Branch) have been transferred to 
the Company. 

 

 

11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 
 Current: 
 Trade receivables 5,318,638 622,887 
 Amounts owed by group undertakings 1,320,172 11,664 
 Other debtors 88,038 - 
 Prepayments 277,578 - 
 Accrued income 1,212,819 361,412 

   
 8,217,245 995,963 
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Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
11. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - continued 

 
Aging of trade receivables (which are included in trade and other receivables), based on invoice date and net of 
allowance of doubtful debts, is as follows: 

 
£ £ 

Not Due  3,341,113 503,328 
Within 30 days 1,004,439 119,559 
31-60 days 355,610 - 
61-180 days 606,582 - 
181 days and more 10,894 - 
Total 5,318,638 622,887 

 
12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 
 Cash at bank 49,876 28,976 

   
 
 
 
13. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL 

 
 
 Allotted, issued and fully paid: 
 
 Number: Class: Nominal 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 value: £ £ 
 1,000 Allotted, called up and fully 
 paid £1 1,000 1,000 

   
 
 
 
 
 
14. RESERVES 

 Retained 
 earnings 
 £ 
 
 At 1 April 2021 43,301 
 Profit for the year  1,338,380 

  
 At 31 March 2022 1,381,681 
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Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 
 
15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 

 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 
 Current: 
 Amounts owed to group undertakings 3,108,391 780,407 
 Social security, VAT and other taxes             1,231,187          85,716 
 Employee related liabilities 1,775,354 - 
 Accrued expenses 787,114 114,515 
 Other payables 89,332 - 

   
 6,991,378 980,638 

   
 
16. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 

  

The lease contract of the Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited’s (UK branch) has been transferred to the 
Company on 1st March, 2022 and accordingly the right of use assets and lease liabilities pertaining to these 
contracts have also been transferred. 
 
The Company has lease contracts for premises typically ranging from 7 to 8 years. Each lease payment is 
allocated between the principal payment of lease liabilities and interest expense on the lease liabilities. The 
interest expense is charged to the profit and loss account over the lease term by using the effective interest rate 
method. The right of use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. 
 
Right of Use Assets 

 

 

£           
COST 

 Transfers * 275,294 
At 31 March 2022 275,294 

 
 DEPRECIATION 

 Depreciation for the year 2,929 
At 31 March 2022 2,929 

 
 NET BOOK VALUE 

 At 31 March 2022 272,365 
  

Lease Liabilities 
Balance as at April 1, 2021 - 
Transfers * 288,435 
Interest expense 1,815 
Lease payments - 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 290,250 

 

* In the current year, right of use assets and lease liabilities of Larsen & Toubro Infotech Limited (UK Branch) 
have been transferred to the Company. 
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 Larsen & Toubro Infotech UK Limited 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 

 

Amounts recognised in the Income Statement 

 31.3.22 31.3.21 

Interest Expense 1,815 - 
Depreciation 2,929 

 
- 

 
17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 
Financial risk management 

 
Senior management and the directors have overall responsibility for the oversight of the Company's risk 
management framework. Senior management and directors review and manage risk on an ad hoc basis when 
required through specific consideration of transactions. When identified, agreed actions are taken to mitigate these 
risks. 

 
Credit risk 

 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligation and arises principally from the company's receivables. 

 
The Company has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The trade receivables balance is spread across 
different customers. The Company has policies in place to ensure that agreements are made with customers with an 
appropriate credit history. The Company only sells to customers that are credit-worthy. The Company monitors the 
credit-worthiness of counterparties using publicly available information. As a result, the Company's exposure to bad 
debts is not significant. 

 
The company is also exposed to credit risk arising from other financial assets, which comprise of cash.  The 
Company's exposure to credit risk arises from the default of the counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the 
carrying value of these instruments if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligation. 

 
Liquidity risk 

 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due by 
ensuring that there is sufficient cash or working capital facilities to meet the Company's cash requirements. 

 
The risk is measured by review of forecast liquidity each month to determine whether there are sufficient credit 
facilities to meet forecast requirements. These continue to demonstrate the strong cash generating ability of the 
business and its ability to operate within existing agreed facilities. 

 
Market risk 

 
Market risk is the risk that changes in the market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect 
the Company's income. The Company's exposure to market risk predominately relates to foreign currency risk.  The 
Company has no borrowings or investments in interest bearing instruments, resulting in no interest rate risk. 

 
Foreign currency risk 

 
The Company operates internationally and is, therefore, exposed to the foreign exchange risk, which could impact 
revenue, costs, margins, and profits. The Company transacts with customers in Euro and US dollar. 
The following table shows the extent to which the Company has monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the 
balance sheet date in currencies other than the local currency of operation. Monetary assets and liabilities refer to 
cash and trade receivables (including amounts due from group undertakings), trade payables (including amounts due 
from group undertakings) to be received or paid in cash. 
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 31.3.22  31.3.22     31.3.21  31.3.21 
 
 

 
Monetary assets 

 Monetary 

Liabilities 

     
Monetary assets 

 Monetary 

Liabilities 
 £  £     £  £  
US dollar  4,190,773  -     159,708  - 
Euro  463,617  256,290     117,013  13,552 

 
 

                  Capital risk management 

 
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to 
optimise returns to its shareholders. The Board's policy is to retain a strong capital base to maintain investor, 
creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future growth. The directors regularly monitor the level of capital in 
the company to ensure that this can be achieved. 

 
Fair value disclosures 

 
The fair value of each class of financial assets and liabilities approximates their carrying amounts due to a short 
maturity. The financial assets to which this applies are 
(i) cash and cash equivalents and  
(ii) trade and other receivables (other than prepayments and accrued income) 
The financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables (other than amounts owed for social security, VAT and 
other taxes) 

 
Fair value hierarchy 

 
Financial instruments carried at fair value should be measured with reference to the following levels: 
-   Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
-   Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices) and 
-   Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) 

 
All financial instruments carried at fair value have been measured using a Level 2 valuation method. 

 
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are equal to carrying values. 

 
Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis 

The table below shows the Company's sensitivity to foreign exchange rates for its US dollar and Euro, the major 
currencies in which the outstanding balances are denominated. 

 
 31.3.22  31.02.211 

 
 
 

Increase/ 

(decrease in 

equity) 

 Increase/ 

(decrease in 

equity) 

 £  £  
10% appreciation in the US dollar  380,979 15,971 
10% depreciation in the US dollar  (380,979) (15,971) 
10% appreciation in the Euro  18,848 10,346 
10% depreciation in the Euro  (18,848) (10,346) 
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Notes to the Financial Statements - continued  
for the Year Ended 31 March 2022 

 
A strengthening / weakening of sterling, as indicated, against the US dollar and Euros at each period would have 
increased / (decreased) retained earnings by the amounts shown above. This analysis is based on foreign exchange 
rate variances that the Company considers to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period.  The analysis 
assumes that all other variables remain constant. 

 
18. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY 

 
The company's ultimate parent company and controlling party is Larsen and Toubro Limited, incorporated in India 
and listed on the Indian stock exchange. The company office address is L & T House, Ballard Estate Mumbai MH 
400001. The company's immediate parent company is Larsen and Toubro Infotech Limited (Incorporated in India). 

 
19. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 
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20.    LEASING  

 Minimum lease payments (undiscounted) fall due as follows: 
 
 31.3.22  31.3.21 
 £ £ 
  
 Within one year 49,375 - 
        One to five years                                                                       197,500 
        More than five years                                                                    189,547 

   
 436,422 - 
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21. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS 

  

  
 Year 

ended 
31.3.22 

Period 
from 

17.8.20 to 
31.3.21 

Salary cost (including pension) 18,824,915 - 
 
 

The number of employees, including directors, as at year end was as follows: 
 

 31.3.22 31.3.21 

Management and administration 
Production and services      
Support                                                                                                       

   19 
  166 
     6 

- 
- 
- 

   191       - 
   

 
 

 

Directors Remuneration 

 

 
 Year ended 

                 31.3.22 
Period  
from  

17.8.20 to 
31.3.21 

Directors remuneration* 850,065 - 
 
* Includes leave encashment provision as well as provision for variable pay for the year. Further £ 
783,419 has been charged back to other group companies. 

 
 
22.  POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 

 
There are no significant events post the balance sheet date that require disclosure. 
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